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bouses, atill to be seen, extending' one milé and a half
in & direct line from this place to East Chivington, it
seems to have been formerly a place of much greater
irportance, .

CHOBHAM, a parish in the first division of the
bundred of Gobrey, county of Surmey, 4§ miles
(E.8.E.) from Bagshot, containing 1719 inhabitants.
The living is & vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Surrey,
and diocese of Winchester, rated in the king’s books at
£10. 2. 1., and in the patronage of Samuel Thornton,
Esq. The church is dedicated to St. Lawrence. There
is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. Bag-
shot heath forms a large portion of this parish, but little
more than a third of it is in cultivation, the soil being
for the most part sandy, with beds of gravel underneath.
At Chobham park are the remains of a large mansion,
in which Archbishop Heath died. There is a school for
about one hundred and fifty children, supported by
subscription.

CHOCKNELL, a hamlet in the parish of Lricn,
lower divigion of the hundred of PERsHORE, county of
WoRCEsSTER, 5§ miles (W. 8. W.) from Worcester., The
population is returned with the parish. This was for-
merly a distinct parish: the living, which was a vicarage,
rated in the king's books at £16. 1. 54., has been con-
solidated with the rectory of Leigh; it is in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Worcester. The church has
been demolished.

CHOLDERTON, a chapelry in the parish of Am-
rort, hundred of Axpover, Andover division of the
county of SourHamMPTON, 5 miles (W.) from Andover.
The population is returned with the parish.

CHOLDERTON, a parish in the hundred of AmEes-
RURY, county of WiLTs, 5 miles (E. by N.) from Ames-
bury, containing 149 inhabitants. The living is a rec.
tory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Salisbury, rated
in the king's books at £11. 0. 74., and in the patronage
of the Provost and Fellows of Oriel College, Oxford,
The church is dedicated to St. Nicholas, By deed in
1753, Anthony Cratcherode gave land for teaching chil-
dren, and for the poor of this parish.

CHOLLERTON, a parish in the north-eastern divi-
sion of TINDALE ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND,
tpmprising the chapelry of Chipchase with Gunnerton,
ghd the townships of Barrasford, Chollerton, and Col-
well with Swinburn, and the greater part of the town-

* ship of Broomhope with Buteland, and containing 1241
inhiabitants, of which number, 403 are in the township
of Cholleston, 6 miles (N.) from Hexham. The living
is ‘& vicurage, in the archdeaconry of Northumberland,
and djocese of Durham, rated in the king's books at
%6. 14, 4§;, and in the patronage of Colonel and Mrs.
Begumont, The church is dedicated to St. Giles. A
cross, still called St. Oswald's cross, was set up here by

swalil, King of Northumberland, to commemorate his
victdiv‘at Haledon, in this parish, over Ceadwall, King
of ‘Curiderland, after whichh he became a Christian,

&gt & mile froth the village of Chollerton was the line

of -the Pictd’ wall, erected by the Romans and South
yitons, o' €9065°% themnselves from the incur-
sibits of ‘the Plots, the remuins of which still exist, ex-

#have ¢ighty miles through this county and-that

itland, from’ the North sea to the Solway

‘wigs ‘eight feet’ broad and twelve high, with
fated abtut a mile from each other; and-at
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short distances were evected séveral small fortified places,
called Chesters by the Saxons, many vestiges .of which
are still conspicuous,. Within this parish- alsc-arethe
remains of two ancient and extensive castles, called
Chipchase and Swinburn, which have partly been con-
verted into el t modern structures, : :

CHOLMONDELEY, a township in the parish of
Mavvr4s, higher division of the hundred of Broxron,
county palatine of CHESTER, 74 wmiles (W.) from Nant-
wich, containing 297 inhabitants, Cholmondeley House
was gurrisoned, in 1643, by four hundred royalists, who,
in April, were attacked gnd defeated by the parliament-
ary troops from Nantwich, having lost fifty men and six
hundred horees. It afterwards fell into the hands of the
parliamentarians, and was re-captured by the royalists,
who were driven from it again on the 30th of June,
1644. The present splendid mansion of Cholmondeley
castle, about half a mi'e from the former, the seat of the
Marquis of Cholmondeley, was begun in 1801, and com-
pleted in 1804, A domestic chapel, to which the te-
nants enjoy the privilege of resorting, has long been at-
tached to it.

CHOLMONDSTONE, a township in the parish of
Acron, bundred of Nanrwich, county palatine. of
CHESTER, 44 miles (N. by W.) from Nantwich, contain-
ing 206 inhabitants. Thomas Fillcock left a small be-
quest for teaching poor children.

CHOLSEY, a parish in the hundred of Reaping,
though locally in the hundred of Moreton, conaty: of
Berks, 24 miles (8. w.) from Wallingford, containing
975 inhabitants, The living is a vicarage, with the per-
petual curacy of Moulsford united, in the archdea-
conry of Berks, and diocese of Salisbury, rated in the
king's books at £18. 9. 94., and in the patronage of the
Crown. The church, dedicated to St, Mary, contains
some remains of Norman architecture. The Baptists.
have a place of worship here. A monastery was four-ded,
in 986, by Ethelred, as an atonement for the murder of
his brother, Edward the Martyr, which was destroyed
by the Danes in 1006, together with the village wherein
it was situated, The abbot of Reading had a seat here,
which was granted, in 1555, to Sir Francis Englefield,
and conveyed afterwards by the erown to William
Knollys, Viscount Wallingford, subsequently created
Earl of Banbury.

CHOPPINGTON, a township in the parish of Bes-
LINGTON, eastern division of CHEsTER ward, county
palatine of Duraawm, though locally on the east side of
the county of Northumberland, 4 miles (E. by 8.) from
Morpeth., The population is returned with the parish.
There is a bridge of four arches over the Wansbeck at
Sheepwash, in this township. ‘

CHOPWELL, a township in the parish of Ryron,
western division of CazsTER ward, county palatine of
DurnaM, 114 miles (W. 8. W.) from Gateshead, contain-
ing 287 inhabitants. This township contains some coal;
and at Black-hall, on the river Derwent, is a manufac-
tory for German steel, which is stated to bave heen first
carried on here by some emigrants from Germany.
Lady Liddell sapports & school for boys and anather
for girls. e e

CHORLEY, a township in the parishof Wirxsraw,
bundred: of MacoLrsrIzLD, county palatine of Cureres,
5} wmiles (N.W.by W.) from Macclesfield, i
478 inhabitanta, . . . .. i
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CHORLEY, a towniship in ‘th;})ﬂl‘lh of WakNBURY,
hundred of NanTwics, county palatine of Cuesrer, 5}
miles (W. by 8.) from Nantwich, containing 183 :inha-
bitants,

“CHORLEY, a matket town and parish in the hun-
dred of LEYLAND, county palatine of LANCASTER, 32
miles (S. by E.) from Lancaster, and 208 (N. W. by N.)
from London, on the road to Scotland, containing
7815 inhabitants. The name of this place is derived
from its situation on the river Chor, about a mile from
its confluence with the Yarrow, and either from the
Saxon word Ley, a field, or the fmmly of Ley, who
were its ancient propnetors "The town is pleasantly
situated on the summit of a considerable elevation, and,
though in Leland’s time described as “a wonderful poore
or rather no market,” has, from the excellent quarries
in the ne:ghbourhood and from the enterprising spirit
of its inhabitants, been rapidly. rising into considera-
tion and importance, and increasing in population and ex-
tent :_since the census of 1821, more than three hundred
bousés have been erected. The town is well lighted
with gas by a company established in 1819, who en-
larged and appropriated to that purpose some works
previously erected for lighting a private manufactory :
it. is amply supplied with water, which, under the
direction of & compeny formed in 1823, is conveyed by
pipes from a large reservoir, into which it is raised by
a steam-engine of twelve-horse power, from a spring
that affords an abundant sepply: from the elevated
gituation of the weservoir, the water descends with a
velocity sufficient to raise it to the roofs of the highest
buildings. The environs, in which are many elegant
mensions, sbound with pleasing and diversified sce-
nery : the hills: are rich in coal, slate, ashler, and mill-
stone. Mines of lead-ore and alum-shale exist in the
neighbourhood : - the lead mine is worked at Anglezark,
and contains an abundance of carbonate of barytes.
The principal branch of meanufacture is that of cotton,
which is carried on to a considerable extent ; the chief
articles are muslins and calicoes : there are large print-
ing and bleaching establishments on the banks of the
streams in the vicinity; many of the factories are worked
by water, and several by steam-engines of considerable
power, The Lancaster canal, and the Leeds and Liver-
pool canal, which unite to the south-west of Whittle le
Woods; pass within half 2 mile of the town. The market
i on Tuesday :. fairs are held on March 26th, May 5th,
and August 20th, principally for cattle ; and Septem-
her 4th, 5th, and 6th, for woollen cloth, hardware and
pediary. - The county wagistrates hold a petty session
for the division, once in five weeks, alternately with
Cuerdon, Leyland, Penwortham, and Rufford ; .and the
lord -of the wmanor holds a court leet once a year.
The ‘town-hall, a neat stone building, in the area under
which the market is- held, was erected in 1802, at
the sale. expense of the iate John Hollingshead, Esq. ;
the upper part contains a large room in which the petty
sesnigns are held, and a emaller for the transection of
mwhialbmtness adjoining it is a small prison for the
‘teinperary. confinement of -offenders prior to: tkei’r “oom-
"tol::ecountygml f

was - originally & Ohapelry in the ’hb
muum, from which it was sefmvated-in lm.whmehat
extensive parish was divided into three distinct parishés.
The liviug is urecwrynaein charge, in the ‘atchden-
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conry and diocese: of ‘Chester, and in‘the patronage of
the Rev. John Whalley Master, B.D.  The church, dedi-
cated to St. Lawrence, is an ancient stracture, retaﬁﬁng’
geveral features of Norman character, of which the
south entrance is a fine'specimen : it fornierly contained
a relic, said to be the head of its tuteldr saint, which,
according to a manuscript-in the British Museum, was
brought from Normandy by Sir Rowland Stanley, Knt.,
and presented to the parish by his brother, St. George's
church, completedin 1825, at an expense of £11,845.12.5.,
defrayed by the parliamentary commissioners, is a hand-
some and spacious structure in the later style of En-
glish architecture, with a square embattled tower, and
contains two thousand and twelve sittings, of which one
thousand five hundred and ninety are free. The living
is a perpetual curacy, in the patronage of the Rector of
Chorley. There are places of worship for Indepen-
dents, Wesleyan Methodists, Unitarians, and Roman
Catholics. The grammar school was originally esta-
blished by the churchwardens of the parish, who, in
1634, built a schoolroom, partly in the churchyard, and
partly in the yard of an adjoining tythe-barn ; it has a
small endowment, not exceeding £10 per annum, arising
from several subsequent benefactions, and a new school-
rnom was erected in 1824 : the course of instruction is
rather commercial than classical, and every scholar pays
a quarterage to the master, none being gratuitously in-
structed. A charity school, for which a new building
wasg erected at an expense of £ 600, raised by subscrip-
tion in 1824, is conducted on the National plan : there
are also similar schools in which about one thousand chil-
dren are educated. An almshouse was erected and
endowed, in 1682, by Hugh Cooper, Esq., for six aged
persons, who have each an apartment, a garden, and an
allowance of £2 per annum in money.

CHORLTON, a township in the parish of MavLras,
higher division of the hundred of BroxTon, county
palatine of CaesTeERr, 2} miles (W. by N.) from Malpas,
containing 124 ‘inhabitants., A quantity of Roman
coins, of the reigns of the emperors Valerian and
Posthumus, was dug up, in March 1818, by some work-
men, in a field in this township.

CHORLTON, a township in the parish of Wypun-
pURY, hundred of NaNTwICH, county palatine of Caxs-
TER, 64 miles (E. by 8.) from Nantwich, containing 91
inhabitants.

CHORLTON, a township in that part of the pa-
rish of Backrorp which is in the higher division of
the hundred of WinraLy, county palatine*of Cuza-
TER, 4% miles (N.) from Chester, containing 78 inha-
bitants.

CHORLTON, a chapelry in the parish of Maw-
CHESTER, hundred of SALroRrD, county palatine bf
LANCAsTER, 3 miles (8. 8. W.) from Manchester, ¢
taining, with Hardy, 624 inhabitants. “The living m
perpetusl curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese wf
Chester, endowed with £400 private benefaction, and
£600 royai bounty, aud in the patronage-of the Wardih
and Fellows - of ‘the Colleginte Church of Mufichester, -
In 1741, Margaret Usherwood be(melthed amo fm‘
clothing and teaching aix poer children.’ .

CHORLTON, « ehnpelry"in tha Mﬂh of.- Eev:‘
HALL, northern division-of ‘the hundred -of Pragmifi,
county of Sravvonn; 6} mﬁamw w) M Bk
hall, containing 237 itthabiitaiita,  Phe Tiving W ol
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petual cmracy, within the peculiar jurisdiction of the
Prebendary  of Eccleshall in the Cathedral Church of
Lichfield and Coventry, endowed with £200 private
benefaction, and £1000 royal bounty, and in the pa-
tronage of certain Trustees. The chapel, dedicatedpzo
St. Lawrence, had sixty free sittings recently erected in
it, towards defraying the expense of which the Incor-
porated Society for the enlargement of churches and
chapels granted £50,

CHORLTON-HILL, a township in the parish of
EccLesHALL, northern division of the hundred of
Pirgniiy, county of STa¥¥orp, containing 94 inha-
bitants,

CHORLTON-ROW, a chapelry in the parish of
MancuEesTER, hundred of SaLFORD, county palatine
of LANCASTER, containing 8209 inhabitants, It is si-
tuated adjacent to the town of Manchester, and consists
of several good streets, heing well lighted with gas,
paved, and amply supplied with water, and is inhabited
by many of the merchants and manufacturers of that
town, in the trade of which it greatly participates, there
being several large spinning mills in the chapelry. The
chapel, dedicated to St. Luke, was built by the late Rev.
Edward Smith, and opened in 1804 ; it is a small neat
structure of brick, with a turret. There are places of
worship for Independents and Wesleyan Methodists.
An infant school was established in 1825, in which there
are about two hundred children ; and there are Sunday
schools attached to the different places of worship.
This chapelry is within the jurisdiction of the court of
requests, for the recovery of debts under £5, held at
Manchester. The building lately erected for a town-hall,
dispensary, and constables’ dwelling-house, is described
in the account of Manchester, .

CHOULESBURY, a parish in the hundred of Cor-
TESLOE, county of BuckinGHAMm, 4 miles (N. W. by N.)
from Chesham, containing 132 inbabitants, The living
is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Bucking-
ham, and diocese of Lincoln, endowed with £8 per an-
num private benefaction, and £600 royal bounty, and in
the patronage of the Trustees of Mr. Neale. The church
is dedicated to St. Lawrence.

CHOWBENT, a hamlet in the parish of Licu,
hundred of WesT Dxrsy, county palatine of LaNcas-
kR, 24 miles (N. E.) from Leigh, containing 4145 inba-
bitants. A chapel, which formerly belonged to a con-
gregation of dissenters, was consecrated by Dr. Wilson,

“the. pious and benevolent bishop of Sodor and Man :
the living ds a donative, in the gift of Lord Lilford.
There is a place of worship for Unitarians, This is a
large village, in which the manufacture of nails is car-
ried on to some extent ; several carding-engines, spin-
wipg-frames, &c., were formerly made here, There are

twp faifs for toys, pedlary, &c., on June 29th and August
ﬁﬁ%*-@uﬁ. & market, formerly held by custom, has fal-

o %LEY, a township in the parish of CobpiNg-

pw, higher division of the hundred of BroxTon, county
palstinegof CuxsTer, 9} miles (8. E. by 8.) from Ches-
. CHRISHALL, a perish in the hundred of UrrLES-
n; connty of Esspx, 8} miles (W. by N.) from Sai-
Walden, containing 411 inhabitants, Tbe living is
Jarged wicarage, in the archdeaconry of Essex,
pese of London, vated in the king's books at
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£ 13, endowed with €200 private -bensfaction,  and
£200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Bishop
of London. The church is dedicated to the Holy Tri-
nity. L
CHRIST-CHURCH, county of MippLESEX.—Sce
SPITALFIELDS, ,
CHRISTCHURCH, a parish in the lower division
of the hundred of CaLpicorT, county of MoNMoOUTH,
24 miles (E. N. E.) from Newport, containing, with the
hamlet of Caerton-ultra-Poutera, 854 inhabitants, The
living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Llandaff, rated in the king's books &t
£13. 4. 2., and in the pa&onage of the Provost and Fel-
lows of Eton College. The church is a large and ele-
gant edifice, occupying an elevated situation. The
petty sessions for the lower division of the hundred are
held here, and also at Magor. The riva Usk partly
bounds this parish, in which there is an abundance of
limestone. :
CHRISTCHURCH, 4 bo-
rough, sea port, market
town, and parish, having
separate jurisdiction, lo- 47
cally in the hundred of g
Christchurch, New Forest
(West) division of the
county of SOUTHAMPTON,
211 miles (8. W. by W)
from Southampton, and 100
(8. w. by w.) from London,
containing, with the cha-
pelries of Bransgore, Hin-
ton, and the tythings of Street, Bure with Hinton, Hurn
with Parly, Iford with Tuckton (in Westover liberty),
and Winkton with Burton, 4644 inhabitants. This
place is of great antiquity, and, from some relics discover-
ed in the church, is supposed to have been of Roanan
origin ; by the Saxons it was called Twyncham-Bourne
and Tweon-ea, from its situation between two rivers.
The earliest historical notice of it occurs in the Saxon
Chrouicles, which records its occupation by Ethelwold,
during his revolt against his kinsman, Edward the
Elder. In Domesday-book it is mentioned, under the
name Thuinam, as & burgh and royal manor, contain-
ing thirty-one messuages. Its preseut name is derived
from its church and priory, founded prior to the Con.
quest for a dean and twenty-four Secular canons, and dedi-
cated to the Holy Trinity, which was rebuilt in the reign
of William Rufus, and dedicated to our Saviour Christ, by
Ralph Flambard, Bishop of Durham, and formerly dean
of the priory; it was largely endowed by Richard de
Rivers, Earl of Devon, to whom Henry 1. gave the manor,
Earl Baldwin, gon and successor to Earl Richard, placed
canons regular of the order of St. Augustine in this priory,
which flourished till the dissolution, at which time its
revenue was £544. 6. Some portions of the walls that
enclosed the conventual buildings are still remaining :
the ancient lodge is now occupied as a dwelling-house,
and the site of the refectory may be traced .by the
remnants of its walls.. The town was . fortified: by
Richard de Rivers, who eithex erected or rebuilt.ahe
castle, of which there are some remaing to the north of
the priory; these consist chiefly of the.ruins: of the
keep, on the sammit of an artificial mount, the walls of
which are more than ten feet in thickness, and part of
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the range that comprised ' the state epartmernts : the
Norman style of architecture prevails and the arches
of some remaining windows are divided by Norman
pillars.

Christchurch is situated on the borders of the New
Forest, and between the rivers Avon and: Stour, which
uniting their streams at a short distance below, ex-
pand into a broad sheet of water and fall into Christ-
church bay, in connexion with which they form a har-
bour. The current of the Aven, to the east of the town,
is intercepted and divided into two parts by an island,
from each side of which a brigge to the opposite bank
of the river forms the continuation of the road to
Lymington: on the site of several houses, destroyed by
a fire within the last few years, a new street of respect-
able houses has been erected: the town is not light-
ed, nor regularly paved, but is amply supplied with
water. The harbour is accessible only at high tides to
small vessels drawing not more than from five to six
feet of water, the entrance being obstructed by a bar, or
lodge"of aand extending from Hengisthury Head, on the
Hampshire snde, where Hengist, King of the Saxons,
landed, to St. Catherine’s Cliff, in the Isle of Wight, and
Dccasionally shifting its position, according to the pre-
valence of successive raing, o sea-storms, attended
with southerly winds. 1In this harbour, as in the
neighbouring port of Pool, there is high water twice
at every tide: this peculiarity arises from the situation
of the coast with respect to the Isle of Wight, and
from the projection of the point of land on which
Hurst Castle is situated, which, by vbstructing the free
passage of the water at the influx of the tide, occasions
its rise in the bay and harbour to take place earlier than
at Portsmouth and Chichester, by three hours and a
half at the full and change of the moon; and, by confin-
ing the water which has spread over the channel and
Southampton water, its reflux is sufficiently violent
to cause a second rise in Christchurch bay of nearly
three feet. The river Avon was made navigable to
Salisbury im 1680, but the accumulation of sand hus
rendered the navigation useless. The salmon fishery,
which formerly afforded employment to a considerable
number of the labouring class, has very much declined :
there are two breweries; and many females are em-
ployed in the knitting of stockings, and in the manu-
facture of watch-spring, or fusee, chains, the latter of
which has -been lately established. The market is on
Monday : fajrs are held on Trinity-Thursday, and Octo-
ber 17th, for cattle and horses. The government is
vested in & mayor, recorder, two bailiffs, aldermen, and
common council-men, iu all twenty-four; but theofficers
of the corporation do not exercise magisterial authority,
the town being wholly within the jurisdiction of the
peunty magistrates, The borough wes summorned in
the 85th of Edward I. and the 2nd of Edward II,, but
made no subsequont return till the 13th of Ehzabeth
sinoe. which time it has iy sent two members to

paxiisment ;: the right of -election is claimed by the
mﬁmw*homehnldeupayingwotmdlot but . is at
-prresent ghercised exclusively by the membere of the
coxperation, whommehemuofSuGemgeH
“Boge: the mayor.-is-the. mmrmgeﬁm Cmms Joet

sud baron-are hﬁdxhem v gD
‘Theliviag ds w»mugc; with. the.

: ‘cmwy
of _Holdenhurst annexed, in the archdeaconry and dio-
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cese of Winchester, rated in theking's books at £ 16, aid
in the patronage'of the Dean and Chapter of Wim:hester
The church, dedicated to the Holy Trinity, and anciently
the collegiate church of the priory, is a magn"iﬁcent
eruciform structure, partly in the Norman style, and
partly in the early and later styles of English architec-
ture, with a finely proportioned and embattled tower at
the west end, which was erected by the Montatutes,
carls of Salisbury, in the fifteenth century. The piers
and arches of the nave, which ia of Norman character,
are bold and simple ; the clercstory is of later date;

the northern entrance is a fine specimen of the ear]y,
and the chancel of the later, Engllsh style. The altar
is decorated with a rude, but mterestmg, representation
of the genealogy of Christ, carved in the style of the
age in which the church was founded: to the north
of it is a beautiful sepulchral chapel, built in the
reign of Henry VIL, by the celebrated countess of
Salisbury, who, in the 70th year of her age, was beheaded
by Henry VIIL.; and at the east is a spacious chapel,
dedicated to the Virgin Mary, erected in the fourteenth
century by the ancestor of Lord Delaware, over which is
a large room, called St. Michael's loft, which, since 1662,
has been appropriated to the use of the grammar
srhool ; there are some other chapels of fine execution,
chiefly in the later English style. The west front, prin-
cipally in the early style, in which a large and handsome
window has been recently inserted, is ornumented with
a figure of Christ in a canopied niche : the length of
this church is three hundred and eleven feet, its breadth
at the western extremity sixty feet, and along the
transepts one hundred and four feet. There is a place of
worship for Independents in the town ; and at Burton, a
mile and a half to the north, is a Roman Catholic
chapel. The free grammar. school is of uncertain foun-
dation : in 1707, it had an annuity of £25 for ninety-
nine years, payable from the Exchequer; since the
expiration of which, in 1805, the amount of various
benefactions, vested in the South Sea funds, produces
an income of £15 per annum, for which ten boys are
instructed in reading, writing, and arithmetic, by a
master, who occupies the room over the chapel at the
east end of the church. A Natienal and a Lancasterian
school, recently established, are supported by subscrip-
tion ; a.nd there are several charitable bequests for dis-
tribution among the poor. An intrénchment, six hundred
and thirty yards in length, extends across the isthmus
which connects Hengistbury Head, with the main Jand ;

and near its northern extremity is a largebarrow, in
which human bones and sn urn have been found. 0

a ridge of hills, about & mile and @ half to the north
of Christchurch, and a mile to the west of the Avop,
called St. Catherine's hill, are traces of an exploratéry

camp, fifty-five yards square, round which are six smgl)
tumuli ; . and near the base of the hill are ten igh
barrows, one of which has been discovered t¢ coita

human hones. To the north of the camp is an ¢lfiptical
earthwork, of which the greater diameter i thh‘ty&ﬁe
and the less twenty-five, yard! the : nlw other
intrenchments may be traced in

- CHRIST -CHURCH, By
(thhvm‘i)on of the bundred-of | L phise
e borough of SOUTHWARK, o
taining 13,309 thitante, “the 3
the archdesconry of Surrey, @nd dic
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The Trustees of Mr, Marshall's chgrities were patrons in
1609, 'This parish, situated on the south side of Black-
frisrs' ‘bridge, was anciently termed’ the liberty of Paris
Garden, and formed a, part of the parish of St. Saviour
yatil 1706, when it was made a distinct parish by act of
pacliament. It constituted a portion of the borough of
Southwark under a charter of Edward VI., though the
inhabitants cannot vote for its parlismentary members,
in consequence of having allowed the privilege to fall
into disuse, The parish is within the jurisdiction of the
‘court of requests for the town and borough of Southwark,
established by an act passed in the 22nd of George I1.,
for the recovery of debts under 40s. In 1718, a school
for boys was cstablished in Blackfriars’ road; and in
1720, & school for girls was added to it, both by sub-
scription : the echool-room belonging to the former was
eniarged, and that belonging to the latter rebuilt, in 181 9,
when the Lancasterian systern was introduced: they
)@have a permanent endowment of about £150 per annum,
and the annual amount of subscriptions, &c., is upwards
of £300 more: & few children of each sex are clothed.
Almshouses for forty-four poor persons are endowed
with nearly £300 per annum, arising from property
given by Edward Edwardes, in 1717. Haptor's alms-
houses, founded by Charles Hopton, in 1780, are en-
dowed with about £500 per annum, affording an asylam
to twenty-six poor men. There are various charities for
general purposes, all of minor amount except Marshall’s
charity, founded by John Marshall in 1627, and pro-
ducing nearly £900 per aunum; Hammerton's, produc-
ing £230 per annum ; and Boyse's, producing £160 per
annumn,

CHRISTIAN-MALFORD, a parish partly in the
hundred of CurpreNHAM, comprising the chapelry of
Avon, but chiefly in the northern division of the hun-
dred of DamernAM (of which it is a detached portion),
county of WiLts, 55 miles (N.E. by N.) from Chippen-
ham, and containing 896 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Wilts, and diocese of
Salisbury, rated in the king's books at £27, and in the
patronage of the Bishop of Bath and Wells. The church
is dedicated to All Saints. There is a place of worship
for Independents. The origin and name of this large
parish are involved in obscurity, though it was evidently
of greater importance in former times than it is st pre-
sent; but tradition says that the Saxons having been
defeated by the Danes in this neighbourhood, the place
being before called Melford, from the badness of the

sege across the river, it assumed the prefix of Chris-
m for having proved disastrous to the former. The
willage is built near an old ford on the Avon, which here
torns a fulling-mill. There is a National school for
ldien of both sexes,

CHRISTLETON, a parish in the lower division of

wndred of BroxrTax, county palatine of Carsreg,
duing the townships of Christleton, Cotton-Abbots,
v-¥dmund's, Littletor, and Rowton, and containing
Migbitants, of which oumber, 701 are in the town-
igtlaton, 24 miles (E. by 8.) from Chester.
restory, in the archdeaconry and diocese
rated ju 's ‘hooks 3t £39. 5., and in

e, TAl e king'

ironage of Sir Thomas Mostyn, Baxt. The church,
St. James, existed prior to the Conquest :
s been wholly rebuilt of brick, but the stone
8 the date 1530. There is a place of worship
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for Wesleyan Methodists, This place formed, at the
‘time df the Normam survey, a part of the basony of
Malpas, at which period it is suid to have been very
populous ; it continued: of some importance, avd. was
fortified for the parliament, having been made the bead-
quarters of Sir William Brereton; but on the siege of
Chester being raised, in February 1645, it was, in a sally
of the citizens, very nearly destroyed by fire. The
Chester and Eliesmere canal passes close to the village.
In 1779, John Sellers, of Littleton, left a smell bequest
for teaching poor children; and a school-house was
built in 1800, principally by a bequest from John
Hignett, Esq.

CHRISTON, a parish in the hundred of WiNTER~
STOKE, county of SoMerseT, 5 miles (N.W,. by W.) from
Axbridge, containing 55 inhabitants. The living is a
discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Wells, and
diocese of Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books at
£6. 1. 8., and in the patronage of Montague Gore, Esq,
The church is principally in the early style of English
architecture,

CHRISTOW, a parish in the hundred of WoNrorp,
county of DEvON, 53 miles (N.N.W.) from Chudleigh,
containing 531 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Exeter,
rated in the king's books at £8. 6. 8., endowed with
£200 private benefaction, and £200 royal bounty, and
in the patronage of Viscaqunt Exmouth. The church,
dedicated to St.James, has a Norman font, and somg
fine screen-work across the nave and aisles. In this
neighbourhood are many excellent cherry orchards
Pope House is said to have been a cell to the priory of
Cowick, near Exeter,

CHUDLEIGH, a market town and parish in the
hundred of ExminsTER, county of Devon, 9 miles
(8.8.W.) from Exeter, and 182 (W.S.W,) from London,
containing 2053 inhabitants, This place, anciently called
Chidleighe, was formerly the residence of the bishops of
Exeter, who had a sumptuous palace, of which ‘here
are some small remains. In the year 1309, Bishop
Stapleton procured for it the grant of a weekly market
and an annual fair. During the parliamentary war,
the army under General Fairfax was quartered in this
town : in 1807, nearly half of it was destroyed by fire,
the loss of property having been estimated at £60,000
value, The town is pleasantly situated on an eminence
near the eastern bank of the river Teign, and consists
principally of one long street; the houses are in general
modern and neatly built, and are well supplied with
water : the environs are pleasant, and abound with
woodland scenery. The trade, which consisted prin-
cipally in the manufacture of woollen cloth, bas lately
declined : extensive guarries of good marble and ex-
cellent limestone, which abound in the vicinity, afford
employment to many ef the inhabitants ; and the neigh-
bourhood is famed for cider of superior quality. The
market is on Saturday : the fairs, chiefly for cattle and
sheep, are on Easter-Tuesday, the third Tussday and
Wednesday in June, and Qctober 2nd, unless it falls on
Baturday, Snnday, or Monday, in which cese it is post-
poned till the Tuesday following. ‘The living is.a vicar-
age, in the peculiar jurisdiotion of the Bishop offixeter,
rated in the king's books at £21, and in the patromege
of the parishioners possessing frechold property to-the
amount of £5 per annum. The church, which. is small
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and not entitled to architectural notice, in dedicated
to St. Martin. - There is a place of worship for Inde-
pendents. The free grammar school wes founded, in
1668, by Mr. John Pynsent, of Combe, in the county of
Surrey, who built the schoolroom, with suitahle accom-
modations for the master, and endowed it with & rent-
charge of £30 perannum, founding also three exhibitions
for ite benefit at Cambridge, of £5 each, tenable for four
years. There is also an endowment of £5 per annum for

teaching poor children; and a National school, recently.

established, is supported by #ubscription. Half a mile
from the town is Clmdlexgh Rock, a stupendous mass of
limestone, in which is a cavern of considerable extent ;
and near it are very perfect remains of an elliptical en-
campment, sppposed from its form to be of Danish
origin, but, from its proximity to a Roman road, to have
been previeusly occupied by that people. The quarries
yield nrgxllaceous slate ; antimony and cobalt may be
found in the neighbourhood, and*many organic remains
have been discovered. Chudleigh confers the title of
baron on the family of Clifford.

CRULMLEIGH, a market town and parish in the
hundred of WitrERIDGE, county of Devon, 214 miles
(N.W.) from Exeter, and 194 ({W.by8.) from London, con-
taining 1506 inhabitants. This place, anciently called
Chimleighe, is not connected with many evente of hislu-
rical importauce: in the reign of Henry IIL, John
de Courtenay, Earl of Devonshire, obtained for it the
grant of a weekly market. During the parliamentary
war, a skirmish took place here between the royalists and
the parliamentarians, in 1645. The town, a considerable
portion of which was destroyed by fire in 1803, is situ-
ated on an eminence rising gently from the eastern bank
of the river Taw : the houses, with the exception of a
"~ few which are modern and well built, are low and
covgred with thatch ; but there is an ample supply of
water. Though formerly a place of considerable trade
for wool-combing, it does not now possess any par-
ticular branch of meanufacture. The market is on Fri-
day : fairs are held on the third Friday in March, the
Wednesday in Easter week, and the last Wednesday in
July.” A portreeve, whose office is merely nominal, and
other officers, are appointed annually at the court leet
and baron of the lord of the manor. The living is
rectory, in the nrchdeaconry of Barnstable, and dmcese
of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £20.18. 14.,
and in the patronage and incumbency of the Rev, George
Hole: in the church are five prebends, endowed with
glebe and a portion of the tithes of the parish, wviz,,
Brookland, rated at £4. 8. 4.; Denes, at £4. 6. 8.;
Higher Heyne, at £5. 13. 4. ; Lower Heyne, at £5; and
Penels, at £5 ; they are distinet from the rectory, but
are now held with it, the advowson both to the rectory
-and the prebends havmg been in the family of the pre-
sent rector since 1773, when they were purchased from
the Duke of Beaufort, then lord of the manor. The
church, dedicated to St. Mary Magdalene, was damaged
by lightning in 1797; it 'is an ancient smd ‘spacious
structure in the decorated style of English architecture,
with e sfuare embattled tower ; -the interior is fine, and
contains an ancient screen of ok vichly carved, There

are places of worship for Independents and Wesleyan.
X v nmkaolﬂ-mdmdby’

Methodists. A small ¢

M. Pyncomhe with: £ 10 pwmum,for%h'hwéﬁon
of/ nnvem boys and swelve girls.
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CHUNAT, a township in the pavish: of Grossoe,
hundred of Hiee Peax, county of Dnnmr, 74 miles
(N. by w.) from Chapel en le Frith, conummg 148 in-
habitants.

CHURCHAM, a parish partly in the lower dmvioiﬂrh‘
of the hundred of DupsTone and King's Barton, but
chiefly in the hundred of WxsTBURY, county of GrLov-
CESTER, 4} miles (W. by N.) from Gloucester, contain-
ing, with the hamlets of nglmam, Over, and Linton,
733 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, in the arch-
deaconry of Hereford, and diocese of Glpucester, rated
in the king's books at £20. 5., and in the patronage of
the Dean and Chapter of Gloucester The church, de-
dicated to St. Andrew, is a small edifice, with some
remaing of Norman architecture, There is a chapel of
ease at Bulley, in this parish.

CHURCHDOWN, a parish in the upper division of
the hundred of Dupstong and King’s BARTON, county
of GrLoucesTER, 3§ miles (E. by N.) from Gloucester,
containing, with the hamlet of Hucklecot, 954 inhabit-
ants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdea-
conry and diocese of Gloucester, endowed with £400
private benefaction, £400 royal bounty, and £400 par-
liamentary grant, and in the patronage of the Dean and
Chapter of Bristol. The church is dedicated to St. Bar-
tholomew. The village is singularly situated on the top
of an oval eminence, nearly four miles in circuit at the
base, and rising from the vale to the height of about
two thousand five hundred feet. The Gloucester and
Cheltenham railway passes through the parish. There
are two charity schools, for boys and girls, supported
by an endowment of about £25 per annum, devised in
1734, by H. Window, Egq.; and four almshouses, for
four poor widows, are endowed with about £4 per an-
num each. John Harmer, Professor of Greek in the
University of Oxford, author of & Life of Cicero, a Greek
Etymological Dictionary, and other learned works, was
born here; he died in 1670. His father, who died in
1618, master of Winchester school, and one of the
translators of the Bible, appears to have been minister
of this parish,

CHURCH-END, a township in that part of the
parish of SueNLEY which is in the hundred of New-
PoRT, county of BuckinemAM, containing 225 in-
habitants.

CHURCHENFORD, a hamlet in the parish of
Crurcu-Stanton, bundred of Hemyock, county ef
Drvon, 94 miles (N.N. E.) from Honiton. The popu-.
lation is returned with the parish. The village is noted
for its excellent cider ; there are cattle fairs on the 25th
of January and the 6th of March,

CHURCHFIELD, a hamlet (formerly a. chnpalry) in
the parish of QunbpLE, hundred of PoLEBROOKE, county.
of Norruamrron, 2§ miles (W.) from Oundle,:
which the pop!xhtxon is returned. The chapel has
demolished. S

CHURCHILL, a parish in the bhundred: of ‘Camape
LINGTON, county of Ox¥omp, 3 miles (8. W. by W) from
Chipping-Norton, containing 665, inhahim d
ing is a discharged vicarage, in :
diocese of Oxford, rated in the king's
endowed with £200 private
bonnty, and in the
is dedicated to Al g:intl.

' eating'ind, clothing: girls.



enY

it thie Nundred 6f Wisrgn.

ping 894 fnbabitants. The living is a
iracy, within the jurisdiction of the pecu-
w\u‘t of Banwell/st ‘Wells, endowed with £200
Wsﬁmaw&mion, £200 royal hounty, and £1400 par-
Himentary grailt, and in the patronage of the Dean and
CGhmpter of ‘Bristol. The church, dedicated to St. John
the Baptist, is 2 handsome structure, with an embattled
tower, and contains a fine altar-piece representing the
Farid’s Suppetr and several interesting monuments. This
it a very ancient place, occurring in old deeds under the
names of Curichill, Cheuchiil, and Cherchill : immediately
aftér the Conquest it was held by Roger de Leon, who
chime over with the Conqueror, and who appears to have
assumed the name of Courcill, or Carcelle, from this pro-
perty ; he is said have been the remote ancestor of
John Churchill, the great Duke of Marlborough. On a
very high point of the Mendip range of hills, above the
village, is an old encampment, called Dolherry Castle,
forming a parallelogram of five hundred and forty
yards by two hundred and twenty, and enclosed by a
ditch, varying from sixteen to thirty feet in depth, on all
sides but the south-east, where the steepness of the
hill rendered it unnecessary; within it many Roman
and Saxon coins and some fragments of weapons have
been found. In 1820, James Symons, Esq. left threc
acres of land, directing the income to be applied to the
education of eight poor children ; there are several be-
nefactions for the relief of the poor.

CHURCHILL, a parish in the lower division of the
hundred of Harnrsmire, county of Worcester, 3%
miles (N. E. by E.) from K1ddcrmmster, containing 141
inhabitants, The living is a discharged rectory, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Worcester, rated in
the king's books}at £5. 6. 8., and in the patronage of
Lord Lyttelton. The church is dedicated to St. James.
Hére is a chalybeate spring, which was formerly much
frequented.

. CHURCHILL, a parish in the lower division of the
hundred of OswaLpsLow, county of WORCESTER, 53
miles (E. by 8.) from Worcester, containing 102 mhu-
bitents. The living is a discharged rectory, in the
archdenconry and diocese of Worcester, rated in the
king's books at £13. 6. 8., and in the patronage of
Lord Lym:elton The church is dedicated to St. Mi
ehnel v

QHUR(’}HOVER a parish in the Rugby division
of the bundwed of Kn1emTLOW, county of WARWICK,
t}miles (N. by £.) from Rugby, containing 322 inha-
bitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
of . Uaventry, and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry,
rated s the king's books at £15, and in the patronage
0 iy Giimes, Esq. The church, dedicated to

y, is 8 small edifice with¥a spire and
%e river Swift runs through the parish.
Y pa'riﬁh in the hundred of
‘ll thiles (N by E.) from

'I‘he churoh is dedlcnted
fdmveen free sittings have

s 'mmwued Sobmty for' the

aent of
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.clmrches and - ohnpels granted £80;: ’l‘hm fs a small

éndnwed school,

'CHURCHSTOW, a pm'xsh in the hundred of S'rut-
nonoucn, county of Drvow, 14 mile (N. w. by W)
from Kingsbridge, containing 316 inhabitants. ' The
living is a discharged vicarage, annexed to that of
Kingsbridge, in the archdeaconry of Totness, and dio-
cese of Exeter, rated in the king’s books at £16. 16, 11.,
endowed with £ 200 private benefaction, and €200 royal
bounty. The church is dedicated to St. Mary. The
great tithes, which formerly belonged to the ahbot of
Buckfastleigh, are now vested ip the Dean and Chapter
of Excter. The river Avon bounds the parish on the
north-west,

CHURCH-TOWN, a chapelry in that part of the
parish of WHALLEY which is in thelower division of the
hundred of BLACKBURN, county palatine of LANCASTER,
4% miles (L.) from Blaekburn, contuiining 752 inhabit-
ants, The living is a perpetnal curacy, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Chester, endowed with £10
per annum and £200 private benefaction, £200 royal
bounty, and £700 parliamentary grant, and in the pa-
tronage of Earl Howe. The chapel is dedicated to St.
James. There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Me-
thodists.

CHURSTON-FERRERS, a parish in the hundred
of Ilavror, county of Devon, 14 mile (N.W.) from
Brixham, containing 726 inhabitants, The living isa
perpetual curacy, annexed to the vicarage of’ Brixham,
in the archdeaconry of Totness, and diocese f Exeter,
and in the patronage of the Crown. The church con-
taing an ancient wooden screen. This parish lies on
the coast of the English channel, having the navigable
river Dart running along its western side, and Torbay
bounding it on the north. * There is an almshovse for
seven poor people.

CHURTON, a township in that part of the parish
of Arprorp which is in the higher division of the
hundred of Broxron, county palatine of CHESTER, 44
miles (8, E. by 8.) from Chester, containing 210 m{ha-
bitants,

CHURTON, a township in the parish of FARNDON,
higher division of the hundred of Broxron, county pa-
latine of CHESTER, 7 miles (8. by E.) from Chester, con-
taining 117 inhabitants, The river Dee bounds this
township on the west.

CHURTON, or CHIRKTON, a parish in the hun-
dred of SwANBOROUGH, county of Wivts, 44 miles
(N.E. by E.) from East Lavington, contuining, with the
tything of Conock, 401 inhabitants. The living is &
discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese ‘of
Salisbury, rated in the king's books at £11. 0. 5., lmd
in the patronage of the Crown. :

CHURTON-HEATH, or BRUERA, a chapehy i
that part of the parish of ALprorp which is i’ the
lower division of the hundred of BroxroN, county palu:
tine of CuxsTER, 5§ miles (S.E. by 8.) from Chester
containing 8 inhabitents. The living is a perpetval

curacy, annexed to the vicurage of St. Owwald, ity of
Chester, in the archdepconry and dicoese: ofGhester.

The chapel, dedicated to St. Mary, is a very wnifent
structure, with a Norman arch between the Have'shd
the chancel, and-a rich Norman door at the south
end; various carved stonu are connpimm »hi the
walls.

3N
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CHURWELL, a township in that part of the parish

of BATLEY which is in the wapentake of MorLEY, West
riding of the county of Yorx, 3 miles (8. W. by.8.)
from Leeds, containing 814 inhabitants, who are chiefly
employed in the manufacture of woollen cloth. - There
is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.

CHUTE, a parish in the hundred of KiNwaArD-
STONE, county of WiLts, 34 miles (N. E.) from Ludgers-
hall, containing 459 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage,
in the peculiar jurisdiction and patronage of the Preben-
dary of Chute and Chisenbury in the Cathedral Church
of Salishbury, rated in the king's books at £11. The
church is dedicated to St. Nicholas. Jeremy Corderoy,
a divine of some celebrity in the seventeenth century,
was born here: there is a small endowment for the
instruction of children,

CHUTE-FOREST, an extra-parochial district, ia
the hundred of KiNwARDSTONE, county of WiLys, 43
miles (N, E. by N.) from Ludgershall,” containing 144
inhabitants.

CIPPENHAM, a liberty in the parish and hun-
dred of BurNHAM, county of BuckiNcuam, 2% miles
(N. W. by N.) from Eton. The population is returned
with the parish. This is said to have been a place of
residence for the Saxon kings; but it is more certain
lthat hede-was a palace for the monarchs of the Norman
ine. :

i, “CIRCOURT, a joint chapelry with Goosey, in that
;part:of the parish of Stanrorp in the VaLe whick is

iin the hwkdred of Ocx, county of Berks. The popu-
fation is returned with Goosey, .
\ CIRENCESTER, an un-

incorporated borough, mar-
ket town, and parish, in the
hundred of CROWTHORNE

and Mi~NeTY, county of
{ GLOUCESTER, 17miles ($.E.)
from Gloucester, and 88 (W.
o by N.) from London, con-
/ taining 4987 inhabitants,
Prior to the arrival of the
Romans, this was a British
city, culled Caer Cori, the
; town on the river Corin,
now Churn, which the Romans converted into a military
station, denominated Corinium : this station, from its
situation near the intersection of the Fosse-way with
the Brmin and Iknield strects, was one of cousider-
sble extent and importance; vestiges of the vallum
and rampart are yet visible on the south-eastern side
of the town, where Roman inscriptions, tesselated
pavements, coins, urns, vases, the remains of an hypo-
<aust, and various fragments of masonry, have been
found;: The Saxons added the name Ceaster, of which,
andiits Roman name, the present is a corruption. It
wes -the metropolis of the Dobuni, an ancient British
tribe, from whom, in 577, itswas taken by Ceawlin, King
of Wessex; in 656 it was annexed to the kingdom of
Merdis; and; in 879, the Danes undet Guthiam, after
their memarable defeat by Alfred, in the battle of Ethan-
gﬂ%,&kt;)red hithier, where they remain eli‘éo:h a‘ 3;&!',

uring the progress of the negociations which: led 'to
their conversion to C‘bmtianitye.gzd‘their settlement in
she island, Cinute the Grest held a council here
“in 1020, when, accerding to the Saxon Chronicle, * Al-
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dermen Ethelward  was outlawed, snd Edwy, Kiag of
the Churls,” In the war betwoen Stephen and Matilda,
Cirencester castle, of which the earliest notice then
oceurs, being garrisoned by Robert, Earl of . Gloucester,
on the part of Matilda, was taken and burnt by the
king's troops, in 1142 ; having been rebuilt, it was after<
wards parrisoned by the disaffected barons against
Henry II1., but was taken by the king, who issued his
warrant for its immediate demolition. The wall and
gates that defended the town continued entire for some
time afterwards. In 1322, Edward II. spent the fes-
tival of Christmas here, and soon afterwards convened
an assembly of his nobles, to devise means for crushing
the conspiracy formed by Thomes, Earl of Lancaster,
and other barons, against his favourite, Hugh le Despén-
cer; and the whole of the royal army was subse-
quently assembled here. Early in the reign of Henry IV,
the Dukes of Albemarle, Surrey, and Exeter, and the
Earls of Gloucester and Salisbury, with other persons
of distiuction, eutered into a conspiracy to assassinate
the king, and restore the deposed monarch, Richard IL
Henry being informed of this, led an army against
them, when some of the principal conspirators, with the
forces under them, retired to Cirencester, where they
encamped : here they were attacked by surprise by the
townsmen ; and the Duke of Surrey and the Earl of Sa-
lishury were taken and immediately beheaded, on which
the troops dispersed. Henry subsequently granted the
town u charter for the encouragement of trade, which,
after u conutested dispute in Chancery, was cancelled in
the 37th of Elizabeth, The explosien of hostilities
against Charles 1. is stated to have occurred in this
town, by a personal attack upon Lord Chandos, who
had been appointed to execute the commission of array
on behalf of the king; and it was soon afterwards
garrisoned for the purliament. Having been assaulted by
Prince Rupert, it was captured, after a sharp conflict of
two hours, on the 2ud of February, 1642; but was
recovered for the parliament by the Earl of Essex, on
the 16th of September in the following year: it again
fell into the hands of the royalists, but was ultimately
surrendered to the parliament. On the landing of the
Prince of Orange, in 1688, the inhabitants, influenced
by the Duke of Beaufort, declared for James II.; and
Lord Lovelace, on his march through the town, with a
party to join the prince, was attacked by Captain
Lorange, of the county militia, made prisoner, and sent
to Gloucester gaol ; in this encounter flowéd the firs
blood that was shed in the revolution. ‘
The town is pleasantly sitnated, and consists of four
principal, and several smaller, streets, It was formerly
of much greater extent, the walls having enclosed an
area of two miles in circuit. The houses, which dre
chiefly of stgme, are well built, and many of the: xems
respectable wdetacbed: the town is lighted;: and the.
foot-paths paved with small stones ; it-is wel} supplied.
with water. There is a society, called' the Cirencesiar
and Gloucestershire Agricultural Associntion : reces.ase
held annually near the town. . But little trade, is cuprie
on, the cloth manufucture, formerly extensive, hafvi
declined: sowme knives of & peculiar and superior quplity
are made for the use of curriers;. and thereare ¥l .
carpet-manufactory and two breweries. - The: T
and Severn canal passes in the vicinity, and s by
it up to the town, - The market is o
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for;corn and provisioms; end on Frida provisions
only; thelatter-was formnerly -midmﬁef?;r wool, but,
#inee the decline. of the woollen manufacture; is much
-neglmed- ‘Pairs are held on Easter-Thureday, July 18th,
.and November 8th; and statute fairs on the Monday
before; and ‘the Monday  after, October the 10th. The
borough is within the jurisdiction of the county magis-
trates, who hold petty sessions here for the seven hun-
dreds of Cirencester, which comprise nearly a fourth
part of the county. A court of requests, for the re-
covery of debts uader 40s., established by act of par-
liament in 1792, is also held for the same division. A
court leet is held annually, at which the steward for the
manor appoints two high, and fourteen petty, constables,
two of the latter being for each of the seven wards into
which the horough is divided. By charter of incorpy-
ration granted by Henry IV., Cirencester was consti-
tuted a separate hundred, which was co-extensive with
the borough, but this charter having been set aside in
the reign of Elizabeth, it has merged into the adjoin-
ing hundred. The borough sent representatives to a
great council in the 1ith of Edward IiL, but did not
gequire the permanent privilege of returning two bur-
gesscs until the year 1571, by graat from Elizabeth :
“the right of election is vested in the resident house-
holders not receiving alms, except “inhabitants of the
abbey, and Emery and Spiringate-lane,” about five hun-
dred in number, and in the interest of Earl Bathurst:
the steward and bailiff of the manor are the returning
officers.

The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Gloucester, and in the patronage of the
Bishop of Gloucester, The church, dedicated to St.
John the Evangelist, is a magnificent structure in the
decorated style of English architecture, crected in
the fifteenth century, with a lofty embuttled tower
crowned with pinnacles; its interior and exterior are
richly adorned in the most elaborate style, and it con-
tains several chapels of exquisite beauty, and many
gepulchral monuments. A fund, producing £267. 9. 4.
per annum, was bequeathed for keeping it in repair.
Two other churches, one dedicated to St. Cecilia, and the
other to St. Lawrence, have long since been desecrated,
There are places of worship for Baptists, the Society of
Friends, Wesleyan Methodists, and Unitarians. The
free grammar school was founded by Bishop Ruthal;
the original endowment was augmented by Queen Mary,
with £20 per annum, payable out of the Exchequer;
the master is appointed by the Lord Chancellor. The
Blue-coat school, established by subscription in 1714,
was afterwards endowed by Thomas Powell, Esq. with
% 15+per annum, part of an annuity issuing from the
Eaxchequer for ninety-nine years, and & moiety of the re-
‘aimpiieiof Maskelyne's estate, to which L&_)rd Chan-
‘eelier, 1 1787, added £20 per annum, it of property
eft for dhiaeitable uses by Mrs. Rebecca Powell, and, in
1744, 'with the interest of £662.7. 6., asa proyisional
- supply-after the expiration of the anmmity: the income
s about £60 per amnum. The Yellow-coat school was
forinded, in 1737, by Mrs, Rebecca Powell, who endowed
“irdop thedpstruction of twenty boys of Cirencester, in
‘wealilng, writing, arithmetic, and frame-work knitting,
wiylfor clothing and teaching twenty girls: it is under
i ence of trustees,andthe annual income is
W¥.6 320+ the-entire amount appropriated #or schools

m

in- this parish ie sbout £ 870 per aonum. St.John's
hospital, for three men and three women, was foumded
by Henry 1., and endowed with land and reserved rente
amounting to between £30 and £40 per annum,
St. Lawrence's hospital, for a master and two poor wo-
men, was founded in the time of Edward III., by Edith,
proprietress of the manor of Wiggold ; it has a‘small
endowment, and is under the control of Earl Bathurst.
St. Thomas' hospital was erected by Sir William Not-
tingham, attorney-general to Henry IV, and endowed
with £6. 18. 8. per annua, which is divided hetween
four persong. In 1620, Mrs. Elizabeth Bridges founded
an almshouse, with a small endowment, which has been
subsequently augmented; and there are various minor
bequests for the benefit of the poor, and for appren-
ticing children.

Henry I, in 1117, built an abbey for Black canons,
in honour of the Blessed Virgin Mary, which he and his
successors richly endowed, insomuch that, in the 26th
of Henry VIIL, its revenue was estimated at £1051.7. 1.:
it was a mitred abbey: the remains consist of two gate-
ways and a lurge barn.  In a field called the Querns, to
the west of the town, near the Roman wall, are the
remaing of an amphitheatre.  Grismond's Tower, a cir-
cular hill abont a quarter of a mile westward, was dis-
covered, on examination, to be a Roman tumulus, con-
taining several large urns full of ashes and burnt bones.
Richard of Cirencester, author of u History and Itinerary
of Britain in the time of the Romans; Thomas Ruthall,
Bishop of Durham, and counsellor to HenryVI1L.; and
Culeb Hillier Parry, M. D., eminent in his profession,
and father of the celebrated navigator, were natives of
this place.

CLACK, a hamlet in the parish of LiNenam, hun-
dred of KINGsBRIDGE, county of WiLTs, 5% miles (8.w.)
from Wootton-Bassctt. The population is returned
with the parish. Fairs are held on April 5th and Oc-
tober 10th, for horned cattle, pigs, sheep, horses, and
cheese.

CLACKHEATON, a chapelry in the parish of Bin-
sTALL, wapentake of MorLey, West riding of the
county of York, 51 miles ($.8.E.) from Bradford, con-
taining, with the hamlets of Scholes and Oskenshaw,
2436 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of York, endowed with
£540 private benefaction, £ 600 royal bounty, and £400
parliamentary grant. Miss Currer was patroness in
1805. The chapel is called White chapel : another
is now being erected, under the late act for building
additional churches, the patronage of which will be in
the Vicar of Birstall. The village is situated in-a fine
fertile valley, stretching from north to south, the aceli-
vities on both sides being well wooded : it has recently
undergone great improvement, and several elegant villas
have been erected in the vicinity. There are meeting-
houses for Independents and Moravians. Worsted,
coarse woollen goods, and machinery for carding and
spinning, are manufactured here. Coal abounds in
the ncighbourhood, and is wrought to- some -extent.
Here stood a small Roman town, the name of which is
unknown, and every vestige of it has been obliterated
by the plough, S

CLACTON (GREAT), a parish in the hundred of
TENDRING, county of Essex, 144 miles. (8.E, by B.) from
Colchester, containing 1075 inhabitants, The living is «
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discharged vicarage, with Littlc Holland, in thearchdes..

canry of Colchester, and diocese of London, rated in the
king's books at €10, and in the patronage of ¥. Nasasn,
Esq. The church is dedicated to St. John the Baptist,
There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. The
bnshups of London had formerly a palace here. This
parish is bounded on the south by the North ses, awl
contains three Martello towers and a battery for the
defence of the coast. A fair for toys is held on ‘the
29th of June,

CLACTON (LITTLE), a parish in the hundred of
TenbriNG, county of Essex, 124 miles (E.8.K.) from
Colchester, containing 494 inhabitants. The living is a
dncharged vicarage, in the archdencom'y of Colchester,
and diocese of London, rated in the king's books at
£6. 13, 4., and in the patronage of F. Nagsau, Esq. A
fair for toys is held on the 25th of July.

CLAIFE, a township in the parish of HAWKESHEAD,
hundred of Lonsparg, north of the sands, county pa-
latine of LancasTer, 2 miles (S.E.) from Hawkeshead,
containing 452 inhabitants. This placc is bounded on
the east by Easthwaite water, and on the west by the
beautiful lake of Windermere, which at this point is
only a quarter of a mile in breadth, and across which
there is a constant ferry for horses and foot passengers.
Here is a charity school, founded in 1766, by a bequest
of £309 from William Braithwaite, now producing
£16. 16. per anmum,

. CLAINES, a parish in the lower division of the
{mndred of OswarpsLow, county of WORCESTER, 23
miles (N.) from Worcester, containing, with the tvt}ung
&f Whistons, 3853 inhabitants. The living is a per-
petual curacy, in the peculiar jurisdiction of the Bishop
of Worcester, endowed with £200 private benefaction,
#nd:£900 parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of

ir H. Wakeman, Bart. The church is dedicated to St.

bhn the Baptist. A chapel is now heing erected, hy a
grant of £3345. 10. 8. from the commissioners under
the act passed in the 58th of George 1L, for building
additional churches and chapels, to contain seven hun-
dred snd twelve sittings, of which three hundred and
ﬁftyeight will be free. Here is a school with an en-
dowment of £7. 7. per annum. The Birmingham caunal
passes on the south of this parish ; and the Droitwich
canal, on the north, passes along the western boundary,
where it forms a junction with the Severn. The an-
cient hospital of St. Oswald was founded here prior to
12688. On the sgite of the mansion of White Ladies was
the Benedictine nunnery of Whitestone, or Whistons,
tounded by Walter de Cautelupe, Bishop of Worcester,
in:w1255 : to this house Charles II. retired after the
decisive battle of Worcester. In this parish is the island
of ‘Bevere, formed by the rivalet Beverhern, remark-
‘ahle as having twice afforded refuge to the inhahitants
of Wnrcester first, in 1041, from the fury of King
Hapllicanute, on account of their refusing to pay the
Dapegelt and next, in 1637, from a dreadful pestilence
then raging in the city.

CLANABOROUGH, a parish in the bundred of
Non'm Tawren with WinkLEY, county of Davow, ¢
wmilss: (8 by N.) frem Bow, containing 56 mhabitanﬁs.
The Tiv g is a rectory, in the archdeaconry pf Barny
staple, and diocese of Fxeter, rated in the king's hpoks
M.£5:17. 8§, 0nd in the tronage of the Cumvn ‘The
qlnrch e duflicated to St &tmc
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. CLANDON (EAST), a parish: in_¥he pecopd. Alivhy -
sioaof the hundrell of ’;Nolmm sonty. of -Sunnmy, ¢
amiles ‘(E. N. £.) from Guildford, containing 230 mhubm

ants. 'l‘hehvmginnrecw:-y,mmw viof-
Surrey, and dwt;pse of Wi ter, xated, i the kmg;
books at £10. § wg andin the patvgmge of Lord
Ki T

n(‘;;LANI)ON (WF’ST), ® pansh in the aecond dwuwn,
of the hundred of Woking, connty of SurrEy, 3 miles.
(N.E. by E)) from Guildford, countaining 361 inhabit«
ants. The living is a rectory, in ghe ‘archdeaconry of
Surrey, and diocese of Winchester, rated “in the king's
books at £13. 10, and in the patronage of the Kar] of
nslow.

CLANFIELD, a parish in the hyndred of Banp-
ToN, county of OXrorp, 5 miles (E.N.E.) from Lech-
lade, containing 490 inhabitants. The living is a dis-
charged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese. of
Oxford, rated in the king's books at £7. 6. 54., endowed
with £200 private benefaction, £200 royal bounty, and
£300 parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of the
Crown, The church is dedicated to St. Stephen.

CLANFIELD, a parish in the hundred of Fincu-
Dean, Almn (South) division of the county of SouthH-
AMPTON, 53 miles (8. W.) from Petersfield, containing
196 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, annexed to that’
of Chalton, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Win-
chester, rated in the king's books atg£ 11, The church
is dedicated to St. James.

CLAPCOT, a liberty in that part of the parish of
ArruaLLows, WALLINGFORD, which is in the hundred
of MorgToN, county of BEnks, containing 38 inha-
bitants.

CLAPHAWM, a parish forming, with the parishes of
Milton-Ernest and Oakley, a detached portion of the
hundred of StoppEwN, county of Beprorp, 24 miles
(N. W. by N.) from Bedford, containing 204 inhabitants.
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry
of Bedford, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
books at £5. 13. 4., endowed with £600 private bene-
faction, and £600 royal bounty, and in the patronage of
the Earl of Ashburnham. The church, dedicated to St,
Thomas 2 Becket, is a very ancient structure, with &
Norman, or Saxon, tower remarkable for the simpli-
city and rudencss of its architecture. Clapham was
formerly a chapelry in the parish of Oakley; the in-
habitants still bury there, Here are charitable dona-
tions, producing £20 per annum, for thc purpose of -
apprenticing hoys.

CLAPHAM, a parish in the eastern division of the
hundred of Brixron, county of Surrky, 4 miles (8.
from London, containing 7151 inhabitants. This-vil
lage has, for many years, been considered 8s. one nf
the most respgetable in the environs of the metrn) :
The road fi London, icularly that:]
which is cal® Clapham Il{);:: has on exch. % Jarge
and handsome houses, with gardens and.dawns ixi fros,
forming a continuous line leading to thé commen, # ok
ocoupies a space of two hundred acweg, MM
noble mansions and elegant villas; and, from ‘$he
1mprovements that have besh “wiide by the
of carriage drives, and e . tion. o
native trees and shrubs,. W ﬁhﬁ
s park. .On. the: ¢a . mide q
been, veputly fwmed,




W with' evergreens, and- the
flom’ the eotaman;is formed By a bandnome

i y:"ﬁm o which il ® state]y man-
sion. Jm shat'part efthe parish sibuated towards
Brixton, wbich: was formerly ‘called Bleakhall Farm,
considersble aiterations ‘and improvements are taking
placet new rowds have beén made; a new®church and
several villes have been erected, and the spot is now
deeignated Olapham New Park. The parish, previously
watched and lighted under an act of parliament ob-
tained in 1785, is now within the limits of the new
police establishment ; the road from London is lighted
with gas, main pipes having been laid down by the
Pheenix gas company, from which a plentiful supply
is dietributed to every part of the village and its
vicinity.. The inhabitants are supplied with water
from the South Lambeth water-works, and from an
excellent spring on the. side of the common lead-
ing to Wandsworth, opened in 1825, near another
which had sapplied the villuge for more than a cen-
tury : this spring, the water of which is peculiarly
soft, supplies upwards of six hundred hogsheads per
day, and nearly twenty familics derive employment und
support by conveying it to the houses of the inha-
bitants at & moderate expense. The subscription li-
brary, to which a commodious reading-room has heen
added, contains a wgll-assorted and extensive collection
of volumes, in various branches of literature; it has
been established for nearly half a century, and is li-
berally supported. There is no trade except what is
necesgary for the accommodation of the numerous opu-
lent familics residing in the ncighbourhood. Clapham
is within the jurisdiction of the county magistrates,
who hold a petty session at the office of their clerk,
every Saturday ; and within that of the court of re-
quests for the borough of Southwark, for the recovery
of debts under £5, which, by an act passed in the 32nd
of George 111., was extended to this parfsh, in common
with-other places in the eastern division of the hun-
dred-of Brixton, not previously included. The acting
covoner for the district is appointed at the court of
the duchy of Lancaster, within the jurisdiction of
which a part of the parish is comprehended : the
parochial affairs are under the direction of a select
vesatry.

The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of
Buyrey, und diocese of Winchester, rated in the king's
books at £6. 0. 10., and in the patronage of William
Atkins, Esq. The church, dedicated to the Holy Tri-
nity, and which anciently belonged to the priory at
Merbon, . was,: With the exception of the north aisle,

weiighwiis left standing for the performance of the bu-

‘ mﬂ 4ve. taken down under an act of parliament in
“ : ‘ e church erected in thcﬁowing year,
¥ , of £11,000, on the noftside of the
j:m neat structure of brick ornamented

oRd; W fiviy dome turret, and having a hand-
eq-of stone, extending the whole width of
svestern front, which was added to it in 1812. The
o i cdiizacteriglid by a chaste simplicity of style:
it windew is pepamentell with a modern and well
iglass, aud . there are some mopu-
.30 persop i8-buried either in the
d; the. ceinetery of ithe ald church
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being exclusively reserved for interments, . The vemains.
ing aisle of the old church, which was situated ity that
part of the village leading to Wandsworth, and near
the old manor-house, of which an octagonal tower .is
still remaixiing, was taken down in 1815, and a mneat
proprietary chapel, in some respects dependent an the
mother church, was erected, under an act of parlia-

ment, at an expense of £5000, and dedicated to St.

Paul, ' The burial-ground, which is spacious, contains

many ancient tombs and monuments ; &nd such of the
latter as were in the old church have been put up

against the exterior walls of the chapel. A proprietary

cpiscopal chapel, dedicated to St, James, has recently

been erected at Clapham New Park, under an-act of

parlinment ; it is a small handsome structure, in

the later style of English architecture, with a, square

cmbattled tower crowned with pinnacles..  There

are two places of worship for Independents, and one

for Baptists. The parochial school is supported by

subscription : the premijses were originally built at the

cxpense of the inhabitants, on ground given for that

purpose by Richard Atkins, Esq., lord of the manor;

the school-house was taken down and rebuilt in 1781,

and in 1809 it was considerably enlarged : upwards of

two hundred children now receive instruction,

CLAPHAM, a« parish in the bhundred of Bricat-
FORD, rape of BraMueRr, county of Sussex, 5 miles
(E. by 8.) from Arundel, containing 245 inhahitants.
The living is a discharged rectory, in the archdea..
conry and diocese of Chichester, rated in the king's
books at £14, and in the patronage of R. W. Walker,
Esq.

CLAPHAM, a parish in the western division of the
wapentake of STAINCLIFFE and Ewcross, West riding
of the county of York, comprising the townships of
Austwick, Clapham with Newby, and Lawkland, and
containing 1889 inhabitants, of which number, 9082 are
in the township of Clapham with Newby, 6 miles (N. W,
by w.) from Settle. The living is a discharged vicar-
age, in the archdeaconry of Richmond, and diocese of
Chester, rated in the king's books at £5. 17. 1., en-
dowed with £ 200 private bencfaction, and £200 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of the Bishop of Chester,
In 1711, George Ellis bequeathed property now let for
£89 per annum, out of which he directed £6. 13. 4. to
be paid to a schoolmaster, for teaching twenty children
of Clapham and Newby; the residuc, after deducting
trifling sums for books, and aunual cxpenses to the
trustees, is paid to the minister for preaching two ser-
mons every Sunday : there is a school-room at Newhy,
and another, built by subscription in 1824, at Claphgm,
for the purposes of this charity, which has been ang-
mented to upwards of £15 per annum by the subse-
quent bequestz of Henry and Grace Wingecburn. . A
fair for sheep is held on the 21st of September, ="

CLAPTON, a parish in the hundred of ArRMING-
rorD, county of CamsBriDGE, 6 miles (5. E. by 8.),
from Caxton. The population is returned with the pa-
rish of Croydon. The living is & dischayged rectory,
consolidated with the vicarage of Croydonjin the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Ely, rated inthe king's books
at £4.9.7. : AR

CLAPTON, a chapelry in the. parish of Bourroy
on the Waren, lower division 'of the hundred of
SLAUGHTER, county of GLOUCEETER, 43 wmiles (N.E.)
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from North Leach, containing 118 inhabitants, The
chapel is dedicated to St. James. ‘ Ny

CLAPTON, a hamliet in the parish of 8r. Jomw,
HacknNgey, Tower division of the hundred of Ossur-
STONE, county of MippLEsEX, 3 miles (N. by E.) from
London. The population ie returned with the parish,
1t is divided intp Upper and Lower Clapton, and extends
from Hackney church to Stamford Hill : the houses, in
general well built and respectable, are supplied with
water by means of pipes leading from & reservoir at
Lower Clapton, belonging to the East London Water
Works Company, into which it ia conveyed from the
river Lea by a steam-engine. A proprietary chapel was
built 4t Upper Clapten in 1777, which has lately been
enlarged. There are places of worship for Independents
and Wegleyan Methodists. The London Orphan Asy-
lum, founded in 1813, for the maintenance and educa-
tion of destitute orphans, is a_handsome building of
light-coloured brick, consisting of a centre and two pro-
jecting wings, with a lawn in frent and gardens behind,
situated on a gentle elevation at Lower Clapton, at the
distance of one hundred yards from the road: the num-
ber of children in this institution at the general annual
meeting held on the 25th of January, 1830, including
boys and girls, was three hundred and thirty-four.

CLAPTON, a parish in the hundred of Navisrorp,
county .of NORTHAMPTON, bF aailee (B N E) from
Thrapston, containing 94 inhabitants, The living ie a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Northumpton, and dio-
cese of Peterborough, rated in the kiug's books at
£17. 3. 9, and in the patronage of W. P. Willianix, Esq.
The church is dedicated to St, Peter.

CLAPTON, a tything in the parish of MipsuMMER-
Norton, hundred of CHEWTON, county of SOMERSET,
63 miles (N.by E.) from Shepton-Mallet, containing 106
inhabitants.

CLAPTON, a parigh in the hundred of PorTnuny,
county of SoMERSET, 9% miles (W.) from Bristol, con-
taining 157 inhabitants. The living is a discharged rec-
tory, in the archdeaconry of Bath, and diocese of Bath
and Wells, rated in the king's books at £10. 9. 2., and
in the patronage of Mrs. Colston and others, The
church is dedicated to St. Michacl.

“CLARE, a market town and parish in the hundred
of RasprIpGE, county of SUFFOLE, 18 miles (8.8 W.)

m Bury St. Edmund’s, and 554 (N.E.byN.) from
London, containing 1487 inhabitants. This place, which
is of great antiquity, derived considerable importance du-
ring the Saxon Octarchy from being on the frontier
of the kingdom of East Anglia; and after the Conquest
it was_distinguished for having given the title of earl to
the family of De Clare, and that of duke to Lionel, third
son of Edward IT1., who was created Duke of Clarence.

49ihe south of the town are the ruins of a castle, for-

méfly the baronial residence of the earls of Clare, and
~‘equal to any of ‘those structures in feudal grandeur and
maguificence : the site of the fortifications, which may
be -distinetly traced, comprehended an area of thirty
acres, divided jpto an outer snd an inner ward, of which
" the latter only was enclosed by walls; the whole was
surpounded with{§ 'deep fosse: on the summit of a high
mount, evidently,of ‘artificial construction, are ‘the re.
mains of the ancientikeep, a circular building of flints,
strongly cementéd with mertar, ‘and st¥engthened with
bntﬁresses,‘w
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Which, from iteisituation near the fromtier, ig fice, built by Seywell,
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squ’beed to have been-erected either priot to or during
the Octarchy., Thé town is sitdiated on the river Stour;
which separates this county from Eesex, on the south:
the houses are in generdl of mean sppearance, and the
streets, though pacions, are beither paved nar lighted;
the inhabitants are amply ‘supplied with water, and the
approaches to the town are/gradually imptoving. The
market i8 on Monday: the fairs are’ on Easter-Tues.
day and July 26th, chiefly for toys and pedlary, The
county magistrates hold petty sessions for the division
here: the courts baron of Erbury, and Stoke with
Chilton, and a court for the duchy of Lamncaster, are
also held.

The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdea.
conry of Sudbury, and diocese of Norwich, rated in ‘the
king's books at £4. 18. 9., and in the patronage of the
King, as Duke of Lancaster. The church, dedicated tc
St. Peter and St. Paul, is a large, handsome, and ancient
structure, chiefly in the decorated style of English ar-
chitecture, with a square tower, strengthened with but.
tresses, and of an earlier date than the body: the in-
terior, which has been improved by the heightening of
the nave, and the addition of side aisles, is richly or-
namented, and contains an octagonal and elegantly de-
signed font in the later English style, and a brass eagle,
on 4 pedestal, with wings displayed, forming the reading-
desk : in the chancel are said to have been interred the
remaing of Lionel, Duke of Clarence, who died in 1368,
at Piedmont, and is supposed to have been born here,
but therc is no monument to his memory, There are
places of worship for Baptists and Independents. Mr,
William Cadge, in 1669, bequeathed a farm, now let
for £60 per annum, appropriating £10 per annum to a
master, for teaching ten poor boys, and £15 per annuam
to the clothing of eight or ten poor widows, A Sunday
school, for children of both sexes, is supported by sub-
seription; and there are several charitable bequests for
distribution among the poor, who have also the privilege
of depasturing forty milch cows on a piece of land
granted by Queen Mary for that purpose. To the sauth-
west of the town are the remains of Clare priory, fodrded
by Eluric, or Alfric, Earl of Clare, for Secular ¢anons,
which Gilbert de Clare, in 1090, gave to the Benedictine
abbey of Bec in Normandy, to which it was a cell till
1124, when his son Richard removed the monks to the
village of Stoke. Joan d’Acre, daughter of Edward L.;
and wife of Gilbert de Clare, who was & great benefac-
tress to this establishment, is traditionally said to have
been interred in the chapel, which has been converted
into abarn: the priory, now a private residence, though
it has undergone considerable repairs and aiterations,
still retaing much of its original character. . A ewhus®
tery for Augustine monks is said to have beén founded
here in 1248 but by whom is not known,
north-west uﬁe town are evident marks of
camp. :

CLAREBOROUGH, a parieh i
division of the wapentake of Bmd@l-u
Norrineuam, 2§ miles (N. B by B)-
containing 1929 inhabitants. -
vicarage, in the archdeacgriry
cese of York, rated in"tHe ’
and in the patronage’of the Puke'c




CLA

Chesterfield canal passes through the parish. At Bolam
are the remains of an ancient chapel, and some caves
hesg();b in the rock, in which many of the inhabitants
reside, - ] B

. CLARENDON.PARK, an extra-parochial liberty,
in the hatdred of ALpERBURY, county of WiLts, 34
miles (€, by 8.) from Salisbury, containing 183 inha-
bitents, Here were anciently two palaces, termed the
King's and the Queen's. At a very remote period this
was a royal chase and residence: here Edward the
Martyr spent the day preceding his assassination in

hunting; Henry II. frequently kept his court here, and

in 1164 held the council which enacted the celebrated
edicts, called “The Constitutions of Clarendon,” defin-
ing the limits of ecclesiastical authority in England :
Richard, John, and Henry III., often resided at this
place; and in 1357, when the plague was raging in Lon-
don, and in many of the principal towns in the kingdom,
Edward III., with his royalprisoners, the kings of France
and Scotland, passed the summer at his palace of Cla-
rendon, of which no part is now standing, save a lofty
wall.  The park was enclosed by act of parliament in the
sixteenth of Charles I1., and granted to General Monk,
who had been created Duke of Alhemarle; and ia the
same reign Clarendon gave the title of earl to Ed-
ward Hyde, a native of Dinton, in this county, Lord
High Chancellor of England, ancestor of the queens
Mary 11 and Aune, and author of the History of the
Rebellion. The Roman way from Winchester to Old
Sarum passes through this liherty.

‘CLARETON, a township in the parish of ALLERTON-
Mavieverenr, upper division of the wapentake of
CrLaro, West riding of the county of York, 5} miles
(E.N.E.) from Knareshorough, containing 14 inhabitants.
Claro hill, which gives nume to the wapentake, i in this
township; it is supposed to have been the place on
which the Wittenagemote, or public mectings of the
distriet, were anciently held.

- CLAREWOQOD, a township in the parish of Cor-
BRIDGE, eastern division of TiNvaLe ward, county of
NogravumagrLAND, 8BS miles (N. E. by E.) from Hex-
ham, ¢ontainivg 62 inhabitants. ’
CLATFORD, a chapelry in the parish of PRESHUTE,
hundged of SELKLEY, county of WiLTs, 14 mile (W.8.W.)
from Mavlborough. The population is returned with
the parich, The living is a perpetual curacy, in the
archdeaconry of Wilts, and diocese of Salisbury, and in
the patvemage of the Provost and Fellows of Eton
ollege,  An Alien priory to the abbey of St. Victor in
Caletg, in Normandy, was founded here by Sir Roger
Mortimer;. in the time of William the Conqueror, and
granted. by Heury VL. to Eton College. In the valley
" ‘ﬁgatford Bottom is a large cromlech.
UBATFORD (GOODWORTH), a parish in the hon-
FaxwweLL, Andover division e county of
paiw, 2 miles (8.) from AnddWE, containing
¢ The living is u discharged vicarage,
atotery and diocese of Winchester, rated in
at £10, and in the patronage of Colonel
ch

iz dedicated to St. Peter.
R PPER), 8 parish in the hundred of
wx, Andover divigion of .the county of Sours-
4, -milé (8.)from Andover, containing 370
The 1 ﬁ“}%is 8 reetory, in the archdea;
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inchitister, rated in the king's

CLA.
books at £22, and in the patronage of R. Willis, Esq.
The church is dedicdted to All Saints.” A school ia sap-
ported by charitable donations producing £9 per’ an-
num. The Andover canal crosses this parish. =

CLATTERCOTT, an extra-parochial liberty, in the
hundred of BaNBURY, county of OXForp, 6 miles (N}
from Banbury, containing 8 inhabitants. Here was,
in the reign of John, a small religiou#f house of the
Sempringham order, dedicated to St. Leonard, and
once an -hospital for lepers, which, at the dissolution,
consisted of a prior and four canons, whose revenue was
estimated at £34. 19. 11, per anuuvm. .

CLATWORTHY, a parish in the hundred of Wiy
L1TON and FREEMANNERS, county of SoMerseT, 4 miles
(N. W.) from Wiveliscombe, containing 280 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Taunton,
and diocese of Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books
at £13.10. 5., and in the patronage of J. Bernard, Esq.
The church is dedicated to St. Mary.

CLAUGHTON, a joint township with Grange, in
the parish of Binstong, lower division of the hundred
of WirraLL, county palatine of CuesteEr, 94 miles
(N.by E.) from Great Neston, containing, with Grange,
119 inhabitants.

CLAUGHTON, a township in the parish of Gar-
sTANG, hundred oi AMOUNDERNESS, county palatine
of LaNcastek, £ miles (8.8.E.) from Garstang, con-
taining 943 inhabitants. The linen manufacture has
been established here of late years.

CLAUGHTON, a parish in the hundred of Lows.
DALE, south of the sands, county palatine of LANCAsTER,
74 mileg (N.E.byE.) from Lancaster, containing 1923
inhabitants. The living is a discharged rectory, in the
archdeaconry of Richmond, and diocese of Chester,
rated in the king's books at £9. 13. 10., and in the pa-
tronage of Thomas Fenwick, Esq.  The church is dedi-
cated to St. Chad. The river Lune passes through this
parish, Here are several quarrics of flag-stone. Near
Claughton Hall, an ancient building in a dilapidated
state, are the remains of a Roman Catholic chapel.

CLAVERDON, a parish in the Henley division of
the hundred of Barricuway, county of Wanwick,
34 miles (E. by8.) from Henley in Arden, containing,
with the hamlets of Langley and Pindley, 683 inhabitants.
The living is o discharged vicarage, with the perpetuaal
curacy of Norton-Lindsey anuexed, in the archdeaconry’
und diocese of Worcester, rated in, the king's books at
£5. 12, 1., endowed with £200 private benefaction,
and £200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the
Archdeacon of Worcester. The church is dedicated to
St. Michael. John Matthews, about the year 1526, gave
£12. 12. per annum for the instruction of children,

CLAVERING, a parish in the hundred of CLAvER-
iNG, county of Essex, 74 miles (N.W.byN.) from
Stansted-Mountfitchet, containing 1081 inhabitants.:The
living is a vicarage, with the perpetual curacy of Lang- .
ley annexed, in the archdeaconry of Colchestery,
and diocese of London, rated in the king's books at”
£22.13. 111, and irr the patronage of the Archbishop
of Canterbury. The church is dedicated to St. M
and St. Clement. The river Stort hag its source in this
parish, which is crossed algb by the rivér Darenth.  Here
are remains of the keep and moat of the ancient castle
of the Claverings, a family which became extinct in thé
reign of Edward 111,
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CLAV ERLEY, # parish in theFFales-Owen division
of the hundred of BriMsrrEg, county of Sirgr, 64
foiles (&) from Bridgenorth, contsinjng - 1805 imha-
bitants. The living is ‘& perpetoal cura &wjﬁhm the
jurisdiction of the court of the royal pec -of Bridge-
north, endowed with £200 private benefaction, £200
royal bounty,ggnd £ 1200 parliamentary grant, and in
the patron Thomas Whitmore, Esq. The church
is dedicated to All Saints. A free school was founded,
in 1659, by Richard Dovey, who endowed it-with an
cstate for the education of fourteen boys; and, in 1702,
John Sanders devised £5 a year for clothing them.
Richard Bennett, in 1794, left £100 in aid of this cha-
rity, the total annual income being £36.5. There are
three small tenements appropriated for poor families.

CLAVERTON, a parish in the hundred of Ham»rroN
and Craverron, though locally in the hundred of
Bath-Forum, county of Somerser, 24 miles (B, 8 LK)
from Bath, cnntammg 187 inhabitants. The living is a
dlscharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Bath, and
diocese of Bath and Wells, rated in the king’s books at
£10. 6. 10}.,and in the patronage of John Vivian, Esq.
“"This is a pretty retired village, separated from Bath
by a hill round which the Avon winds its course; it is
situated in a romantic valley, environed by bold and
beautifully wooded hills, through which passes the Ken-
net and Avon canal. Here is a small endowment, be.
queathed by Ann Tucker, with which, and some trifling
subscriptions, sixteen poor children are educated. In
the reign of Henry II1. a grant was obtained, whereby
Claverton and the village of Hampton were t\meted
from the jurisdiction of the hundred, and constituted a
liberty, which is now within the jurisdiction of the
court of requests held in the city of Bath, for the re-
covery of debts undex £10. Graves, the author of the
Spiritual Quixote, was rector of this parish.
© CLAWRPLWYF, a hamlet in the parish of My-
NYDDOYSLWYN, lower division of the hundred of WENT-
Lroo@, county of MonmovuTH, containing 1250 inha-
hitants.

CLAWTON, a parish in the hundred of BLack Tor-
RINGTON, county of Drvon, 34 miles (8.) from Hols-
worthy, containing 534 inhabitants. The living is a
discharged perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of

Totness, and diocese of Exeter, endowed with £ 1600
parlmmmtary grant, and in the patronage of the Rev.
T. Melhuish, jun. There is good stone for building in
this neighbourhood.

* CLAXBY, a parish in the Wold division of the
Kupgdred of CALCEWORTH, parts of Linnsky, county of
LintoLn, 3 miles (8.) from Alford, com.ammg 97 inha-
~bitants, The living is a discharged vicarage, united to
the rectory of Well, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Lincoln, réted in the king’s books at £5. 3. 1. The
clifwrh, dedicated to St. Andrew, is a ¢mall thatched
l,vmldmg without & cemetery. A fine spring has its
. songree from a chalk hill in the centre of the parish, and

Ms eastward. Here are vestiges of a Roman camp,
and several tumuli covered with trées.

CLAXBY, n parish in the northern division of the
wapentake of W ncnon-, parts of Linpsky, county
wi LrncoLn, 4 " (N.) from Market-Rasen; éontain-
/i 164 inbabitants.  The living is a discharged rectory,
5 which- the remry “of Ngrmanby onthe Wolds was

united in 1780, dn b srchdéncoms

‘b4

and diocse of Lin: . ‘8f the parish oHCr.
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«cofn rated in the ding's hooks 4t £8. 10. 10,, ‘and in
the patronage of R: Atkincon, Esq.  The church is.de-
dicated to St, Mary.

CLAXBYuPLUCKAChE a parish in the hihdred
of Hivy, parts of Linpsey, county of Lmdom« 5%
miles (8. E. by E.) from Horncastle, co S8 in-
hebitants. The living ir a dlscharged rectory,‘ in’ the
archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
hooks at £6. 10. 10., and in the patronage of Henry
Dymoke, Esq. The chureh is dedicated to St. Andrew,

CLAXTON, a township in the parish of GrRzATHAM,
north-eastern division of Stockton ward, county pala-
tine of Durnam, 7 miles (N. N, E.) from Stockton upon
Tees, containing 38 inhabitants. This place gives name
to an ancient family, from which Thomas Claxton, a
celebrated antiquary, was descended,

CLAXTON, a perish in the hundred of Lobpon,
county of NorroLK, 74 miles (8. E. by E. ) from Norwich,
containing 160 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, in
the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich,
endowed with £200 parliamentary grant, and in the
patronage of Sir Charles Rich, Bart. The church is
dedicated to St. Andrew. There is a place of worship
for Baptists.

CLAXTON, a township in that part of the parish of
Bossair which is in the wapentake of Buumgkr, North
riding of the county of York, 84 miles (N.) from York,
containing 135 inhabitants. The petty sessions for the
division are held here.

CLAXTON, or LONG CLAWSON, a parish in the
hundred of FramMLAND, county of LEicesTER, 6 miles
(N.N. W) from Melton-Mowbray, containing 678 inha-
hitants. The living iz a discharged vicurage, in the arch-
deaconry of Leicester, and diocese of Lincoln, rated
in the king's books at £9. 10, 2., and in the patronage of
Lord F. Osborne. The church is dedicated to St. Remi-
gius. 'There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Metho-
dists. Here are two free schools, toward the endowment
of which Anthony Wadd gave certain lands, in 1758,
now producing a considerable income : for the reme
purpose, in 1772, Mrs. Briggs bequeathed £100, and
the Duke of Rutland gave £21 towards the eregtion of
a schoolroom.

CLAYBROOKE, a parish comprising the chapelry
of Little Wigston, the townships of Great Claybrooke and
Little Claybrooke, the liberty of Bittesby, and'the hamlet
of Ullesthorpe, in the hundred of Gn'rnmx'ron, county
of LErcksTER ; and the hamlet of Wibtoft, in the Kirby
division of thc bundred of KnNigHTLOW, ‘coynty " of
Warwick, and containing 1312 inhabitants, of whick
number, 458 are in the township of Great Claybmm :

a vxcarage in the archdeaconry of Lelceste: #hil digy
of Lincoln, rated in the kingls books ag;
and in the gptronage of the Crown."'
dedicated to St. Peter, is partly in the
partly in the luter, style of Enghsh apely
ie a small endowment fora boys W
ther for girls, is principally
mily. At a place termed Hig
ward, is the intérsection ‘of ti
which - traverse the km?gdtvm 5
Roman station Benont, or Fénha
UIAYBROOKE“( PEYLAE )



oﬁﬁmummwmtgmf Lewgzeren,d miles (N, w.
by N,). from Latterworth, containing 54 ishabitants,

7 CLAYDON, a chapelry jn that part of the parish of
Croprepby which is in the hundred of Bansury, county
of Oxvorp, 6§ miles (N.) from Banbury, containing
25@.inhabitants. The village is the most northern in
the county; a small spring which rises in it has the
peculiarity of emitting the largest quantity of water in
the driest weather. The inhabitants enjoy the privilege
of sending fifteen children to the free school at Farnbo-
rough, in Warwickshire. Here are found the pyrites
aureus, or golden fire-stone; also the asteria, or star-
stone, called by Gesner “ sigillum stelle,” from its use in
sealing : in splitting some of these, the figure of a rose
is plainly discernible in the centre.

CLAYDON, a parish in the hundred of Bosmerz
and CLaypon, county of SurroLk, 34 miles (N. N. W.)
from Ipswich, containing 328 inhabitants. The living
is a rectory, united to that of Akenham, in the arch-
deaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated in
the king's books at £10. The church is dedicated to
St. Peter: the churchyard is tastefully laid out as e
garden. The Stow-Market and Ipswich navigation
crossges this parish,

CLAYDON (EAST), a parish in the hundred of
AsHgnoon, county of BuckiNemam, 2§ miles (8. w.
by w.) from Winslow, containing, with Bottle-Claydon,
339 inhabitants. The living is a discharged vicarage,
in the archdeaconry of Buckingham, und diocese of
Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £7. 17., and in
the patronage of Mrs. Verncy. The church, which was
dedicated to St. Mary, was demolished during the par-
linmentary war, by Cornelius 11olland, one of the judges
who sat upon the trial of Charles I. In 1673, Maurice
Griffith left a trifling endowment for the cducation of
two, boys, and for apprenticing one of them every six
years.
‘CLAYDON (MIDDLE), 8 parish in the hundred of
ARHENDON, county of BUuckiNGuAM, 4 miles (W, 8, W.)
from Winslow, containing 160 inhabitants. The living
is 8 rectory, in the archdeaconry of Buckingham, and
diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £15,
and ‘in' the patronage of Mrs. Verncy. The church,
dedicated to All Saints, contains 8 monument to the
memory of Sir Edward Verney, standard-bearer to
Charles 1./ who was killed at the battle of Edge-Hill, in
1642. Almshouses for six poor widows were built,
in. 1696, by Sir Ralph Verncy, but they have no cn-
Jaowment.

o CIAYDON (STEEPLE), a parish in the hundred
dioupty of BuckINGHAM, 53 miles (W.) from Wins-
¥aining 804 inhabitants. The living is a vicar-
the arcéhdeaconry of Buckingham, and diocese of
“vaded in the kiy's books at £13. 3. §.,, and in
“of Mrs. Verney. The ct%ch is dedica-
hael. Thomas Chaloner,"Egq., in 16586,
bouse, and endowed it with £12 per an-
dowment having been lost, the pro-
(eatate pays to the schoolmistress two
fak. At the period of the Conquest, this
Popoltns place in the hundred : in an

an earthen vegsel, filled with coins of

cus, hag been discovered, ,

) 'pmsb in the hundred of Bamp-
{,4% miles (£.by N.) from Bamp-
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ton, contammg:Jewanuabitants. Thélivingjéa rops
in the archdeaconry and. diocese of . Exetet, rated:
king's books ut.£.16. 7. 34., snd in the patronagants
Harrison, Esq. ., The church -containg a- rood-laft and
an ancient wooden screen ; it formerly helonged . to' the
Knights Templars, who had-a pregeptory here.- A:cha-
rity school was founded, in 1747, by Hinnah Nutcombe
Bluett, with an endowment of £3 p#¥annum, which,
by the subsequent gifts of John Norman and Bucklabid
Nutcombe Bluetl; in 1785, has been increpsed to
£7. 10., that sum being poid to a schoolmistress for
teaching as many children as choose to apply.

CLAYHEDON, a parish in the hundred of Hem-
YOCE, county of DEVON, 4 miles (8. 8. E.) from Welling-
ton, containing 822 inhabitunts. The living is a rec-
tory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Exeter, rated
in the king's books at £38. 5., and in the patronage
of the Rev. W. Clarke. The church is dedicated to S,
Andrew. A charity school was endowed with £110, by
Mary Waldron, in 1749, producing £7. 10. per annum,
for teaching children of this parish and the parish of
Hemyock, :

CLAY-LANE, a township in the parish of Norrtn
Wingriewn, hundred of ScaArspaLEe, county of DErpy,
54 miles (8.) from Chesterfield, containing 465 inhabit-
ants,

CLAYTOLE, a parish in the wapentake of Love-
DpEN, parts of KesTEVEN, county of LaNcoLn, 5 miles
(8. B.) from Newark, containing 605 inhabitants. The
living is & rectory in medicties, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Lincoln; the north mediety is rated in
the king's books at £16. 8. 4., and the southat £15. 15.;
they wre in the patronage of J. Plumtre, Esq. .. The
church, dedicated to St. Peter, is an ancient structure,
with a tower surmounted by a spire. There is a place
of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. Charles Gret-
ton, in 1727, endowed a school for the instruction of
ten boys, with a rent-charge of £ 9 per annum, subject
to a deduction of £92. 10.

CLAYTHORPE, a chapelry in the parish of Bgwr-
LrAvy, Marsh division of the hundred of CaLceworTh,
parts of LiNDsEY, county of LincoLN, 4 miles (N. w,
by w.) from Alford, containing 57 inhabitants, .

CLAYTHORPE, a hamlet in that part of the parigh
of Burton in KenpaL which is in Lonspare wared,
county of WesTorLAND, 1 mile (N. E. by N.) from’
Burton in Kendal, with which the population is’ re-
turned. About a mile from the village is Farlton Knot,
8 buge limestone mountain, resembling in form the rock
of Gibraltar: on the edge of another mountain is. g ni-
tural curiosity, called Claythorpe Clints, consisting'of &
limestone rock, forming an inclined plain to the horigon,
deeply rent in many places by the supposed. ebbing of
a great body of water, or the retiring of the ocean, by
which it is conjectured that this, with some other
plains in the peighbourhood, was once coyered.

CLAYTON, a liberty in the parish of Stoxx upon,
TrenT, northern division of the hundred of Pranuiuy,
county of STAFrorD, 2 miles (8. by E.) fram Newcastle
under Line, containing 152 inhabitants.. - .

CLAYTON, a parish in the hungdred of Burrine.
HiLy, rape of Liwges, county of Sussex, 24 -miles
(8. 8. .) from Hurst-Pierrepoint, containing 463 inhabit.
ants. The livingis & rectory, with the perpetusl turdcy
of Kevmer annexed, in‘the-mcndmom%«ﬁfmp&,md
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2 parish in the Hale
o e ey o
m living is & perpetual cn hin the
north, endowed with £ private benefaction, £200
royal bounty, | £1200 parliamentary graot, and in
the Thomas Whitmore, Esq. The church

is dedicated to All Saints. A free school was founded,
in 1659, by Richard Dovey, who endowed it-with an
estate for the education of fourteen boys; and, in 1702,
Jobn Sanders devised £5 a year for clothing them.
Richard Bennett, in 1704, left £100 in aid of this cha-
rity, the total annual income £36, 5, There are
three small tenements appropriated for poor families.
" VERTON, a parish in the hundred of Hamrrox
1" and Cukverron, though locally in the hundred of
. ,Bath-Forum, county of SomerseT, 24 miles (E. 8. E))
from Bath, containing 137 inhaBitants, The living is a
, in the ‘archdeaconry of Bath, and
of Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books at
£10. 6. 104.,and in the patronage of John Vivian, Esq.
This is a pretty retired village, separated from Bath
by @ hill round which the Avon winds its course; it is
i in a romantic valley, environed by bold and
beantifully wooded hills, through which passes the Ken-
tiet and Avon canal. Here is a small endowment, be-
queathed by Ann Tucker, with which, and some trifling
ﬁwﬁmium. sixteen_poor children are educated. In
he reign of Henry M. a grant was obtained, whereby
Claverton and the village of Hampton were exempted
the jurisdiction of the hundred, and constituted a
ihe which is now within the jurisdiction of the
court of requests held in the city of Bath, for the re-
of debts undep £10. Graves, the author of the
e lsi ual Quixote, was rector of this parish.
17" CLAWRPLWYF, a hamlet in the parish of My-
| NYDDYEL lower division of the hundred of WexT-
LLOOG, conna' of MoxmouTH, containing 1250 inha-
bi&ua
. CLAWTON, & parish in the hundred of BLack Ton-
riNgTON, county of Devox, 84 miles (8.) from Hols-
thy, containing 534 inhabitants, The living is a
lischa perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of
Totuess, and diocese of Exeter, endowed with £ 1600
arlian , and in the patronage of the Rev,
. Melhuish, jun. There is good stone for building in
fr m a parish in the Wold division of the
of CavceworTh, purts of LiNpsey, county of

5 Lax , 8 miles (8.) from Alford, containing 97 inha-
" bitants. The isa ‘vicarage, united to
Well, in the and diocese of

‘CLA (ks
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N "
dicated to St, Mary. o

CLAXBY-PLUC

of Hivy, parts of Li e

“miles (S, E. by n.l)lm co
habitants. The is a discharged re
archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated
books at £6. 10, 10, and in the pa

Dymoke, Esq. The church is dedicated to St. Andrew.

CLAXTON, a township in the parish of GREATHAM,
north-eastern division of SrockTox ward, county pala-
tine of Dunrmam, 7 miles (N.N. E.) from Stockton upon
Tees, containing 38 inhabitants. This place gives name
to an ancient family, from which Thomas Claxton, a
celebrated antiquary, was descended.

CLAXTON, u parish in the hundred of Lobpox,
county of NorroLx, 74 miles (8. E. by E.) from Norwich,
containing 160 inhabitants, ‘The living is a vi in
the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich,
endowed with £200 parliamentary grant, and in the
patronage of Sir Charles Rich, Bart. The church is
dedicated to St. Andrew. There is a place of worship
for Baptists,

CLAXTON, a township in that part of the parish of
Bossavrr which is in the wapentake of Buimer, North
riding of the county of Yorx, 84 miles (N.) from York,
containing 135 inhabitants. The petty sessions for the
division are held here,

CLAXTON, or LONG CLAWSON, a parish in the
hundred of Framuann, county of Leicesten, 6 miles

(N.N. W.) from Melton-Mowbray, containing 678 inha-
bitants. The living is a discharged vi ,in the arch-
deaconry of Leicester, and diocese of Lincoln, rated

in the king's books at £9. 10, 2., and in the patronage of
Lord F. Osborne. The church is dedicated to St. Remi-
gius, There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Metho- .
dists. Here are two free schools, toward the endowment
of which Anthony Wadd gave certain lands, in 1758,
now producing a considerable income: for the a
purpose, in 1772, Mrs. Briggs bequeathed £100, ‘and
the Duke of Rutland gave £21 mmm;’ugmdf '
u echoolroom, Ll ’
CLAYBROOKE, a parish comprising the chape!
of Little Wigston, the townships of Great Claybrool
Little Claybrooke, the liberty of Bitteshy, and!
of Ullesthorpe, in the hundred of GUTHLA)
of Lricesten ; and the hamlet of Wibtoft, in th
division of the hundred of Kxi oW, cd
Wanwick, and containing 1312 m
number, 458 are in the township of Great Cl
miles (N. W, by W.) from Lu k

avi , in the omry of Leic
of Lincoln, rated in the king's books &
and in the g of the Crown.

dedicated to
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ﬁﬂalpen chﬂdnm to the free school at Farnbo-

agh, in Warwickshire. Here are found the pyrites
ums, egolden fire-stone ; also the asteria, or star-

by Gesner “ ug&llum stelle,” from its use in
in splitting some of these, the figure of a rose
phmﬁr discernible in the centre.

CLAYDON, a parish in the hundred of Bosmers
and Cravpox, eounty of Surrork, 34 miles (N.N.W.)
from Ipswich, containing 528 inhabitants. The living
is a rectory, united to that of Akenham, in the arch-
deaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated in
the king's books at £10. The church is dedicated to
St, Peter : the churchyard is tastefully laid out as &

The Stow-Market and Ipswich navigation
crosses this parish,

CLAYDON (EAST), a parish in the hundred of
Aanzhmm, county of Buckingaam, 2§ miles (8. W.

by W.) from Winslow, containing, with Bottle-Claydon,
339 inhabitants. The living ie a discharged vicarage,
in the archdeaconry of Buckingham, and diocese of
Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £7.17., and in
tronage of Mrs. Verney, The church, which was
dedicated to St. Mary, was demolished during the par-
amentary war, by Cornelius Holland, one of the judges
who sat upon the trial of Charles I. In 1673, Maurice
Gr@h left a trifling endowment for the education of
r.wﬁr'hays, and for apprenticing one of them every six

AYDON (MIDDLE), a parish in the hundred of
Alnn'nnn, county of BuckinGram, 4 miles (W. 8. W.)
or 'Winslow, containing 160 inhabitants, The living
A ;uctory in the archdeaconry of Buckingham, and
y, rated in the king's books at £15,
_'the patronage of Mrs. Verney. The church,
to All Saints, contains & monument to the
Sir Edward Verney, standard-bearer to
-who was killed at the battle of Edge-Hill, in
Almshouses for six poor widows were built,

696, l:y Sir Ralph Verney, but they have no en-

YDON (STEEPLE), a parish in the hundred
ty of Buckincaam, 54 miles (W.) from Wins-
804 inhabitants.  The living is a vicar-
‘- of Buckingham, and diocese of
's books at £13. 3. 9., and in

is dedica-
'lhm;ma C‘hnlonu-, q., in 1656,
apﬂ mdn'ged it with £12 per an-

rity school was fonnded, in 1747, by
Bluett, with an endowment of £3
by the subsequent gifts of John Norman and W
Nutcombe Bluett, in 1785, has been increased to
£7. 10., that sum being paid to u schoolmnm.ﬁr
teaw.lung as many children as choose to apply. .

CLAYHEDON, a parish in the hundred of Hem-
YOCK, county of Dzvon. 4 miles (8. 8, E.) from Wellmt
ton, containing 822 inhabitants. The living is a ree-
tory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Exeter, rated
in the king's books at £38. 5, and in the patronage
of the Rev. W, Clarke. The t.hm'ch is dedicated to %
Andrew. A t.hanty school was endowed with £110, by
Mary Waldron, in 1749, producing £7. 10, per annum,
for teaching children of this parish and the parish of
Hemyock.

CLAY-LANE, a township in the parish of NorTe
WinerieLp, hundred of Scarspane, county of Dersy,
b4 miles (8.) from Chesterfield, containing 465 inhlblt
ants.

CLAYPOLE, a parish in the wapentake of Lo\'t_-
DEN, parts of KesTEVEN, county of LaiNcoLn, 6 miles
(8. E.) from Newark, containing 605 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory in medieties, in the archdeace :
and diocese of Lincoln ; the north mediety is rated in 1
the king's books at £ 16. EI 4., and the south at £15. 15/
they are in the patronage of J. Plumtre, Esq, . The
church, dedicated to St. Peter, is an ancient Btl'qm
with a tower surmounted by a spire. There is a phce
of worship for Wesleyan Methodists, Charles Gret-
ton, in 1727, endowed a school for the instruction of
ten boys, with a rent-charge of £ 9 per annum, subjeet
to a deduction of £2. 10.

CLAYTHORPE, a chapelry in the parish of Bew-
LeAU, Marsh division of the hundred of Cancewonrta,
parts of Linobsky, county of LiNncoLw, 4 miles (N. W.
by W.) from Alford, containing 57 inhabitants,

CLAYTHORPE, a hamlet in that part of the
of Burton in Kexpan which is in LonsparLe w
county of WesThorLAND, 1 mile (N. E. by N.) f
Burton in Kendal, with which the population i ' Te-
turned. About a mile from the village is Farlton Knot,

a huge limestone mountain, resembling in form the rock
of Gibraltar: on the edge of another mountain is

tural curiosity, called Claythorpe Clints, consi

limestone rock, forming an inclined plain to thehm-lim o
deeply rent in many places by the - of
a great body of water, or the retiring of the o

which it is conjectured that this, with some |

plains in the peighbourhood, was once covered.

CLAY .ahbertyindmpmshofs-mn
TrenNT, northern division of the hundred P:uu
county of Srarrorp, 2 miles (8. by E,) fr
under Line, containing 152 inhabm

CLAY'DON a parish in the
miLy, rape of Luwes, county of Suss

(8.8. 1) from Hurst-Pierrepoint, containing: 1
- ants, Mhﬂuham Mﬂm
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- Hican Hoyuaxp, wapentake of StaiNcross, West

-

CLAYG

diocese of Chichester, rated in the hhﬂh
£21. 0. 10, and in the patronage of the
Fellows of Brasenose College, Oxford. The church
dedicated to St. John the Baptist. =,
CLAYTON, a township in the parish of Sourn
Snmm,lowudlliﬁondthe of Craro
West county of York, 2§ miles ( N. B.I:]
N. ﬁunni » The population kmud the
CL:kY'I'ON,Ihwn&ivshthepnﬂshafBumnn.
wapentake of Moruey, West of the county of
Yonx, 34 miles (W. by 8.) ﬁ'::.‘ﬁ'ld!md.mnmmng
3609 inhabitants, who are chiefly employed in the ma-
nufacture of cotton and worsted . There are
places of worship for Wesleyan Methodists here and
at Clayton Heights,

« CLAYTON, a joint parish with Frickley, in the
northern division of the of StrarrorTH and
TiockuiLy, West riding of the colinty of Yorxk, 9 miles

Barnesley. The population is returned
ckley The living is a perpetual curacy, with
that of Frickley, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
York. The church is dedicated to All Saints.
CLAYTON le DALE, a township in the parish of
Bracksurx, lower division of the hundred of Brack-
suRN, county palatine of Lancasteg, 4} miles (N, by
W.) from Blackburn, containing 598 inhabitants, In
1744, Edward Bootle gave a school-house and land,
the annnal rental of which is £9. 10, for the free
education of ﬁvsbophhnnludknghsh.
CLAYTON le MOORS, a township in that part of
the of WaaLLey which. is in the lower division
of bhundrgd of BracksumN, county palatine of

" LaWcasren, 5§ miles (N. B. by E) from Blackburn,
inhabitan

mhln\;lm ts.
' CLAYTON (WEST), a township in the parish of
riding of the county of Yonk, 7 miles (N. W, by W.)
from Barnesley, containing 854 inbabitants, of whom
several are occupied in the manufacture of stuffs, fancy
&e,

CLAYTON le WOODS, a township in the parish
and hundred of LeyuanD, county palatine of Lascas-
mm(n.byW)ﬁam Chorley, containing 801

' CLAYTON-GRIFFITH, a townsllip in the parish

of TrentaaM, northern division of the hundred of
PiresiLL, county of Starrorp, containing 34 inbabit-

ants,

“CLAYWORTH, a parish in the North-clay division
of the of Basserraw, county of NoTring-
#am, 6 miles (N.N,B.) from East Retford, containing,
“with the township of Wiseton, 557 inhabitants. The
living is & rectory, in the archdeaconry of N

51071, S n s ptronge of the R
. £26. 10. 10 in the -
mm;a&m nmnj:'

of worship esleyan Methodists. 3
ﬁnmhxm.wm now pro-
xﬂ‘uptm.mm;mdhﬂwh-

of six boys: there is an orchard, the gift of

: wmh;%w _

LanD, hundred of St. BriaveLwLs, county of Grouvcks-
TER, 7 miles (W, by N.) from Blakeney, containing 583
inhabitauts. The chapel has lately received four hun-
dred and fifty additional sittings, three hundred and
eighty of them free, towards defraying the expense of
szch the Incorporated Society for it:g of
churches and chapels granted £400. There is a curious
stone cross at this place. :

CLEASBY, u parish in the eastern division of the
wapentake of GruLinG, North riding of the county of
York, 3 miles (W. by 8.) from D n, eontaining
147 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in
the archdeaconry of Richmond, and diocese of Chester,
endowed with £35 per annum private benefaction, and
£200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Dean
and Chapter of Ripon. The church is a mean, low, and
narrow structure, rebuilt, together with the parsonage-
house, by Dr. John Robinson, a native of this parish,
Bishop of London, and one of the plenipotentiaries at
the treaty of Utrecht. He also founded a schoaql for six
poor boys, in 1723, and endowed it with sixteen acres
of land, of which the Dean and Chapter of Ripon are
visitors. The river Tees flows past the

CLEATHAM, a township in that part of the parish
of Mantox which is in the wapentake of CormiNgaAM,
parts of Linpsky, county of Lincouw, 6 miles (8. W.)
from Glandford-Bridge, containing 117 inhabitants,

CLEATLAM, a tmmnlnp partly in the parish of
Starxpror, but chiefly in that part of the parish of
Gainvorp which is in the south-western division of
DarviNgTon ward, county pdatme Dunuax, 4
miles (E. by N.) from Barnard-Castle , containing 12¢
inhabitants,

CLEATOR, a parish in Avrerpave ward above
Derwent, county of CumsxrraND, 24 miles (N.) from
Egremont, 818 inhabitants, The living is a
perpetual curacy, in the of Ris
and diocese of Chester, endowed with £200 private be
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apparent,

CLEE, a parish in the wapentake of Braprey-
HAVERSTOE, parts of Linpsxy, county of Lincornw, 24
miles (8. E. byB) from Great Grimsby, containing,
with the of Cleethorpe, 560 inhabitants. The
living is a dis vicarage, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £8, en-
dowed with £ 800 royal bounty, and £600 parliamentary

tnd in the of the Bishop of Lincoln.
church, dedicated to the Holy Trlmty, has some fine
Norman pim and arches, and contains an ancient
circular font, In this parish are many of those foun-
taips called Blow Wells, which are deep eircular pits,
supplying a continual flow of water, The eustom of
stnewing the floor of the church, on Trinity-Sunday,
Eﬂﬂ mown for that purpose, is perpetuated by

in land, left by a widow lady.

CLEE (ST MARGARE'I"S), a parish in the hun-
dred of Muxsrow, county of Savor, 8% miles (N, E.
by N.) from Ludlow, containing 229 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Salop, and
diocese of Hereford, rated in the king's books at
£2. 8.4, endowed with £600 private benefaction,
£400 royal bounty, and £2100 parliamentary grant,
and in the pa of John C. Pelham, Esq.

CLEER (ST.), a parish in the hundred of Weer,
county of Cornwarr, 2§ miles (N, by w.) from Lis-
keard, containing 985 inhabitants. The living is a vi-

, in the archdeaconry of Cornwall, and diocese
of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £19. 6, 8., and
in the patronage of the Crown. The church is a
handsome and spacious structure. The parish contains
tg:ut quantity of granite, locally termed moor-gtone,
and ; and a copper mine has recently been

The river Fowey runs through it, and several

rivulets empty themselves near Looe : there are also a
few chalybeate springs, and an ancient Druidical monu-
ment, called the Hurlers, consisting of rude upright
stones arranged in three circles, their centres in a right

line, and the middle circle the largest.

ODEETHORPE a township in the parish of Cree,

'wlnmhke of BraprLey-Haverstox, parts of Linpsey,
eonnty of LixcoLn,

3 miles (E.8.E) from Great
154 inhabitants, There is a place
o Methodists. Here is a fishing

ot situnted at the mouth of the Humber, which

er ig much resorted to for sea-bathing.

GVE (BISHOP'S), u parish fo#ming the hun-
yg, or Bisuor's CrLeevE, in the county
e} the of Stoke-Or-

tt, and 1548 inhabitants, of
) aué are in the mhip of m

: 1’5:-) he tovnship o wm s

depoﬂted in the hishop's registry it is rated
king's books at £84. 6. 8., is in the patre
the Rev. W. L. Townsend.

St. Michael, is a curious and
cipally of Norman [
exquisite workmanship in that e
entrance : the spire fell down in 1696,
siderable dilapidation, and, in 1700, it was replaced
the tower that now rises from the centre of the Im“
img, which underwent & thorough repair at

time. The village occupies an eminence on
road from Cheltenham to Evesham : its name, Clive,
or Cleeve, is probably derived from the Saxon term

Cliv, a steep ascent; and its adjunct given to dilﬁn-
guish it from Prior's Cleeve, it having been the pro-
perty of the bishops of Worcester, whose ancient resi-
dence is now the rectory-house, ‘On the ridge of Cleeve-
Cloud hill, upon which races are annually held, is a
large double intrenchment, called the Camps, in form
of n crescent, three hundred and fifty yards in length,
but accessible only in front.

CLEEVE (CHAPEL), a hamlet in the parish of
Ovp Crreeve, hundred of Wirriton and Fremmas-
NERS, county of SomersET, 84 miles (E.) from Dunster,
The chapel, which gave to this place its distinguishing
appellation, was dedicated to the Blessed Virgin, but
has long since fallen to min; it stood on a rock, and
was the resort of numerous pilgrims.

CLEEVE (OLD), a parish in the hundred of Wrr-
vitoNn and FreEmanwers, county of SoMERseT,
miles (E.8.E.) from Dunster, containing 1251 inhabitants,
The living is a discharged vicarage, with the perpetual
curacy of Leighland annexed, in the archdeaconry of
Taunton, and diocese of Bath and Wells, rated in the
king's books at £7, endowed with £200 private bene-
faction, and £200 royal bounty, and in the patronage
of the Rev. John Newton. The church is dediceted to
St. Andrew. There is a place of worship for Wesleyan
Methodists. The parish adjoins the Bristol channel,
and is remarkable for its craggy rocks, which abound
with alabaster. On the beach a great quantity of kelp
is gathered and burnt, previously to being sold in the
market at Bristol ; lodging-houses have been recently
erected for the accommodation of ns resorting
hither for the benefit of sea-bathing. A Cistercian ab-
bey, in honour of the Virgin Mary, was founded here, .
in 1188, by William de Romara, the revenue of which,
in 1534, was valued at £155. 9. 4%. : there are still
some remains, part having been converted mﬁo a
private mansion, called Cleeve Abbey.

CLEEVE (PRIOR'S), a parish in the upper division
of the hundred of OswirLpsLow, locally in the upper di-
vision of that of Blackenhurst, county of WorcesTeR,
54 miles (N.E.) from Evesham, containing 543 inhabit-
ants. The living i a vicarage, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Worcester, rated in the hn%- books at £8,
and in the patronage of the Dean and Chapter of Wor-
cester. The ch is dedicated to St. Andrew. The
vi is situated on an eminence, but the grounds
immediately round it are flat, and the meadows on the
banks of the Avon, which receives the Arrow, and
enters Worcestershire from this plrl-h are sometimes

subject to floods. The parish contains w
poiah ke the

and there are uofvahahh
species of



{

e e

-

CLEHON!

¥, county of Herevonrp, miles (W. 8. W.)
*ﬁmﬁ- containing 339 i The living is
a discharged vicarage, with that of Allensmore, in the

peculiar jurisdiction and pa of the Dean of
Hereford, rated in the king's books at £4, 4. 2., and
endowed with £200 royal bounty. The church is de-
dicated to All Saints,

CLEMENT'S (ST.), a parish in the western division
of the hundred of Powpkw, county of CorNwaLL, con-
taining 2306 inhabitants. Part of the town of Truro
is situated in this parish. The ljving is a vicarage, in
the archdeaconry of Cornwall, and diocese of Exeter,
in the king's books at £0, and in the patronage
the King, as Duke of Cornwall. The river Fal runs
through the parish, in which are some mineral springs.
Charles L, after his defeat at this place, in 1646, took

Polwhele, anciently a castle, and the family
the ancestors of the historian of the county of

;

a

seat of

CLEMENT'S (ST.), a purish in the hundred of
Buruingroxn, county of Oxrorp, eontaining 770 inha-
bitants. The parish is bounded on the west by the
Cherwell, over which is a handsome bridge leading into
city of Oxford. The living i a rectory not in
deaconry and diocese of Oxford, en-
ith £600 parliamentary grant, and in the pa-
Crown, Owing to the inadequate ac-
which
N

4

i

8
&

il

room, and other conve-

‘means of ' W%m
arc eight in number, besides a chiplain, and who
rally reside in the city, X o
ployment. About the time of e of Oxford, the
house was demolished, and rebuilt by the society in
1649 : it was afterwards used as a “for mak-
ing maguesia, by a private individual, and the remains
Gently the Taskde ofthe estebi s g A
ciently the funds of the were 4
ed by the contributions of the fellows of New College,
at their annual procession to the chapel of St. Bartho-
lomew, on Holy Thursday : the students of Oriel und
Magdalene Colleges, and the citizens of Oxford, were
also accustomed to assemble here on May-day, bringing
with them the earliest productions of the season, as
oblations to the saint, and further celebrating the festive
day with music and dancing. This custom is supposed
to have originated in the pious intention of Burgwast,
bishop of the diocese, who granted forty days' indul-
gence to all who came to the chapel on the festival of
the saint, and contributed to the relief of the
almsmen. Here too were preserved relics of various
saints, the supposed efficacy of which, in performing
miraculous cures, attracted numerous pilgrims.

CLENCHWHARTON, a parish in the Marshland
divisivn of the hundred of Frersnrince, county of Non-
rouk, 24 miles (W.) from Lynn-Regis, containing 456
inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdea-
conry and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books
ot £14. 6. 8., and in the patronage of Miss Docker. At
the time of the Norman survey this place was called
Ecleuyartuana, signifying a watery situation by a river,
and was divided into north and south. :

CLENNELL, a township in the parish of Avpex-
ToN, western division of CoquerpaLe ward, county of
NorTHUMBERLAND, 104 miles (W.N.W.) from Rothbury,
containing 27 inhabitants.

CLENT, a parish in the southern division of
hundred of Seispow, county of Srarvonrp,
locally in the lower division of the hundred of Half-
shire, county of Worcester, 34 miles (8.8.E.) from
Stourbridge, containing 885 inhabitants. The living is
u vicarage, with the perpetual curacy of Rowléy-Regis
wnuexed, in the and diocese of Worcester,
rated in the king's books at £8. 16. 54., and in the pa-
tronage of the Crown. The church is dedicated to St.
Leonard. There are places of worship for Baptists and
Wesleyan Methodists. The infant of in, St.
Kenelm, is supposed 819,

the

combe abbey, which had been founded by his
Here is a free school for the children of poor p
ers, founded by John Amphlett, Esq.

ter, who instructs thirty children, has




, in the same county,
is taken from its ancient pomnr. Ralph de Mortimer,
who held it at the time of the general survey. Hugh
de Mortimer, his son, built a castle here, but having re-

volted in favour of the heir of Stephen, he fortified it
lglimQ enry IL, who, with a powerful army, besieged
entirely demohshed it. During the war between
Henry IIL and the barons, Cleobury suffered greatly
from the incursions of the Welch, who at that time

%

a neat stone bridge : it consists principally of one long
street, in which are many good houses, and the mutilated
remains of an old cross; but it is neither paved nor
lighted : the inhabitants are plentifully supplied with
excellent water from a spring rising in the Brown Clee
hills, and falling into a capacious basin in the lower part
of the town. The trade 1s rapidly declining ; formerly
there were very extensive iron-works, but there are now
ouly two forges : a few of the inhabitants are employed
in the manufactory of paper, for which there are two
mills. On the Clee hills, about three miles west of the
town, are extensive collieries producing excellent coal ;
and on the higher part of them is a remarkably fine,
though not extensive, vein of cannel coal, of which many
beautiful specimens have been worked into snuff-boxes
and ornaments of various kinds. The market, granted
to Sir Francis Lacom, in 1614, is held on Wednesday :
the fairs are on April 21st, Trinity-Monday, and October
27th. A constable is annually appointed at the court
leet of the lord of the manor, held in April.

The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of
Salop, and diocese of Hereford, rated in the king's books
at £13, and in the patronage of William Lacon Childe,
Esq. The church, dedicated to St. Mary, is an ancient
structure, with a plain square tower, surmounted by
an octagonal spire of wood, considerably curved from
the perpendicular. There are two places of worship for
Wesleyan Methodists ; and a Roman Catholic chapel
is attached to Mawley Hall, the mansion of Sir Edward
Blount, Bart,, within a mile of the town. The free school
was founded pursuant to the will of Sir Lacon William
Childe, Knt., dated in 1714, whereby he bequeathed the
* residue of his personal estate, after the death of his wife,

‘&m mduwment by a decree of the court of Exche-
1735, a plot of ground was purchased, in 1739,
the buildings were erected ; the surplus of the

( '.‘l‘ was vested in land, which, with property in
(of which £1000 in the three per cents. was
in 1810, by Mr. John Winwood, of Bristol, for-
n;hohrqp the foundation), produces about £450

' mmngemm in vested in ten truxm.
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school.  Adjoining the tewn g m
mddwdﬂngmmhlpdzl:dl:qs of waste

ground attached, mowupiedndfnﬂhgm the

premises were built by for
f:eegmmmurochool,bntthcmltituthnnhnlonglhu
been dissolved, owing to the want of a permanent fund
foritssuppurt. To the east of the school are the
remains of a Danish encampment ; and within the dj
tance of a mile and a half were the three

Cleobury, Toot, and Wall-town, of all which there is
not a single vestige. Robert Langford, author of the

Visions of Pierce Plowman, a satirical poem on the

clergy of the fourteenth century, was a native of this
town.

CLEOBURY (NORTH), a parish in the hundred
of StorTESDEN, county of Savor, 8 miles (S. W. by W.)
from Bridgenorth, containing 173 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Salop, and
diocese of Hereford, rated in the king's books at
£5. 12. 84., and in the patronage of Mrs. Brazier. The
church is dedicated to St. Peter.

CLERKENWELL, an extensive parish, in the
Finsbury division of the hundred of Ossvisrowe,
county of Mippresex, adjoining the city of London,
containing $9,105 inhabitants. Its name originated
from an ancient well, round which the parish clerks
of London were in the habit of assembling, at cer-
tain periods, for the performance of sacred dramas,
noticed in the reign of Henry IL by Fitz-Stephen,
under the appellation of Fons Clericorum. The
is not mentioned in Domesday -book, being probably
at the time of the survey an hed pomnn
of the great forest of Middlesex, or included in the
parish of Islington, which, under the name Isendone, is
noticed in that record. The site appears to have been
well adapted to the celebration of those sacred festivals
for which it was selected, from being in the centre
of gently rising grounds, which formed an extensive
and natural amphitheatre, for the accommodation of
the numerous spectators who attended on such ocea-
sions, The most celebrated of these festivals took place
in 1391, in the reign of Richard II., and continued for
three days, during which several sacred dramas were
performed by the clerks, in presence of the king and
queen, attended by the whole court. About the year
1100, Lord Jordan Briset and his wife founded a priory
here for nuns of the Benedictine order, dedicated to St.
Mary, the site being now occupied by the parish church
of St, James: the revenue, at the dissolution, was
£282.16.5. The same Jordan founded also an hospi-
tal for Knights Hospitallers of the order of St.John of
Jerusalem, which was liberally endowed with lands, and
invested With many privileges by several successive mo-
narchs ; the lord prior had precedence of all lay barons
in parhamunt, and power over all preceptories and
smaller establishments of that order in the v
the revenue, at the dissolution, was £2385, 12, 8. : this
institution was partly restored in the reign of Philip
and Mary, but was suppressed in that of Elizabeth: the
remains. are, the gate, in the later style of ar-
chitecture, now @ private residence, and the vaults of
the old church, in the Norman character, upulﬂlttih
of which St. John's church was subsequently restored.

The establishment of these monasteries naturally drew
around them a number of dependent dwellings, but the

|
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parish made little in the number of its inhabit-
ants prior to the time of Elizabeth, in whose reign, with
the exception of some “banquetting houses and summer
houses,” it contained only a few straggling cottages,
and some good houses in the immediate neighbour-
hood of the religious houses; its increase was after-
wards more rapid, and in 1619 several noblemen and
Eﬂm&n were mnumbered among its inhabitants,

then, the formatidn of numerous , and the
more recent laying out of Spa-fields and the New River
Company's estate, in a variety of new streets and

, have rendered this one of the most populous
parishes in the vicinity of the metropolis.

Among the more recent improvements may be no-
ticed Claremont-square, in the centre of which is the
reservoir of the New River water-works, surrounded by
& high embankment, planted with shrubs; Myddel-
ton and Wilmington squares, apd numerous spacious
streets and ranges of modern and respectable build-
ings. St. John's street and Goswell roads, the former
leading from Smithfield, and the latter from Aldersgate,
and the New Road, leading to Paddington, are the prin-
cipal thoroughfares. The parish is lighted with gas,
and the pathways are well flagged ; it is within the
limits of the new police establishment : the inhabitants
are supplied with water hy the New River Company,
whose works are situated in this parish, where the
river terminates, This stupendous undertaking was
projected in the reign of Elizabeth, and, in the following
reign, James 1. granted an act of parlinment, enabling
the mayor and commonalty of London to carry it into
effect; but the commissioners, dreading the difficulty
and expense, made no advances for some years. In
1609, Mr. Hugh Myddelton, citizen and goldsmith of
London, made to the common council of the
city to undertake the work at his own risk, and to
complete it in four years, for which purpose the com-
missioners transferred to him the powers with which
they had been invested by the act. After having per-
severed in the enterprise till the water was brought to
Enﬁdd the city refusing to grant him any pecuniary

assistance, Mr. Myddelton rpplled to the king, who

glwd to pay him one-half of the expense, on condition
a moiety of the concern transferred to him,

and al various times, from Easter 1612, to Michael-
mas 1614, advanced sums of money, amounting in the
whole to £8547 4. 114, with which assistance the
work was com on the 29th of September, 1613,
on the afternoon of which day, the lord mayor and cor-
went in state to the “great cistern,” called the

ew River Head, in this parish, when, after an oration
delivered by a person especially selected, the ood-gates
thrown , and the water rushed the river
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: which is of a semicircular form,

m,mmﬁnnted Hug
delton, who had been
October 1622: an adventurer's -hmtnthil
has been sold for £14,000. The Regent’ '
on the north sideofthepnﬂsh,mdenm'olnm
near White Conduit House ; after

which it passes under the New River, it terminates *
gbout twenty yards eastward from that part of it which
flows between Colebrook-row and the City-road, in the
parish of Islington.

Of the numerous wells with which this parish
abounded, several were in great repute for their medicinal

properties, and houses of public entertainment m'e
erected near their site : of these, which were
tea-gardens, and rendered more attractive by mnslml
performances, the chief were Bagnigge Wells, White Con-
duit House, and New Tunbridge Wells, or Islington Spa,
all still ru.-maining: of those which have for many years
been discontinued were, the Pantheon in Spa-fields, now
a chapel belonging to a congregation in the late Coun-
tess of Huntingdon's counexion ; the Cold Bath, in
Cold Bath fields, of which the bath alone is still fre-
quented ; the Mulberry and Vineyard gardens; the
celebrated Bear garden at Hockley in the Hole; and
Sadler's Wells, near the New River Head, which has for
many years been converted into & theatre for dramatic
representations.  Fons Clericorum, or the Clerks' well, is

still in existence, being situated in Ray-street, where the

spot is marked by a pump, with an inscription. The
manufacture of clocks and watches, of which the several
parts form distinct and separate departments of the
trade, has for more than a century been carried on here
to a considerable extent: when the duty on dlocks and
watches was imposed, in 1791, not less than seven thou-
sand of the inhabitants were deprived of employment,
and obliged to have recourse to parochial aid. There
is a large manufactory for tin goods, which during the
late war supplied the chief of the government econtracts,
also some extensive distilleries and soap-manufactories.
The sessions for the county, and the meetings of the
county magistrates, for the assessment of the county
rates, and for other affairs, are held at the sessions-
house, Clerkenwell Green, which was erected at an
expense of £13,000, and has lately been and
beautified : it is a spacious and handsome edifice
fronted with stone, having in the centre four pil- *
lars of the Ionic order, rising from a rustic basement
and supporting & pediment : in the and on
each side are emblematical figures in basso rﬂmo.(ﬁ
The entrance, by a flight of , opens into a hall

thirty-four feet lighted by & dome which s
mounts the buil ﬁumthlnhnﬂ,eunhgumsw'
are the offices of the county treasurer and clerk
peace, & double nfltepnludlintotha

furthabulinusuft‘haoeuiun '




| greatly enlarged in 1818, and again
chapel, twenty wards, ten day-rooms, twelve
ng-yards, for the classification of prisoners, and two
ufirmaries, one for males and the other for females,
The house of correction for the county, in Cold Bath
Fields, was erected in 1704, at an expense of £70,000 :
it is a spacious brick building, enclosed with high walls,
ng an area divided into eighteen airing-yards, in
one of which is a tread-mill upon an improved princi-
< ple: this prison has also been considerably enlarged
recently.  Clerkenwell manor, formerly denominated
the manor of St. John of Jerusalem, includes several
out-portions of the parishes of St. Sepulchre, St. Luke
(Old-street), and Hornsey, with those parts of the pa-
rish of Clerkenwell called the liberties of Cold Bath
Fields, St. John of Jerusalem, Clerkenwell Close,
Wood's Close, and Pentonville : constables and head-
boroughs for these liberties are chosen by the inha-
bitants of each, and presented at the manorial court
for the approbation of the proprietor. The custom of
Borough Englis.h, whereby the youngest son inherits,
prevails in this manor,
~ The church of St.James was formerly the only church
within the parish, which is now divided into three dis-
tricts, namely St, James', St. John's, and St. Mark's, all
in the archdeaconry and diocese of London. The liv-
ing of St. James' is a perpetual curacy, in the patronage
of the inhabitants generally, paying church and poor
rates: the church is a modern structure of brick,
with a handsome stone steeple, erected on the site of
the ancient church of the priory of St. Mary, which
had been previously modernised, but which, prior to its
being taken down, for the erection of the present edifice,
retained many vestiges of its Norman character, and
contained the ashes of the last prioress of the nunnery ;
the last prior of St. John's; Weever, the antiquary ;
Bishop Burnet, and many other distinguished characters.
The living of St.John's is a rectory not in charge, en-
dowed with £600 royal bounty, and £ 1800 parliament-
ary grant, and in the patronage of the Crown: the
church, with large curtailments and alterations, is that
anciently belonging to the priory of the Knights Hos-
pitallers, of which the choir only remained, being re-
stored by the commissioners appointed under the act
for building fifty new churches, passed in the tenth of
Queen Anue's reign, by virtue of which a district was
. amnexed to it, and the benefice constituted a rectory, in
1723. Notwithstanding it enjoys the privilege of re-
ligious rites, the incumbent of St. James' is entitled to
the surplice fees: there are se churchwardens

Y rk's, a district church, in Myddelton-square,
fng one thousand six hundred and twenty-two
/ eight hundred and forty-seven are
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pard, the present incumbent of St. James', after whose
decease ther:_’ifh: of presentation becomes vested in the
Bishop of don. A chapel of ease to St. Mark's is
now in pr of erection, under the auspices of the
Commissioners, The chapel at Pentonville, a neat
modern edifice of brick, ornamented with stone, and
having a small cupola, was erected in 1791, for a
chapel of case to St.James'. Spa-Fields chapel, for-
merly the Pantheon, as before noticed, was appropel-
ated for a place of worship by the late Countess of
Huntingdon, who for many years resided at the chapel
house adjoining; and at her decease it was vested
in trustees, with other chapels in various parts of the
kingdom, agreeably to her will: there are likewise
places of worship for Baptists, the Society of Friends,
Independents, and Wesleyan and other Methodists,
besides a Scotch church and a Welch chapel. The
parish has the right of sending six scholars to the free
grammar school, fourlded by Lady Alice Owen, for na-
tives of this parish and of that of Islington, and of
having three boys in Christ's hospital, the latter under
the will of Giles Russell, Esq., who, in 1664, devised
property to that establishment, for nine boys of the
town of Sherborne, in the county of Dorset, and of the
parishes of St. Anne, Blackfriars, and St. James, Clerk-
enwell. The parochial school, founded about the year
1700, has recently been removed from the school-house
in Aylesbury-street, to a more convenient premises
in Amwell-street, erected in 1829, forming a ious
and handsome range of building in the Elizabethan
style of architecture, and capable of accommodating
upwards of onc thousand children : there are at pre-
sent three hundred and forty-five boys and two hun-
dred and twenty-six girls, of whom ninety boys and
sixty girls are clothed. A charity school at Penton-
ville was instituted in 1788 : the number of children
amounts to one hundred and sixty, of whom sixty are
clothed, The London Female Penitentiary at Peaton-
ville, established in 1807, is a large range of build-
ing, comprising an infirmary, and apartments for one
hundred females, who are chiefly employed in needle-
work and domestic occupations, to gqualify them for
service: since the establishment of this institution,
one thousand four hundred and sixty-nine females have
been received into it, of whom the greater number has
been placed out in respectable situations, or restored
to their friends. The Finsbury Dispensary was es-
tablished in 1780, since which time it has extended
relief to more than one hundred and fifty thousand of
the labouring and necessitous poor; the number
of patients annually relieved is, on an average, four
thousand. A portion of the Roman Watling-street,
and the Wiver of Wells (the Fleta of the Romans),
form of the boundaries of the parish. Among
the distinguished natives and residents of Clerken-
well the following may Jbe enumerated :—Sir Thomas
Chaloner, Bishop Burnet, Sir John Oldcastle, Baron
Cobham, and Cave, who established the Gentleman's

Magazine, and whose printing-office was in St. John's

s.t‘E(T»IJL"I'EII&‘;K (ST.), a parish in the hundred of Les-
NEwTH, county of CorNwaLL, 7 miles (E.) from Camel-
ford, containing 175 inhabitants, The living is a dis-
charged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Cornwall,
and diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's books at

»
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CLEVEDON, a
county of SOMERSET, lémiho(w byB] ﬁm,
containing 581 inhabitants, The living is a '

, in the archdeaconry of Bath, and diocese of

Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books at £15, 14, 4.,
endowed with £400 private benefaction, and £200 royal
hounty, and in the punomg: of the Bilhop of Bristol.
The church, dedicated to ds at the
western extremity of the pﬁah,nnd upies a high
and prominent situation on the shore of the Bristol
channel : it is a cruciform struocture, with a central
tower. - On the top of some of the hills are the remains
of lead mines ; and lapis calaminaris has also been fountd
here. . The old manor-house, a spacious building prin-
cipally in the Elizabethan style, occupies a pleasant
situntion on the southern glope of the mountainous
range that bounds the greater pbrtion of the hundred.
The Yeo flows through the village, and thence into the
Bristol channel, a little southward from the church :
several houses have been recently erected near the shore,
for the reception of bathers ; and a pier is also sbout to
be constructed. As a wnbenng-place Clevedon is in-
ferior to its rival neighbour, Weston, on account of the
fine sandy beach of the latter, but greatly superior in the
beauty of its scenery : myrtlu and other delicate shrubs
flourish in the gardens at all seasons. In 1650, Thomas
Gwilliam, or Phillips, gave six acres of land, producing
€11 per annum, for apprenticing poor children ; and in
1797, Sir A. Elton bequeathed £5 per apnum, for the
instruction of children,

. CLEVEDON (MILTON), a parish in the hundred
of BruTon, county of SomErseT, 2% miles (N.W. by N.)
ﬁ!‘.\m Bruton, containing 159 inhabitants. The living is

vi in the archdeaconry of Wells,
nm‘.l diocese of Bath and Wells, rated in the king's
hooks at £6. 13, 4., endowed with 200 private bene-
fuction, and £200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of
the Earl of Ichester. The church is dedicated to St.
 Jumes. This parish lies under the western declivity of

the Burton hills, and contains limestone, with various fos-
sils imbedded in it. Thereare vestiges of an ancient for-
tification on Small-down, which, from the circumstance
of several skeletons having been found near the
spot, is to have been the scene of a battle.
-PORT,m hamlet in the parish of
OrmEspy,westerndivision of the liberty of LANGBAUVRGH,
North riding of the county of Yorx, Ogniles (N. by E.)
from Stokesley. The po, is returned with the
parish. It is situated near the mouth oftbeTees, afford-

a convenient point for shipping part of
mt ::oundmg
, and other markets, and

ofc;evehndvadthe
for the.
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pari
CLEWLR, a parish
mERE, county of Berks, 1 mile (W.
containing 2115 inhabitants. The l.l
in the archdeaconry of Berks, and ﬂiﬂcﬂeufﬁﬂhlb
rated in the king's books at £14, 1. 04, and in

W qf
’ﬁwx.'
ury,
the
patronage of the Provost and Fellows of Eton
The church is dedicated to St. Andrew. There lm
places of worship for Wesleyan Methodists and Roman
Catholics. The parish, situated on the south bank of the
Thames, comprises part of the town of Windsor. Ona
patent roll of the 13th of Edward IL is a grant to John -
the Hermit, of thechapel of St. Leonard, of Loffield, in
Windsor Forest, to enclose some land, parcel of the
forest, which probably gave name to St. Leonard's Hill,
an clegant mansion built by the Duchess of Gloucester,
when Countess Waldegrave, on the site of a cottage, In
1809, Sir James Poultney, Bart. left by will £666, 13, 4.
in the three per cent. consols., for the benefit of the master
of a school; and, in 1815, Ear] Harcourt conveyed two
cottages, a schoolroom, and £500 Navy five per cents.,
for the instruction of poor boys and girls; about eighty
of the former and seventy of the latter are taught on
the National system. There are, besides, some trifling
bequests for the poor, and for apprenticing children.
A court lect is held annually; .and a fair for toys and
pl.dlary takes place on the 20th of May. A mineral
epring has recently been discovered, but the quality of
the water has not yet been accurately ascertained,
CLEY, a small sea-port, market town, and pmtb,
in the hundred of Howvr, county of Norrork, 26 miles
(N.N.W.) from Norwich, and 124 (N.N.E.) from London,
containing 742 inhabitants. In 1406, Prince Jumes of
Scotland, on his voyage to France, to receive his educa-
tion, was driven by stress of weather upon this coast; and
being detained here, he was sent to London by order of
Henry IV., who committed him and his attendaut, the
Earl of Orkney, to the Tower, where they remained
for seventeen years in confinement; they were released
in the 3rd of Henry VI,, and the prince ascended the
Scottish throne. The town is situated on the banks of
& gmall river which falls into the harbour, at the north-
eastern extremity of the county, and consists principally:
of one street, in the centre of which is the custom-
house, a neat and commodious edifice, containing
ments for a resident collector, comptroller, &e.:
plentifully supplied with water from springs. The
of the port (of whlch the jurisdiction extends for
miles along the coast, from Morston on the w
Barton Coal Gap on the ea.st),eonqlm prix
corn, coal, timber and deals, b :
oil-cakes, &c.,ofwhichthﬂ
a small di; also carried on in mw
are comparativ Qunsil‘ﬁng
for the niauufactm
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| in the king's books at
92 s, The Ap ‘o't:&'lohn Wiun‘l;:hm-
lingon, Fsq. The church, dedicated to St. John, is a
fine spacious structure in the early style of English ar-
chitecture, and contains an ancient stone font, adorned
with sculptured representations of the seven Sacra-
ments of the church of Rome. Here is a place of wor-
ship for Wesleyan Methodists,

~ CLEYGATE, & manor in that part of the parish
of Taames-Dirron which is in the second divigion of
the hundred of Kincerox, county of Surmey, 14 mile
(E. 8. E) Esher, containing 559 inhabitants.

= NoLIB , a parish in West ward, county of
WestmorLaxy, 74 miles (N. W. by w.) from Appleby,
‘containing 205 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Carlisle,
rated in the king's books at £9. 1. 5., and in the pa-
tronage of the Bishop of Carlisle. The church is dedi-
cated to St, Cuthbert. This parish is bounded on two
sides by the Eden and the Lyvennet, and the Lethe rivu-
let flows through it. A small school has been established
for the education of the children of parishioners, en-
dowed with an allotment of land by the commissioners
under an act of parliament, which produces an income
_of £21 per annum; the average number of scholars is
twenty. A market was held at Gilshauglin, in this
parish, in 1508, when the plague raged at Appleby.

'CLIDDESDEN, a parish in the hundred of Basing-

sTOKE, Basi ke division of the county of Sourn-
AMPTON, 1§ mile (8. by W.) from Basingstoke, contain-
ing 264 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, united
to that of Farleigh-Wallop, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Winchester, rated in the king's books at
£10. 16. 3. There is a gchool for the instruction of poor
children, endowed by Mrs. Ann Dorrington with £10
per annum, to which the Earl of Portsmouth gave an
additional sum of €10 per annum, with a house for a
schoolmistress.

CLIEVELOAD, a chapelry in the parish of Powick,
lower division of the hundred of Persnore, county of
WoncesTeRr, 5§ miles (S. 8. W.) from Worcester, con-
taining 36 inhabitants. The chapel has been demolished.
The river Severn flows past the village. .

CLIFF, a joint township with Lund, in the parish
of Heminenrouven, wapentake of Ovze and DErWENT,

East riding of tife county of Yorx, 3§ miles (E.) from

', Ccon’ with Lund, 501 inhabitants. There is

a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. In 1708,

Mary Ward bequeathed £220 for the building and

dowment of a school, towards the further support of

Mr. Whittall gave £100; the income is£€40. 16. 6.,
‘which thirty scholars are educated.

IFFE, a parigh in the hundred of Smamwerr,

f Avresronn, county of Kent, 5 miles (N. by w.)

ester, 673 inhabitants. The living

iction of the incum-

fug'sisaks kb #50; and fn-the ps-
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on the north hy the Th,un:.g the vﬂllspe,w ¢ suj
posed to take name from the cliff or rock on which it
stands, at present consists of West-street and Church-

street, but was formerly of much greater extent, @

great part of it having been destroyed by fire in 1520, =«

It was anciently the scene of several prawincial councils:
a fair is held on the 28th of September. The school-

house, which has been recently put into a state of coms

pléte repair, Was founded in 1679, by John Browne, wha
begueathed two tenements and sther appurtenances, for
educating twelve poor children, directing his execuntors .
and the churchwardens to appoint a poor man and wo-

an teachers, and to choose the scholars, One of the
cottages is occupied by the school-mistress, who receives
£10 per annum for teaching eight poor children.

CLIFFE, a township in that part of the parish of
Ma~rieLp which is in the western division of the wapen-
take of GiLring, North riding of the county of Yonk,
5§ miles (W.by N.) from Darlington, containing 53 in-
habitants. There is a Roman Catholic chapel at
Cliffe Hall.

CLIFFE (KING'S), a parish in the hundred of
WitLysrook, county of Nomrrmameron, 31 miles
(N. E. by N.) from Northampton, and 88 (N.N. W.) from
London, containing 1080 inhabitants., The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Northampton, and dio-
cese of Peterborough, rated in the king's books at
£13. 16. 3., and in the patronage of the Earl of West-
morland. The church is dedicated to All Saints,, This
was formerly a market town; the market, which was
held on Tuesday, has fallen into disuse, but there is still
a fair on the 29th of October. The Rev. William Law,
a nonjuring divine and polemical writer, was bhorn at
this place, in 1686, where, after residing in it during the
last twenty years of his life, he died in 1761. A school
for twenty boys and fourteen girls, and three alms-
houses, were endowed, principally with a bequest of
lands and houses, by Elizabeth Hutchinson, in 1745,
which yield an annnal income of £260. !

CLIFFE (NORTH), a township in the parish of
Saxcron, Hunsley-Beacon division of the wapentake of
HarriL, East riding of the county of York, 3 miles
(8.) from Market-Weighton, containing 89 inhabitants.

CLIFFE (SOUTH), a township in the parish of
Norrn Cave, Hunsley-Beacon division of the wapen-
take of HarruiLL, East rid.igg of the county of Youx,
34 miles (8.) from Market-Weighton, containing 181
inhabitants, * ¢ ’ G

CLIFFE (ST. THOMAS), county of Sussex.—

See LEWES. 3
CLI (WEST), a parish in the hundred of Brws-
BOROUGH, lathe of St. AugusTing, county of Kexmr, 24
miles (N.E.) from Dovor, ctrntainilngthbimh inhahd‘:tanh;
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the ACOnry
and dl":ncgse of Canterbufy, endowed with £200 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of the Archbishop of Ca:
terbury. The church is dedicated to St. Peter.
CLIFFE-PYPARD, a parish in th&.hg red
KinossrinGe, county of Winrs, 4% miles (S, |
trom Wouttnu-slhueit:, t‘hmfmtain]l::g 815 hh:f 5 B
living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Wilts, anc
diocese of Salisbury, rated in the king's books at £9,
and in the patronage of the Rey. E, Goddard. The
‘thurch, dedicated to St. Peter*,'md inwhipch are some
§ 2 3
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stone, us white us chalk, but ccnsidanhz']:rder, and
much used for paving and building. school is
mpported W annuity of about £30.
: a parish in the hundred of HunTing-
'rou, county of HErEvorD, 94 miles (S.W.by 8.) from
Kington, containing, with a part of the township of Vow-
mine, 516 inhabitants, The living is a discharged vicar-
age, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Hereford, rated
in the king's books at £4. 10,, endowed with £200 pri-
vate benefaction, and £200 royv-al bounty, and in the
r'o nage of the Rev. W, Trumper. The church is de-
ted to St, Mary. There are some portions of Clifford
castle remaining, in a ruinous condition : it stood on a
bold eminence, projecting over the river Wye, and was
the baronial residence of the lords de Clifford for two
centuries, as it is supposed, the birthplace of Fair
Rosamond. Here was anciently a convent of Cluniac
monks, founded by one of the lords de Clifford, as a
cell to the priory of Lewes, in Sussex ; at the dissolu-
tion, its revenue was estimated at £75. 7 5.

CLIFFORD, a in the parish of Bramuam,
upper division of the take of BArksTONE-Aswm,
West riding of the euuntyononx,S* miles (S.E.bys.)
from Wetherby, containing 1017 inhabitants, There is
a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.

CLIFFORD-CHAMBERS, a parish in the upper
division of the hundred of Tewxessury, though lo-
cally in that of the hundred of Kiftsgate, county of
Grovceerer, 24 miles (8.by W.) from Stratford upon
Avon, ¢ 305 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Gloucester,
rated in the king's books at £18.15. 74, and in the
patronage of L, Dighton, Esq. The ehurch dedicated
to St, Helen, is a small structure, with a south door of
Norman architecture.

CLIFTON, 2 parish in the hundred of Crrrrox,
county nfBlnmnn, ‘14 mile (E. by N.) from Sheﬂ’urd
[ 483 inhabitant; The living is a rectory, in
‘of Bedford, and dioceneof Lineoln,

and a fine altar-tomb in memory of Sir Michuel Fisher,

who died lord of the manor in 1549. ver Ivel,
: , runs through the parish. There
school, founded and endowed in

, the Rev. D. S. Olivier, for

LIFTON, or ROCK-SAV. AﬁE,awm’hiptnthe
i of Ruxcors, hundred of Buckrow, county pa-
f Cuester, 24 mﬂu'giﬂ.ﬁ.) fﬁmm-m
y 26 inhabitants, This pl s been called
_since the erection of a sph

B ol AU 5y o

cLi a74 CLI ;
-;bw:uﬁph,ﬁmmgy lies mﬁy%ﬁ'ivmaf'the Aswnounrw which issnm hundred of Mo
north aisle, ‘This place takes its name from a cliff, and and Lrrcovron, h I : ed
:unmctﬁm a court anciently kept, called ; Wirksworth county of Demsy, 1} mile (5. W.).
it is ted at the foot of a chain of hills (a very Ashbourn, con 1 if:
one separating the north of the pn-hh from the inhabitants. N
south) that runs along the north side of the vale of CLIFTON, a mdfl?ﬂﬂhlﬂm'm
White Horse : there is ahill composed of a kind of free- in the hundred of Bawron-Ree1s, county of Guovoes- .

TER, 14 mile (W.) from Bristol, 14 miles (N. W.) from
Bath, and 121 (W. by 8.) from London, containing 8811
inhabitants, This place, by mmiqulﬁu -nmpd
to have been a British town prior to the
sion, and to have been called Caer-oder, or -dt.yofm
chasm, derives its present name from its romantic situ-
ation on the acclivities and summit of a precipitous
cliff, apparently by some convulsion of nature,
from a chain of rocks in the Bristol channel. The river
Avon, which is navigable for ships of the greatest bur-
den, flows with a rapid current through this natural
chasm, forming the south-western boundary of the pa-
rish, and separating the counties of Gloucester and. So-
merset,  On the summit of the cliff, which rises to the
height of three hundred feet above the bed of the river,
was anciently a small chapel, dedicated to St. Vincent,
from which the rock on the north-east bank takes its
name., The town is indebted for its present grandear
and importance to the efficacy of its hot wells,
nally noticed, in 1480, by William of Worcester, but
not brought into general use till 1632, when the water
was first applied externally in cases of scrofula and
cancer, and internally, in 1672, in cases.of inflammation,
dysentery, and heemorrhage. These waters issue from
an aperture in the cliff, about ten feet above low water-
mark, and about twenty-six below high water-mark, and
are pumped into reservoirs for use, besides being con-
veyed by pipes into many of the houses; the aperture
is secured from the water of the river, which in
tides rises to the height of thirty-six feet. Their mean
temperature is 68° of Fahrenheit, and they contain a
portion of sulphuric acid, but are soft and pleasant to
the taste, and free from any feetid smell ; they are gene-
rnllydmnkmthemom.ingbd‘nmhmkfut, d in the
afternoon. At the time of the earthquuke at Lishom,
the water became so red and turbid as to be unfit for
use,

That part of the town called the Hot W
formerly the more ,uumt.dntthehﬁnd
the cliff, and has a mild and genial i+
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the residence of imuds,mmmm e st
of the old house, which was built by s _ ke
the year 1770. wualyahmm '
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the ¢liff, on which is situated that part of the town
called Clifton, are baths and a pump-room

g'ﬂwmjwhieh issues from a spring of

wwmﬁw th:);:sthe Ho:l“'ella, or more pro-
ably same , recently opened ata ter
elevation, for the accommodation ufyin-nl.ids rwﬁ in
this part of the town : to the pump-room are attached a
mdlni-:oom lnﬁ__lodging-mm; and a little below
Mardy ,-mtherhdmtheﬂat‘lh,isnapa.whm
saline mineral Wwater is obtained, which is said to be

the respective names of crescent, circus, paragon, and
terrace, ‘among which York-crescent is distinguished
extent and magnificence : the summit, on
which formerly there were only a few scattered dwell-
ings, is now crowned with superb mansions and ele-
gant villas, commanding extensive prospects of roman-

Here is an elegant mansion built by Sir
William Draper, Knt., the celebrated opponent of Junius,
court of which are, an obelisk, erected to
‘William Pitt, Earl of Chatham, and a
memory of those of the seventy-ninth
who fell at Arott, Manilla, Pondicherry, and
the Philippine Islands, The Clifton Hotel is a splendid
“edifice, ing the whole eastern extremity of the
‘mall : the front, which is of freestone, exhibits a pleasing
combination of tasteful elegance ; the centre comprises
a suite of three spacious rooms, handsomely fitted up,
and appropriated to the public subscription concerts
-and assemblies, one of them during the morniog being
open ‘as a reading-room : the north side is occupied as
private lodging-houses, and the rooms over the centre
and the south side are appropriated to the uses of the
hotel. Concerts and assemblies frequently take place
during the season : the terraces afford delightful prome-
nades ; and the ground, compriging several
‘acres, beautifully laid out and interspersed with par-
terres of flowers, adorned with grottos, and embellished
‘with numerous fossils and natural curiosities, is also a
place of resort: the town is brilliantly lighted

o those of India; they are remarkable
~in these rocks have been
Thut part

polished hexagonal -
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living is a G
Gloncester, and diocese of Bristol, endowed with £ 200
private benefaction, and £400 royal bounty, and in the
patronage of the Rev. C. Simeon. The church, dedicated
to St. Andrew, is 4 spacious structure in the later style
of English architecture, erected in 1822. There is a
private episcopal chapel ; and it is in contemplation to
build anather church at the Hot Wells, for the especial
accommodation of the . There are a chapel for
those in the late Countess of Huntingdon's connexion,
a floating chapel for seamen, called Clifton Ark, and
a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. A Na-
tional and an infant school, and a dispensary, for which
a neat building was erected at the sole Jof °
Mr. Whippie, are supported by subscription. On the
summit of St. Vincent's rock are the remains of an
encampment, three or four acres in-extent, defended
by,three ramparts and two ditches ; the inner rampart,
which is in mo part more than five feet in height, is
supposed to have been surmounnted by a wall: its ex-
tent, from onc side of the rock to the other, is two
hundred and ninety-three yards; and on the side next
the river there is a deep trench, said to have been cut
during the civil war in the reign of Charles I Tts
origin is by some antiguaries ascribed to the Britons,
and by others to the Romans, who placed there the
first of that chain of forts erected to defend the
passage of the Severn: in the immediate neighbour-
hood, and in various parts of the parish, numerons
Roman and Saxon coins have been discovered. Anne
Yearsley, who, in the humble station of a wmilk-
woman, displayed much poetical talent, and ced
several literary works, was a native of this ; she
died in 1806 at Melksham, in the county of Wilts.
CLIFTON, a joint township with Salwick, in the
parish of Kimksam, hundred of AmounpeErxess,
county palatine of LancasTer, 3 miles (E.8.E.) from
Kirkham, containing, with Salwick, 608 inhabitants.
In 1682, John Dickson left a small bequest for teaching
children.
CLIFTON, a township in the parish of Eccres,
hundred of Sivrorp, county palatine of Lancasrsn,
5 miles (K. W. by W.) from Manchester, containing 1168
inhabitants, Newmmllieriea mem ereue.;. this
place, whereby its tion y. ‘
CLIFTON, a joint township with Coldwell, in the
northern division of the of STANNINGTON, West-
ern division of Castie ward, county of N
BERLAND, 24 miles (8.) from Morpeth, The

is returned with the parish. N
CLIFTON, a parish in the unrthamdivfﬂog of the
of Rusmovrivrs, of NorriNemam,
44 miles (8.W. by 8.) from Natzﬁhﬁ. containing,
m.mmwmwaum, _
in the archdeaconry of s and diocese of
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rated in the books 8t £21:6.10},, andin- taining, with the: hanulet of Newton with
B eteamage of Sie R obeet Glfton, etk ;ﬂi ureh, i The living is a discharge n the ®

church,
dedicated to St. Mary, is a fine structure, - ‘much
dilapidated ; it has a massive tower, and containg
ts to the Clifton family, Here was anei
. n-lmallmllage for a warden and two priests, dedicated

to the Hol{ Trinity, and founded in tho time of Ed-
ward IV., by Sir Gervase Clifton, which, at the disso-
lution, was valued at £20 per annum. is & small

:;quen for the instruction of children and the support
an hospital.  Clifton is in the honour of Tutbury,
duchy of Lancaster, and within the iction of a
court of pleas held at Tutbury every third 'hudsy, for
the recovery of debts under 40s.

CLIFTON, a township in the parish of Dr.nnmc'rox,
hundred of Woomm, county of Ox¥orp, 14 mile (E.)
from Deddington, containing 271 inhabitants. There
s a lace of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.

N, a parish in West ward, county of Wesr-
uont.um. ﬂ- miles (8, E. by 8.) from Penrith, con-
283 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the
and diocese of Carlisle, rated in the king's
books at £8. 3. 4., and in the patronage of the Bishop
of Carlisle. 'The church, dedicated to St. Cuthbert, is a
small and indifferently structure. The parish i8
bounded on the morth and west by the river Lowther,
in the vale of which the village is situated, deriving its
nameé from the rock or cliff on which it stands. At
Clifton moor, which was enclosed in 1612, a slight skir-
mish took place in 1745, between the Duke of Cumber-
land and a party of the Pretender's army, on its retreat
to Scotland. There is a medicinal spring, the water of
which is efficaciouns in the cure of scorbutic complaints.
Mary Scott, in 1764, made a small bequest towards the
support of a schoolmaster.

CLIFTON, a township partly in the parish of Sr.
anuu. le Beverey, within the liberty of Sr. Peren
and y in the parish of St. Orave, Manry-

Gate, of Buumer, North riding of the county

' of York, 1} mile (N.W.) from York, containing 469

inhubitants.

" CLIFTON, a joint township with Norwood, in the
parish of Fewston, lower division of the wapentake of
Crano, West riding of the county of York, 6 miles
(N. by E.) from Otley, containing, with Norwood,
420 inhabitants. Clifton is within the jurisdiction
of the court of the honour of Knaresborough. A

is endowed with a small annuity for the in-
‘struction of eight poor children.
CLIFTON, a joint township with Newhall, in that
part of the parish of Owﬁrﬁmhnhthewper divi-
sion of the take of Cramo, West riding of the

wapen
county of Youx, 2 miles (N. wJﬁ-mOtky The
hmmdﬁ‘ﬂlﬂd&u.

archdenconry of Coventry, and diocese

Govenh*y,utadmthekingibooklltﬁa I.B.Mr '
the patronage of the Earl of Bradford. The church is
dedicated to St. Mary. The Oxford canal p: through
this parish. Thomas Carte, author an elaborate
History of England, was bmhue, inmsﬂj Tdh‘
in 17 754, Y P,

CLIFTON (GREAT), a dmpelry in the -
WorkineToN, ALLerpane ward above CrW
county of CumBeRLAND, 24 miles (E.) meoangton,
containing 251 inhabitants. The living is a tual
curacy, in the archdeaconry of Richmond, and: of
Chester, endowed with £800 royal bounty, and £ 1000
parliamentary gnu*nﬂ in the patiinage of the Rector
of Workington. e is situated in the town-
ship of Little Clifton : an additional piece of
was consecrated for a cemetery in 1821, the former -
burial-ground having been disused from the year 1786.
Here are the remains of an ancient cross, where, ac-
cording to tradition, a market was formerly held. The
Rev, Jeremiah Seed, a theologlcal writer, was a nltive
of this place; he died in 1747.

CLIFTON (LITTLE), a township in the punnh of
Worgingron, ALLerpars ward above Derwent, county
of CumpeRLAND, 34 miles (E.) from Worki 5 con-
taining 203 inhabitants.

CLIFTON (NORTH), a parish in the nurthm divie
sion of the wapentake of Newark, county of Nor-
TINGHAM, 6 miles (E. by N.) from Tuxford, comprising
the township of South Clifton, and the hamlets of
Harby and Spalford, and containing 864 mhlbltantu
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the arch-
deaconry of Nottingham, and diocese of York, rated
in the king's books at £7. 6., and in the patronage
of the Prebendary of Clifton in the Cathedral Church
of Lincoln. The church is dedicated to St.
The parish is bounded on the west by the river Trent,
over which there is a ferry, which is free to the inha-
bitants. The village of Harby contained a palace
belonging to Eleanor, consort of Edward L.,
who expired here on the 20th of November, 1200 ;
and here her august husband erected the first cross
to her memory. A schoolmaster receives £10. 10.
per annum, a schoolroom and residence having been
built for him by subseription in 1709, arising W'
land bequeathed by Simon Nicholson, in l&dﬂ.ﬂ‘w
gﬂ}mmng fifteen poor chﬂdrm of . North lnd M

ton w1 WY

CLIFTON (SOUTH), a parish of
Nowra Currrox, northern of the wlp‘nqhof
Newarxk, county of Nmmmun,ﬁ nﬂbl(mm
from Tuxford, containing 292 inhabitants, -

d .CLD?TON uponm a pﬂiﬂl.—im-.&. '7




disused.

b

x castle; formerly the residence of the ﬁmﬂyw
es, which was nearly destroyed in 1646, by the
parliamentary g it is nnwucuupieduafarmﬁ

was a chapel at Overton, in this
_ in 1532, Charles, Bishop of Hereford, with
Md‘ the viear of Clifton and the inhabitants,
it to the parlsh of Slandford, reserving to the
‘an annual pension’ of 13s, 44., in lien of tithes
lnd offerings due from the inhabitants of the chapelry.

CLIFTON upon URE, a township in the parish of
TrORNTON-WATLASS, eastern divisign of the wipentake
of Haxe, North ridfiog of the of Yorxk, 4 miles

(8. w.) from Bedale, containing 50 bitants.

: CLIFTON-GAMFVILLE a parish in the northern
division of the hundred ofwOrrrow, county of Srtay-
FORD, 5% miles (N.E. by N.) from Tamworth, compris-
ing the chapelry of Harleston and the township of
Haunton, and containing 838 inhabitants. The living
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Stafford, and dio-
cese of Lichfield and Coventry, rated in the king's
hooks at £30, and in the patronage of the Rav. Juhn
‘Watkins. The church is dedicated to St. Andrew,

' CLIFTON-HAMPDEN, a parish in the hundred of
Dorcuester, county of Oxrorp, 3% miles (E,8.E.)
from Abingdon, containing 277 inhabitants, The living
is a perpetual curacy, in the jurisdiction of the peculiar
court’ of Dorchester, endowed with £666 private bene-
faction, £200 royal bounty, and £2100 parliamentary
grant, and in the patronage of Miss Noyes, The church
i dedicated to St. Michael.

CLIFTON-MABANK, a parish in the hundred of
Yersminster, Sherborne division of the county of
Donrser, 5§ miles (W. 8. W.) from Sherborne, containing
66 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, formerly within
the peculiar jmsdlcuon of the Dean of Salisbury, but
united in 1824'to the vicarage of Bradford-Abbas, and
now within the archdeaconry of Dorset, and diocese of
Bristol, rated fn'the king's books at £%. 16, 0f. The
church, which was dedicated to All Saints, has been in
ruins for a century. The river Ivel runs through this

CLH‘TON-REYNES a parish in the hundred of
7, county of BuckiNeaam, 24 miles (E.) from
Olney, mntdmng 230 inhabitants. The living is a rec-
tory, in the archdeaconry of Buckingham, and diocese
of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £13. 6. 104,,
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and in the patronage of for William Harry
Alexander Small, Esq. church is dedicated to St.
My pﬂ manor here was given by William

m&a’[‘odm one of the com-

vqguhh in the hundred of Avisrorp,
»iL, county of Sussex, 7 miles (8. 8. W.)
ning 258 inhabitants. The living
and diocese ad’m(;hi-

CLINCH, ajointmwmhip with lfmudm tnd
side, in the parish of InGram,
Coauerpare ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND, IH
miles (W.) from Alnwick. The population is

'm:: = that of th pn:;lh of
LINT, a township in part e

Rrrrey which is in the lower division of the wapentake
of Craro, West riding of the county of Yomrx, 1§ mile
(W. by 8.) from Ripley, containing 412 inhabitants.
Here are the remains of an ancient mansion, called
Clint Hall. The Roman road from Ilkley over the
forest of Knaresborough branched off in two directions
at this place, one leading to Catterick, the other to Ald-
borough.

CLIPPESBY, a parish in the western divimon of
the hundred of FLece, county of Norvork, 3 miles
(N. E.) from Acle, containing 50 inhabitants. The living
is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £6. 13. 4., and
in the patronage of D. Colby, Esq. and another. The
church is dedicated to St. Peter,

CLIPSHAM, a parish in the soke of Oaxmam, lo-

‘cally in the hundred of Alstoe, county of RurrLanp,

94 miles (N. E.by E.) from Oakham, containing 221 in-
habitants, The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
of Northampton, and diocese of Peterborough, rated in
the king's books at £10. 0. 5., and in the pa
of Mrs. Snow, church is dedicated to St Mary.

CLIPSTON, a parish in the hundred of RorawELL,
county of NorTrAMPTON, 4 miles (8. 8. W.) from Mar-
ket-Harborough, containing 818 inhabitants. The living
is a rectory in three portions, two of which are valued
in the king's books at £11. 12. 8}., and the third at
£6; it is in the archdeaconry of Northampton and
diocese of Peterbo ,and in the patronage of the
Master and Fellows of Christ's College, Cambridge.
The church is dedicated to All Saints. In 1667, Sir
George Boswell bequeathed land and tenements to en-
dow a school and an hospital; and Francis Horton also
bequeathed £200 to increase the endowment : they are
for the benefit of the inhabitants of Clipston, Merston,
Nussell, East Farndon, Oxendon, Kilmarsh, and Hasel-
beck. The river Ise rises in this parish

CLIPSTON, awwmhipinthatpatofthepmshof
PrumTree which is in the southern division of the wa-
pentake of Bineuam, county of Norrineuam, 6§ miles
(8. B) from Nottingham, céntaining 72 inhabitants.
Richard 1., after from the captivity brought
onbyhiscrundetothe oly Land, had an interview
with the king of Scotland at this place, in 1194, where
they spent several days.

CLIPSTONE, a township in the mhofl!iﬂn-
STOW, HutﬁelddiﬁaionofthewnpmhkaufB SSET
county ofNornmqum, 33 miles (W. s.w.) om O]
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~ scription: a
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_ Sir T.D. Acland, and another for girls only by Lady

be sent to London before the following ( _
his: app coronation.  To this_palace also all
the kings of down to Henry V. appear to

have repaired for the diversion of hunting in the royal
mul}mthesmmd, o?ﬂﬁﬂ'- ﬁmilﬁhl;emng de Faucon-
berge, in reign enry IIIL., the neighbour-
ing manor of Cuckney in serjeantry by the shoeing of
the king's palfrey on coming to Mansfield. A p:ﬁm
ment was held here by Edward 1. in 1290, and an old
oak at the edge of the park is still ralled the Parliament
oak. Clipston is in the honour of Tutbury, duchy of
Lancaster, and within the jurisdiction of a court of
pleas held at Tutbury every third Tuesday, for the re-
of debts under 40s.

CLIST (BROAD), a parish in the hundred of Cris-
ToN, county of Drvox, 53 miles (N. E.) from Exeter,
ining 1885 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage,

in the archdeaconry and diocese of Exeter, rated in the
king's books at £26, and in the patronage of Sir T. D.
Acland, Bart. The church, dedicated to St. John the
Baptist, is a handsome edifice in the later style of En-
glish architecture, containing three stone stalls with but-
trésses and pinnacles, having rich canopies, and em-
bellished with varied foliage, with an effigy in plate ar-
mour within them. The river Clist runs through the
parish, in which there is a paper-mill. This place was
burnt down by the Danes in 1001y The old mansion
of Columbjohn, in this parish, was isoned for
Charles 1. by his loyal adherent, Sir John Acland :
it has a chapel, in which divine service is still regularly
quu On the manor of Clist-Gerald is a barn,
once the chapel of St. Leonard ; there were also chapels
dedicated to St. David and St. Catherine. A charity
school, founded in 1691, is pertly by an en-
dowment of about £15 per annum, and partly by sub-
school-house for boys and girls, who

on the National plan, has been erected by

|

Acland. An almshousg for twelve poor persons was
built by Mr. who endowed it, in 1605, with
£238.11. annam, and placed it under the direction
of the “Eight Men' of the parish. Adjoining it is a

w called the New House, and, at a little dis-
! €, one

called the Parish House, both inhabited by

" CLIST (ST. GEORGE), a parish in the eastern di-
vision of the hundred of BubLEIGH, county of Dnvui:,
n : con 345 in-

¢hurch contains mn elegant wooden screen.
CLIST (ST. MARY), a parish in the castem divi-

sion of the hundred of BubLEiGu, county of Bevox,

24 miles (N. E. by N.) from Topsham, containing 145

inhabitants. The living is & rectory, in the archdea

and diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's books at

£5. 1. 8, and in the leof the Rev, 'I‘hom;:
Strong. This parish is memorable for having been the
scene of*one of the prin contests between the adhe-
rents of the old ion and the Reformers, in 1549,
when the former were defeated, and pursued with
great slaughter through the village to the heath adjoin-
ing. This parish is entitled to an annuity of £3 per
annum from an estate called Holbrook, in the parish of
Clist-Honiton, bequeathed by Thomas Weare for the
education of six poor children. My

CLIST-HONITON, a parish in the eastern division
of the hundred of Bupreien, county of Devon, 44
miles (E. by N.) from Exeter, contgining 383 inhabit-
ants. The living is a curacy, within the pecu-
liar jurisdiction and of the Dean and Chapter
of Exeter, endowed with £200 private benefaction,
and £300 parliamentary grant. The Clyst, though an
insignificant stream, imparts its name to this and the
other parishes through which it passes. Thomas Weare
by his will beari te 26th April, 1691, charged his
estate, called H::l.gmok,wiﬂ: the annual payment of
£4. 10. for educating six children, sum is re-
gularly paid by the owner of the pro , and with
subscriptions, affords instruction to all the poor children
of the parish who apply. 3 3

CLIST-HYDON, a parish in the hundred of Crrs-
TON, county of Devox, 34 miles (8. 8. E.) from Cullomp-
ton, containing 207 inhabitants. The living is a reg-
tory, in the deaconry and diocese of Exeter, rated
in the king's ks at £20. 0. 74., and in the patron.
age of the Rev, John Huyshe. The church is dedi-
cated to St. Andrew. A charity school i endowed with
about £20 annum, principally from a bequest by
the Rev, Robert Hall, D.D., in l‘&‘r’, ~of which is
also applied in apprenticing poor children, with & fee
of £5. R R L
CLIST-SACKVILLE, a chapelry in the parishes
of Crist St. Mary, Farninenox, and Sowrox,
division of the hundred of Bupy '
24 miles (N, by E.) from T
returned with the




®  higher division of the hun-
5 dred of BrackBurN, coun-
5ty palatine of Lancaszeg,
g on the eastern bank of the
Ribble, 30 miles (N.) from
Manchester, 49 (N.E.) from
Liverpool, 26 (8.E.) from
Lancaster, and 216 (N.N.W.)
from London, containing 32183 inhabitants. Its ancient
C‘ildcrhow, is of a mixed derivation, from the
Bﬂﬂlh Cled-dwr, which signifies the hill, or rock, by the
waters, and ‘the final syllable how, a Saxon word for
Mll, ‘being ducﬂptive of its situation, which is on an
eminence, terminating in one direction in a lofty
roak of limestone, on which stands the decayed keep of
a castle, erected either in the of William the Con-
mr or in that of his son : some ascribe the found-
ition to Robert de Lacy the first, but, on the authority

Arms,

, who states that the cnstle, and
:cha.cl annexed thereto, were built
The castle originally consisted of a keep,
O. tower and arched gateway, and was surround-

a strong lofty wall built on the margin of the

: it 'was used as a species of fortress for dispensing
juﬁoe and receiving tribute by the Lacies, who were
ount of the honour. This honour, which

cxtendu over the parishes of Whalley, Blackburn, Chip-
ﬁb&:ester, the forest of Bowland, and the

mnm of Tottington and Rochdale, and includes twen-

ty: manors, formed part of the pusmsmnn of
the house of Lancaster, from the time of the marriage
of Thomas . Earl of Lancaster, with Alice,

ﬁitu'mdhehuaofﬂ de Lacy, until that of the
Restoration, when Chntlm%. bestowed it upon General
Monk and his heirs: it is now divided between hls
Grace the Duke of Buccleuch and Lord Montggue ;
manors and estates, of whatsoever tenure, w:t.hm 1ts
limits, held of th; castle : 1thnsa]aon.o££nr]tlfnr
recovery of small debts, exten over un-
of Blackburn, Dunngthemofthemses,
V1., on his ion, sought a temporary re-
fu hanunoagthe tary dependents of the house
neaster, but was betrayed to his rival by the Tal-

% Ookhlylnduutboundmlnn

“

o ofthe '
of‘anﬁhicbhﬁ '’

* members to

ward from the town, ten k)lns are kept
weeks in the ym,mdpmduceinthelmﬁﬂfm
thousand windles, or twenty-eight thousa
weekly. Horse-races of an inferior d tion were
re-established in 1821, and are held annually on the
21st and 22nd of June, on Salt-hill moor. There are
extensive cotton-manufactories and print-works in the
town and ite vicinitys which have flourished to such &
degree that the population has nearly doubled during
the last ten years. A communication by water has
been opened with the principal navigable rivers and
canals, thus affording a facility of conveyance to all
parts of the kingdom. The market is on Tuesday :
fairs are held annually on the 24th and 25th of March,
1st and 2nd of A , on the fourth Friday and Sutur-
day after the 29th of September, and on the 6th and
7th of December; there is also a fair for cattle and
sheep evcry altemate 'I\nuday
: ) Clitheroe is @ borough
by prescription: itsfirst char-
a ter, dated in the time of

ward L., whogranted the bur-
gesses the same privileges as
those enjoyed by the citizens
of Chester, and subsequently
by Edward ITL, Henry VIIL,

= ), andJames IL Thecivil power
Corpornte Seal. isvestedintwo bailiffs,cl
annually by the at large, from their own body,

at a court held farﬂ purpose on the first Friday after
the 9th of October: their joint authority is equal to
that of one m te ; they are coroners and lords of
the manor, for which they hold a court leet twice a
year: in addition to this, there are a court baron and a
court of enquiry, held under one or hnthofthebulig
these courts are held in the moot-hall, a neat r
edifice, ornamented in front with the borough arms cut
in stone, and surmounted by a spire sixty-two feet
high. There is also a court of pleas, having jurisdic-
tion to an unlimited amount in actions of debt arising
within the borough : itis holden every three weeks be-
fore the two bailiffs, and has existed from time imme-
morial. In addition to the bailiffs are the recorder,
who is elected by the burgesses, mdoﬁdmum
sor to the bailiffs in the trial fcmsesin )

court ; the town-clerk, who is also s
court leet ; nndtbatm , who is
officer and r of the

appointed by




The parliamentary influence is
prmcipally poaameﬂ by Earl
Howe, who concur in the nomination of one member
each,

The living is a perpetual curacy, endowed
with £10 pte:gannum and £8200 private benefac-
tion, £200 royal bounty, and £1900 parliamentary

mnt, and in the patronage of Earl Howe. The church,

dicated to St. Michael, is of great antiquity, being

the church of St. Mary Magdalene, in a

of the 13th of Edward IV.: .between the nave and

the choir is a fine Norman arch; and a brass plate

agninst the southern wall of the nave bears a curig
n to

enigmatical dhgum, and an inseription in Lati
mumclry of Dr. Webster, the celebrated jodicial

w":gcr ly curate of Clitheroe, who was
in here, June 21st, 1682, There are places of

worship for Indepmdcnm Methodists, and Roman Ca-

thulicn The free mar school was founded, in
1554, by Philip and , and endowed with the rec-
tm"ia.l s of the puinh of Almondbury, and with
certain

wburguges,md lands in the district
of Craven, in Yorkshire
superintendence of six governors, who the mas-
ter and usher, subject to the approval of the Bishop
Chester, as visitor, The head-master receives a salary
of £900 and has a handsome residence, recently erect-
ed,which he occupies rent-free : the second master is
allowed £100 per annum, and both receive gratuities at
Shrovetide, us revenue of the institution is
. appropriable to the repairs of the school, and to the
lmppurt of poor scholars at the university, but the lat-
is seldom carried into effect. The Rey,

its concerns are under the

'wbon
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CLIVIGER, = ¥
of Wnarney which tha' sher d of
hundred of Bmcuﬂln. com:ty
TER, 3} miles (8 E. by 8,) from Burnl
1814 inhabitants, ‘l‘hminumﬂlbequp?ﬁrﬂnh.
ction of children,
"TCLIXBY. u chapelry in"the parish of @aterox,
southern division of the hundred of YArBOROUGH.
parts of Lixpsey, county of Liycoux, 2§ miles (N,
by w.) from Caistor, containing 67 inhabitants. The
living is a curacy, annexed to the vicarage
of Caistor, in the peculiar jurisdiction of the Prebens
dary of Caistor in the Cathedral Church of
CLOATLY, a tything in the parish of HaxkerTON,
hundred of MavLmEsnury, county of Wivrs, 8] miles
(N. E.) from Malmesbury, containing 87 inhabitants,
CLODOCK, a parish in the hundred of Ewvas.
Lacy, county of Hereromn, 16 miles (S, W. by w.)
from Hereford, comprising the chapelries of :
Llanveynoe, and Longtown, and the township of New-
ton, and containing 1796 inhabitants. The living is a
vicarage not in charge, in the archdeaconry of Brecon,
and dibcese of St. David's,* and in the patronage of
Walter Wilkins, Esq. The church is dedicated to St, °
Cleodocus. Fairs are held on April 20th, June 22nd, and
September 21st. Here is a school with an_endowment
of £4 per anmum. The rivers Olchon and
have their source in this parish, and the river
runs through it. At Longtown are the remains of an
ancient castle, formerly of great strength, and a Ro-
man camp in a very perfect state, ”
CLOFFOCK, an extra-parochial liberty nﬁommg
the parish of Wm-kh:gton, in ALLERDALE ward above:
Derwent, county of CumBERLAND, containing 15 inha-
bitants, This is a common, lylngcnthqnonh
side of the town of Workington, and is completely sur-
rounded by the river Derwent and a small stream.
Races are held annually upon it; and at the west end
are a quay and a patent slip. A portion of the
u called Chapel Flat, whence it is thonght to lu.m
%0 or property of a religious house, ;
RD, & parish in the hundred ume
county ofSon:ns:'r, 41} miles (8.W.) from Frome, con-




_ i, 's—boghaags £16.18.4., and in the
ww A o o mo The church is
dedicated to St. Mary. i
HORTH, aparigh in the hundred of Hounps-

Berwiok, and Coxen, county of SomerserT,
4} miles (8.byE.) from Yeovil, containing 187 inhabit-
ants.  The living is a discharged rectory, in the avch-
deaconry of Wells, and diocese of Bath and Wells, rated
in the king's books at £ 6. 8.114., and in the patronage
of E. B. Portman, Esq. The church is dedicated to
All Saints:

CLOTHALL, a parish in the hundred of Opsey,
county of Hemrrorn, 2% miles (5. E.) from Baldock,
containing 358 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in
thearchdeaconry of Huntingdon, and diocese of Lincoln,
rated in the king's books at £16. 0 74., and in the pa-
tronage of the Marquis of Salisbury. The church, dedi-
cated to St. Mary, is built of flint and stone, and has a
square tower surmounted by a spire; it contains several
ancient effigies and inscriptions in brass. Here was a
free chapel, or college, of ancient foundation, dedicated
to St. Mary Magdalene, for a master, brethren, and
gisters, which was valued at £4, 2. 8., and continued till
the dissolution. Thomas Stanley, son of Sir Thomas
Stanley, Knt., and author of The History of the Philo-
sophers, was born here, in 1625; he died in 1678, and
was buried in the parish church,

CLOTHERHOLME, a township in that part of the
parish of Riron which is within the liberty of Riron,
West riding of the county of Yorx, 2 miles (N. W,
by w.) from Ripon, containing 16 inhabitants,

CLOTTON-HOOFIELD, a township in that part of
the parishof Tarvin which is in the second division of
the hundred of Eppissury, county palatine of Carster,
2 miles (W. N.W.) from Tarporley, containing 388 inha-
hitants.

CLOUGHTON, a chapelry in the parigh of Scavny,
Prexeming lythe, North riding of the county of York,
44 miles (N.W. by N.) from Scarborough, containig 366
inhabitants, * Here is a large quarry of excellent free-
&tone,

CLOVELLY, aparish in the hundred of HArTLAND,
county: of Devoxs, 12 miles (W. by 8.) from Bideford,
eontaining 941 i itants, The living is a vectory,
in the arch of Barnstaple, and diocese of

| Exeter, rated in the king's hooks at £10. 11. 54,

and in the patronage of Sit J. H. Williams, Bart.

The church, dedicated to All Saints, and made col-
ogitte for a warden and six chaplains by one of the

' of Curew; in the 11th of Richard 11, stands
staned™®f half o mile from the village, and
height' above it.  There is a place

The prospect from the heights is extensive, and embraces
numerous interesting objects, among which the
the isle of Lundy in the channel, of Barnstaple ba;
the opposite coast as far as the Severn, and of
vessels in the small harbour beneath, are eminentl
fine : the appearance of the village from the harbour is
strikingly picturesque, presenting a singular combination
of romantic cottages, rugged precipices, and masses of
rock of remarkable configuration, fringed with woods
and occasionally interspersed with spots of ground in a
high state of cultivation. The harbour, which, together
with that of Hartland, is an appendage to the port of
Bideford, though small, is remarkable for its security, and
18 formed partly by the projecting rocks of the coast, and
partly by a substantial pier erected by a member of the
family of Carew, by on¢ of whom the manor was. pur-
chased in the reign of Richard II. A considerable trade
is still carried on in the herring fishery, for which Clovelly
was formerly the most noted place on the coast: the
herrings are esteemed the finest taken in the channel,
and the fishery furnishes employment to the principal
part of the labouring class. Theneighbourhood abounds
with geological attractions, but possesses no organic re-
muins; the rocks, of which the strata incline in every
direction, consist of alternatebeds of dug-stoneand shillat.
There is & small charity school, partly supported by the
rental of the seats in the gallery of the church, and partly
by subscription. On the summit of the heights above
the village is a large encampment, called Dichen, or the
Clovelly ditches, consisting of three trenches, or dykes,
enclosing a quadrilateral area three hundred and. sixty
feet in length, and three hundred in breadth.
CLOWHOUSE, a joint township with Houoghton, in
that part of the parish of Hepoon on the WaLr which
i in the eastern division of Tinpare ward, county of
NORTHUMBERLAND, 74 miles (W.byN.) from New-
castle. The population is returned with Houghton.
CLOWN, a parish in the hundred of ScARspALE,
county of Denny, 8 miles (E.N.E.) from Chesterficld,
containing 616 inhabitants, The living is a rectory, in
the arehdeaconry of Derby, and diocese of Lichfield and
Coventry, rated in the king's books st £7. 0. 10., and
in the patronage of the Crown. The church, dedicated
to St.John the Baptist, has Norman portions, amidst
various later styles of architecture.  Charles Bas-

seldine, in 1780, founded a charity school, with an en- .

dowment of thirteen acres of land, now producing £26
per annum, with a house for the master and a school-
room ; twenty children are educated upon this founda-
tion, and four others for £ 2 per annum, the gift of John
Slater, in 1727.  In 1770 an information and bill were
filed in the court of Chancery, to recover some part of
the school property left by Mr. Basseldine, when a de-
cree was given in-favour of the charity, and the rectors
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.incorporated by the Lords Marchers, whose charter was

: taining
1781 inhabitants, of which
number, 792 are in the town
of Clun, 26 miles (8.W.)
from Shrewsbury, and 157
(N. W. by W.) from London.
This place takes its name
from the river Colun, or Clun, which, rising in the forest
of that name, six miles to the west, divides the town
into two parts, and pursues an easterly course towards
Ludlow, In the reign of Stephen, or, according to
Camden, in that of Henry ITL., & castle was erected here
by Fitz-Alan, afterwards Earl of Arundel, on a lofty
eminence overlooking the river, the proprietor of which
anciently possessed the power of life and death over his
tenants ; it was demolished by Owen Glyndwr in his
rebellion aguinst Henry IV. The remains still present
an interesting and picturesque object in the surround-
ing landscape ; they consist of the lofty and massive
walls of the keep and the banguet-hall; and con-
siderable masses of the ruins in various parts of the
area indistinctly mark out both the ancient form and
extent of this once stately pile. In the reign of Henry
VIIL this parish was by statute annexed to, and made
part of, the newly formed county of Montgomery,
from which it was afterwards severed, and included in
that of Salop. The town is pleasantly and romanti-
cally situated on & gentle eminence surrounded by hills
of bolder elevation, and consists principally of one long
irregular street on the north bank of the river, over
which is an ancient stone bridge of five sharply-pointed
arches, leading to that part of the town in which the
church stands: the houses are in general built of
rag-stone, and roofed with thatch, though occasionally
interspersed with some of more modern structure ; and
the inhabitants are well supplied with water. The mar-
ket is on Wednesday : the fairs are on Whit-Tuesday
and September 23rd, for cattle, sheep, and pigs ; and
November 22nd, which is a statute and a large cattle
fair. Clun, formerly a lordship in the marches, was first

Corporate Seal.

confirmed to Thomas, Earl of Arundel, in the reign of
Edward I1., at which time its prescriptive right was ad-
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~in October constables for the town and the several town-
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ships in the parish are appointed. The town-hall, a neat
modern stone building supported on arches, consists of
one large upper ¥dom, in which the several courts are
held ; under it is an area for the use of the market, in
which is a small prison for the temporary confinement
of malefactors, ' 3

of Sa-

The living is a vi , in the
lop, and diocese of H rated in the books
at £13. 10. 5., and in the of the Earl of

Powis. The church, dedicated to St. George, is a very
ancient structure in the earliest period of the Norman
style of architecture, and has evidently been of much
greater extent than it is at present, having had several
rhnpcl; attached to ;h f“ has a low tower of very
large dimensions and o t strength, with a -
midal roof, from the centrir?f' which rises motmf
similar form, but smaller ; the arch under the tower
which forms the western entrance, bears a strong resem.
blauce to the Saxon arch, and it is not improbable that
this part of the building existed before the Conguest:
the northern entrance is under a highly ornamented
Norman arch, on the east side of which is an arched
recess, richly cinquefoiled, and probably intended for the
tomb of its founder : the interior contains a fine old font
and many interesting monuments; the roof is supported
on massive citcular columns and obtusely pointed arches,
with flat mouldings ; and in the north aisle the original
oak ceiling, carved in quatrefoil, is still preserved. There
is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. A cha-
rity school for twenty poor girls was built by the Rev.
Mr. Swainson, the present vicar, who pays a mistress
for teaching them reading, sewing, and knitting, and also
the master of a similar school for bays, for teaching
them to write. The charity school for boys, held in the
town-hall, is supported partly by the vicar, and partly
by subscription ; in both these schools articles of
clothing are given in reward for good conduct,

Clun Hospital, dedicated to the Holy Trinity, was
founded in 1614, and endowed, by Henry Howard, Earl
of Northampton, with tithes in the several parishes of
Church-Stoke in Montgomeryshire, Knighton in Rad-
norshire, and Weston in the county of Salop, producing
a revenue of £1000 per annum; the establi nt
consists of fourteen poor bretbren, and a warden, who
reads morning and evening prayers daily ; the brethren
have each a house and

Tre———
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that general in his last battle with Caractacus; and for Methodists and Indqmdm ‘m&ﬂu
‘about five miles to the south-east, near the confluence grteuofs ‘bf cqpuen hy -Mr. Perry,
of the rivers Clun and Teind, and amile of Wal- uaufmmumwm Adamn, vested gie
‘cott, the seat of the Earl of Powis, afe the Caer, or Bury in land, andfmdads&usdﬂuhﬁehmmeﬁf
_Ditchﬁ,tﬁeahﬁonofthenﬁmh hero, and the scene is £20 per annum, for and apprenticing ten
of his last effort the Roman power: the camp, children of the parish. 1 is carried on in a

which is of an elliptic form, comprehends an area of
from to four acres, on the summit of a very lofty
¢, commanding an extensive view of the sur-
rounding country; the steep acclivities are defended by
a triple intrenchment of amazing strength, which,
though overgrown with turf, is still in a state of entire
ﬁmrvntmn, the ramparts, varying from fifty to sixty
in height, are constructed of stones and earth firmly
compacted, and the intermediate spaces are from twenty
to thirty yards in breadth: this fortification, evidently
a work of prodigions labour, is one of the most inte-
resting in the country, and, under the care of the Earl
of Powis, is preserved with a due regard to its historical
importance. In making a tarnpike road from Clun to
Bishop's Castle, in 1780, several cannon balls were
found.

CLUNBURY, a parish in the hundred of Punsvow,
county of SAvor, comprising the townships of Clunbury
with Obley, and Clunton with Rempton, and containing
800 inhabitants, of which number, 359 are in the town-
ship of Clunbury with Ohley, 6% miles (8.8.E.) from
Bishop's Castle. The living is a perpetual curacy, in
the archdeaconry of Salop, and diocese of Hereford,
endowed with £800 private benefaction, and £1800
parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of the Earl
of Powis. The church is dedicated to St. Swithin. Here
ig a small endowed school.

CLUNGUNFORD, a parish in the hundred of Purs-
row, county of Savop, 9 miles (8. E by §) from
Bishop's Castle, containing, with the extra-parochial
liberty of Dinmore, 486 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Salop, and diocese of
Hereford, rated in the king's books at £16, and in the
patronage of John Rocke, Esq. The church is dedi-
cated to St. Cuthbert. The trustees of Francis Walker,
in 1682, founded and endowed a charity school, the in-
come of which, increased by sundry other bequests in
1725 and 1776, amounts to £46 per annum, for teach-
ing the children of Clangunford, and the adjoining town-
ship of Broome, in the parish of Hopesay; about
ﬁh{y are educated upon this foundation. The river

" Clun and the Roman Watling-street intersgect this parish
from north to south. In the neighbourhood are two
tumuli, and limestone in abundance.

CLUNTON, a joint township with Rempton, in the
arish of Crunsury, hundred of Purstow, county of
'l' 54 miles (8. by E.) from Bishop's Castle, con-

g, ‘with Rempton, 441 inhabitants,

'ON, a township in the parish of Farnpox,

er divisiBh of the hundred of Broxrox, county pa-

. bf'Cﬂ'ﬁn‘l‘u 10 miles (8. 5. B.) from Chester, con-

: iﬂnts.

10 u parish in the hundred of Cnew,
wasow&imﬂu(s by E.) from Pensford,
g lm inhabitants. The is @ rectory,

%-wwam 4. 2., and inthe
pr ‘Ossory. * The church is

’l‘heretm places of wor-

ary of Bath, and diocese of Bath and

large room built upon thechm-chhnds from a charge
upon which, and the interest arising from some charities
at Chewstoke and. Clatton, all the poor hoys of the
parish are taught upon the National system. There are
extensive coal-mines, worked in the pavish. In the vi-
cinity are vestiges of an ancient fortification, called
Highbury, where British weapons have heen found;
which, from the discovery of some foundations, seems
to have been surrounded with walls,

CLYTHA, a chapelry in that part of the parish of
Lranarta which is in the lower division of the hun-
dred of RaGLanp, county of Moxmours, 5% miles
(N. by w.) from Usk, containing 376 inhabitants. On
the summit of an eminence at the extremity of the
Clytha hills is a small encampment, which retains marks
of having been strongly fortified.

COAL-ASTON, a township in the parish of Drox-
FIELD, hundred of Scarspank, county of Dersy, § of
a mile (N. by E.) from Dronfield, containing 304 i
bitants. Here is a school with & trifling endowment.

COALEY, & parish in the upper division of the hun-
dred of BerkxLey, county of Gruovcester, 3§ miles
(N. N. E.) from Dursley, containing 1117 inhabitants,
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Gloucester, ruted in the king's books at
£8, 2. 2, and in the patronage of the Crown. The
church is dedicated to St. Bartholomew. There is a
place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists,

COANWOOD (EAST), a township in the parish of
Havrwmistie, western division of Tinpane ward,
county of NoRTHUMBERLAND, 5 miles (8.) from Halt-
whistle, containing 165 inhabitants,

COASTAMOOR, a township in the parish of Heigu-
INGTON, south-eastern division of DarLineron ward,
county palatine of Durnam, 5§ miles (N,N,W.) from
Darlington, containing 12 inhabitants. This township
consists of only two farms,

COATES, a parish in the hundred of CrowrHORNE
and MineTy, county of GLovcrsTER, 3§ miles (W. by 8.)
from Cirencester, containing 309 inhabitants. The living
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Glou-
cester, rated in the king's books at £9. 6.8, and in the
patronage of William Tombs, Esq. The church is dedi-
cated to St. Matthew. The Thames and Severn canal
is crossed by a bridge on the line of the old Ackman-
way, as it passes through this parish. In the neigh-
bourhood is Trewsbury castle, also vestiges of a Roman
encampment,

COATES, a township in the parish of Prestwourp,
eastern.division. of the hundred of Goscore, county of
LicesTER, 14 mile (N.E, by E.) from Loughborough,
containing 74 inhabitants.

. COATES, a parish in the western division of the
wapentake of Asvacoe, parts of LiNpsey, muw d‘
Lincory, 94 miles (N. W. by N.) from Lincoln,

ing 45 inhabitants, The living is a dwelmgadvl

in the of Stow, and diocese of Linco! m‘ﬁ
rated in the king's books at £3. 16. 8.,@&!“&]

£600 royal bounty, and £200 parliamen‘hty M; it
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conry and diocese of Chichester. The church is in
the early style of English architecture. The Rother,
or Arundel, navigation traces the northern boundary of
this parish.

COATES, a township in the of Barxoun-
WiICK, eastern division of the wapentake of Starx-
cwrrs and Ewcnoss, West riding of the county of
Yonx, 8 miles (W.8.W.) from Skipton, containing 97
inhabitants,

COATES (GREAT), a parish in the wapentake of
Braprey-Haverstor, parts of Linpsey, county of
Lincony, 4 miles (W.) from Great Gnmshy, containing
287 inhabitants, Theliving is a rectory, in the arch-

and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
books at £11. 10. 10., and in the patronage of Sir R.
Sutton, Bart. The church is dedicated to St. Nicholas.

COATES (LITTLE), a parish in the wapentake of
Braprey-Haverstor, parts of Lainpsey, county of
LancoLn, 34 miles (W. by 8.) from Great Grimshy,
containing 47 inhabitants, The living is a discharged
vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln,
rated in the king's Books at £4. 18, 4., endowed with
£200 private benefaction, and £200 royal bounty, and

‘in the patronnge of the Master and Fellows of Trinity

College, Cambridge. The church is dedicated to St.
Nicholas,

COATES (NORTH), a parish in the wapentake of
Braprey-Havessror, parts of Linpsey, county of
fancony, 10 miles (N.N.E.) from Louth, containing
164 inhabitants, The living is a rectory, in the arch-

-and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
books at £12. 10. 10, and in the patronage of the
King, as Duke of Lancaster, The church is dedicated
to St. Nicholas,

COATHAM (EAST), a bhamlet in the parish of
Kirgruarnasm, eastern division of the liberty of Lane-
savrGH, North riding of the county of York, 6§ miles
{N. by w.) from Guilsborough. The population is re-
turned with the parish. Bast Coatham is a small fishing
village near the mouth of the Tees, much resorted to

: the sands in the neighbourhood are
for the promenade or the carriage; and

m’hm i ; f
mm,um% a township in that
part of the parish of Havenron le Sxx

C'@ B
. (8.E.) from Carlisle. The M s m
~ Cumwhinton, Mhuwﬂ
~COATON, a in that part " the of
RAVENSTHORPE is in the hundred of Guirs-
poRoUGH, county of NoORTHAMPTON, Of ma-«n.m
by N.) from Northampton, : 120 inhabitants. -

COATON-CLAY, a parish in the hundred of Guis-
norovGH, county of Nowrmameron, 6F miles (E. by
N.) from Rughy, containing 96 inhabitants. vz
is a rectory, in the uvhdumrﬁlof Northampton,
diocese of Peterborough, rated in the king's books' at
£10, and in the patronage of the Rev. Thomas Smith.
The church is dedicated to St. Andrew.

COAT-YARDS, or COAL-YARDS, a township in
the parish of Neraer Wrrron, western division of
Morrern ward, county of NonrHuMmsERLAND, 6 miles
(8. by E.) from Rothbury, containing 14 inhdbitants,

COBHAM, a parish (formerly a market town) in the
hundred of Smawwery, lathe of Avynesrorn, county of
KenT, 5 miles (W.) from Rochester, containing 646 in-
habitants, The living is = vicarage not in charge, in the
urt.hdemnnrya.nddmcescuf Rochester, endowed with €600
parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of the Earl of
Darnley. The church, dedicated to St. Mary Magdalene,
has parapets and an embattled tower, which, with the
north porch,and » fine basin, or water drain, under a rich-
ly canopied niche, are in the later style of English archi-
tecture; but the chancel and some other portions of the
fabric are of early date : it contains some very ancient
monuments and brasses to the noble families of Cobham
and Brooke. In 1362, John, Lord Cobham, made it
collegiate, erecting the collegc contignous to the church-
yard, and amply endowing it for five chaplains, which
number he afterwards increased to eleven : at the sup-
pression it was valued at £128. 1. 2., and was confirmed
by the crown to George, Lord Cobham, whose execators,
in 1598, built upon its site the present college, and en-
dowed it with the former possessions, for the main-
tenance of twenty poor persons. It is a neat quadran-
gular building of stone, comprising part of the ancient
structure, and containing a spacious hall, and an apart-
ment with a garden for each inmate: in the 39th of
Elizabeth the incorporated wardens of Rochester bridge
were declared to be perpetual presidents of ““the New
College,” in whose ‘successors the government is solely
vested. The villnge stands upon an eminence, and is
supplied with water from works constructed for the pur-
posc by the family of Cobham : it Iudfnrmulyawukl;r -
market on Monday, and a fair on St, Mary
day, granted to John, Lord Cobham; in the 41st ufdld-
ward I1L ; ‘the-fair is held anmually on the 2nd of Au-
gust, but the market has been long disused. The course
of the Roman Watling-street is visible in the parvishs
- and on a hill in Cobham Park is a splendid mausolenm,
intheDonesbyhaamdhyﬁeMofMM--
an expense of £ 15,000. 2 adpe

COBHAM, a parish in the second - m of the
hundred of ELMBRIDGE, county of Summey, ﬂc*-. |
(N. B}ﬁvm Guildford, and 20 (8. 'M)M. London



Saciety for the enlargement
s I-nhut-g'gruh:cfl f&"ﬂ?‘ﬁ‘f’.?"" defraying the
expense. pursuance Henry Smith, a
m mh]:liulhm founded in 1642, with an endowment

nd, which was augmented, in 1650, by a bequest
from Henry Smith, together producing £ 16 per annum,
for teaching and apprenticing children ; in 1722, two
trifling donations were left to this charity, by Gainsford
Thomas and Mary Hope, increasing the annual income
to £17. 5. The river Mole flows through this parish :
it abounds with pike, trout, perch, &c., and its banks
are adorned with many elegant villas. Fairs for horses
and sheep are held on March 17th and December 11th.
In the vicinity are some copper and iron works, A
little westward is a barrow, near which a considerable
number of Roman coins of the Lower Empire was
ploughed up, in 1772.

COBRIDGE, a hamlet partly in the parish of
Bunsrem, and partly in that of Sroke upon Trewnt,
northern division of the hundred of Prrenivy, county
of Srarronrp, 2 miles (N.N.E.) from Newcastle under
Line. The population is returned partly with the town-
ship of Shelton, and partly with the purish of Stoke
upon Trent. The village containg several manufactories
for china and earthenware, and there is an abundant
supply of coal in the neighbourhood. Here are a chapel
and a school belonging to Roman Catholics, and a
meeting-house for the New Connexion of Methodists.
School-rooms were erected by subscription in 1766, for
children of both sexes, which are let at trifling rents
to a master and a mistress, but there are no free pupils.
The ancient vill of Rushton, which has been supersed-
ed by Cobridge, is described in Domesday-book under
the name Risetone. It was given by Henry de Audley
to Hulton abbey, to which it became the grange, and
ufter the dissolution was a demesne ; for which reason,
and as having belonged to Cistercian monks, it is ex-
empt from the t of tithes, and has never been
nssessed to the church rate; for all other purposes (the
repairing of highways excepted) it is considered a mem-
ber of Burslem,

COCKEN, a township in the parish of Hovearon
le SerinG, northern division of Easinaron ward, county
palatine of Dunmam, 4 miles (N. N, E.) from Durham,
containing 59 inhabitants. Cocken was separated from
the constablery of West Rainton, and made a distinct
constablery, in 1726. It is situated on the river Wear :
coal is obtained in the neighbourhood. The manor-
house, which is surrounded by beautiful scenery, be-
came, at the commencement of the present century,
‘the residence of @ convent of nuns of the order of
St. Theresa, who were driven by the revolutionists
from their former settlement at Lier in Flanders, by
which they were deprived of ail their property in that

'COCKERHAM, a porish in the hundred of Lons-
mmdx:‘nﬁ. %w-?grum
"- e 9624 inhabitants, o

R e

£10. 16. 8., and e
corner of the churchyard, erected
1681, with an endowment in land, producing

annwm : about eighteen children are taught upon
foundation. A fair for pedlary is held on Easter-
Monday. Courts leet and baron are attached to the
manor, :
COCKERINGTON (8T. LEKONARD), a parish in
the Wold division of the hundred of Lovrs-Eskr,

of Lixpsey, county of LincoLw, 44 miles (E. N. E.)
from Louth, containing 186 inhabitants. The living
is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and dio-
cese of Lincoln, rated in the King's books at £5. 1. 64,
endowed with £400 royal bounty, and ‘in the pa

of the Bishop of Lincoln. The church is dedicated to
St. Leonard. .

COCKERINGTON (ST, MARY), a parish in the
Wold division of the hundred of Lovru-Eske, parts of
Linpsey, county of Lincouwn, 43 miles (N, E.) from
Louth, containing 206 inhabitants. The living is a per-
petual curacy, annexed to that of Alvingham, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln. The church is
dedicated to St. Mary,

COCKERMOUTH, an unincorporated b
market town, and parochial chapelry, in the parish of
Briguam; AuLerpaLe ward above Derwent, county of
CumperLAND, 25 miles (5. W.) from Carlisle, and 305
(N. W. by N,) from London, containing 3790 inhabit-
ants, The name is derived from the situation of the
town at the mouth of the river Cocker, which here unites
with the Derwent. The barony, now called the Honour
of Cockermouth, was assigned, soon after the Conguest,
by William de Meschines to Waldeof, Lord of Allerdale,
son of Gospatrick, Earl of Northumberland, fromwhom
it descended to Fitz-Duncan, nephew to Malcolm, King
of Scotland ; and his co-heiresses, one of whom married
into the family of Albemarle, and the other into that
of Lucy, shared it in moieties. On the death of Wil
liam de Fortibus, Earl of Albemarle, and his Countess
Isabel, without issue, their moiety of the castle and ho-
nour lapsed to the crown, and was bestowed upon Piers
Gavestone, in whose possession it continned for some
time ; but, in 1323, it was granted by Edward II. to
Anthony, Lord Lucy, propriector of the other moiety hy
inheritance. After his death, which took place in 1569,
Maud, his sister and heiress, settled the castle and ho-
nour on her second husband, Percy, Earl of Northum-
berland, They next passed to Charles Seymour, Duke
of erset, by marriage with the only daughter of
Joceling, the last earl of Northumberland, and wulti-
mately, in like manncr, came into the possession of the
earls of Egremont, the prosent earl being lord para-
mount of the hononr.

The castle, formerly the baronial seat of the lords
of Allerdale, stands on the edge of a precipitous emi-
nence, on the northern side of the town, ¢ the
confluence of the two rivers ; it is supposed to havebeen
erected by Waldeot, soon after the Conquest ( gl
the remains are not, apparently, of carlier date than th
fourteenth century), and to have been constructed with
the materials of an older castle, called Papcastle, the
former residence of Waldeof, a Roman fortress, about
a mile and @ half distant, on the other side of the Der-

by subscription i
€157
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is supposed to have been the dedimt.ed Yo St.
Mary, On each side of the entrance gateway is a
dungeon, capable of containing fifty prisoners, who pro-
bably through a small aperture visible in the
‘Mary, Queen of Scots, after her

wm of Dunbar, rested some time at
C wuth, on her way from Workington to Carlisle,
ly entertained at Hutton Hall,
Fletchers, In 1647, the plague

ym hundred of the inhabitants.
situated in a narrow valley, amid
versified with hill and dale, wood and
Derwentﬂowuunthemﬂhmddeofit
tone bridge of two
the hamlet of Goat,
lmgth, and completed
the county of £3000: on
an agreeable promeunade,
at one extremity
cliffs, and at the other by the roins
ﬂ:eeknudbawlingm The river
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y of water from the

the h'l.trgberl wﬂ'i. wh L
is jury npplt:emttd%o: qu the internal m ‘
acts as

and hddmg a
the business of the
gteward of the manor
for the recovery of debts under 40s,,
at Michaelmas and Easter : he also, aided by commis-
sioners appointed for the government of the several
manors comprised within the honour, holds a court of
dimissions at Christmas, in the castle. The Epiphany

quarter session for the county is held here in January.
'I'hu moot-hall, formerly an old dilapidated structure
inconveniently situated in the market-place, has been
recently rebuilt in a more commodious manner, and on
a more eligible site, There is a small house of correc-
tion in St. Helen's street. In the 23rd of Edward L
this borough returned members to parlinment, but from
that date till the 16th of Charles ? the elective fran.
chise was suspended ; it was then restored by a resolu-
tion of the House of Commm, determining, “ That the
borough of Cockermouth be restored to the ancient pri-
vilege of sending burgesses to parliament ;" and has
from that period regularly returned two members, who
are elected by the tenants, about three hundred
in number, chiefly in the interest of the Earl of Lons-
dale : the bailiff is the returning officer.. The election of
:  knights for the shire takes place here.

The living is a curacy, in the archdea-

conry of Richmond, and diocese of Chester,
with £800 private benefnchnn, £200 royal bounty, and
£1900 parliamentary grant, and in the E:t:mnq;e of the

%

Earl of Lonsdale, The old church, or ¢ erected in
the reign of Edward I11., was takmduvn,wtththqx-
ception of the tower, and the present edifice of freestone
built by means of a brief in 1711, and dedicated to All
Saints : it was nndbamﬁadin lsssquh
defraying the expense of which the Incorporated Society
for. building new churches consrﬂmteﬁ 5175;
tains one thousand free si



of ahout £800, the amount

in the whole abant five hundred members,
o these, there are different benevolent
established at
bank wis opened in May 1818, which, in November
1827, contained deposits to the umountofi.l?,lﬁr 15.5.
Tllehill-onenchs:deofthel)erwentm interesting to
ﬂu: natun!iat, consi ‘;:&hof calcareous stone, almost
of the genus ammoniz.  On
the nnﬂh side of the town is a tumulus, called Toot-hill ;
and one mile westward are the rampart and ditch of a
fort, or encampment, triangular in form, and nearly
seven hundred and fifty feet in circumference. The
Honour of Cockermouth confers the title of baron on
the family of Wyndham, Earls of Egremont.
COCKERSAND-ABBEY, an extra-parochial liberty,
in the hundred of LoNspavLe, south of the sands, county
palatine of LaNcAsTER, 7 miles (8. W. by 8.) from Lan-
caster. This was originally nharnut-age then an hospital
dedicated to St.Mary, for a prior and several infirm bre-
thren : it was endowed by William of Lancaster, in the
time of Henry 111, and was subordinate to the ahbey
of Leicester ; but ‘about the year 1106 it was changed
into an lbbey of Premonstratensian canons: by favour
of the crown it survived, for a short time, the general
dissolution, when it consisted of twenty-one religious
and fifty-seven servants, and was valued at £262. 7. 7.

mm : the principal relic is an octagonal chapter-

COCKERTON, a township in the parish of Dar-
LINGTON, south-eastern division of DarvinGTON ward,
county palatine of Durman, 14 mile (N.W. by N.) from
;Mngton. containing 469 inhabitants. Cockerton isa
considerable village, the inhabitants of which are chiefly
employed in the manufacture of linen, A schoolroom
was erccted by subscription in 18256, with an endow-
ment of £5 per annum, by the trustees of the late Lord
Crewe : divine service is perfofrmﬂ::l in it eve:;\y Wednes-
day ey by the curate o m
S mh% 4 esleyan Methodists mp;“nﬂtnh‘m 189‘;Beting
OOCKEY a chapelry in the parish of MippLETON,

of Sarrorp, county palatine of Lmumn,
: aimiln’m hyB.) from Bury. The population is re-

in the south- wmudlviﬂnn

al bene a.. ls distributed by the church- ham
lﬂhﬂx. 8 M inhabitants weekly, in bread

. A dis , estublished in 1785, is libe- Now
;lndthere fourfnend!ysodleﬁu

The living is a perpetual
and diocese of Chester, '

\ qiﬂ; £200 benefaction, £600 royal ‘&
aty, and £600 parlit ry grant, and in the pa-
%rmwamm In the village of
there is ¢ of worship for Unitarians,

 EIRTR ?‘-"\.t.- VS oy f&‘w it A

WUS"‘N,M‘E*
putronage of the Master and Fellows of St. John's

, Cambridge. The church, dedicated to St. Peter;
hasa and handsome tower.
G, a parish in the hundred of Emm
rape of Cmcnmu, county of Svssex, i} mﬂu{&i
inhabitants.

is avi , in the arch mddlmufw-
chesu:?mmtedln the king's books at £183. 6. 8., and in
the patronage of the
is in the early style of Eng.hhmhiuuture,vﬂhlm
later additions. In 1780, Stephen Challen bequeathed
certain messuages in tfust, forthealnutlon’-of
children of this parish and the parish of 3 but'
rental is now only £4 a year, lmomtyofwhchupdll
to a schoolmistress for teaching four children dthll
parish to read.

COCKINGTON, apaﬂth(fnmuiyammn)
in the hundred of l-hrron, county of Devox, 2§ miles
(w.) from Torbay, containing 280 inhabitants. The
living is a perpetunl curacy, with that of Tor-Moham
annexed, in the arch: of Totness, and diocese of
E:edtcr, endowed :ith £200 private benefaction, ::2
O, bounty, and £1000 parliamentary grant,
the patronage of the Rev, Mallock. The church
contains an alfont and a wooden screen. Queen
Elizabeth leased the rectory of Tor-Moham, and: the
church of Cockington, to Sir George Cary; who, in 1609,
erected almshouses here for seven poor persons;
an endowment of £30 per annum, paid out of the rental
of Cockington and Chilston manors : the old buildings
were taken down in 1810, and new ones erected on
more convenient site. Cockington is said to have
ceived the priwlegeofamh't mdnﬁh'--bm
year 1207.

COCKLAW, a township hlthe'pmlh
Lee, southern dlvimbn of Tinpane ward,
NorTHUMBPERLAND, 44 miles (N. by E.) &ommthn,
containing 199 inhabitants, It extends from the North
m ‘along the castern side of the Erring - bourn.

‘are vemains of an sncient castle of mmﬁg-
tons, called Cocklaw Tower.

COCKLE-PARK, a township in the parish of Hen-
aunN, western division of Moreern ward,

?_
‘E? 258

S

of Chichester. '!'huhnel'




s’ 3 B

7 , & chapelry in the parish of Dvck-
ninagToN, hundred of Bamprox, county of Oxrorp, 2§
miles (8. by E.) from Witney. The ion is re-
tumed with the parish. The pel is dedicated to
- CODDENHAM, a parish in the hundred of Bos-
-and Craypon, county of Surrork, 84 miles
- r&x.)gﬁumm la!'jiaadhlm- » Met,_ -mr;imh:mm' tﬁe 847 mha-
K ; a vicarage,

JE

annexed, in the archdeaconry of

. ~and diocese of Norwich, rated in the k:‘n&‘s
s at £12, 0. 5, and in the patronage of the

: The church, dedicated to St, Mary,
‘granted in the reign.of Henry Il for the founding
a Cistercian nunnery, but whether the design was
carried into effect or not is unknown. There is a place
for . 1758, Lady

erected & commodious school-
now producing a
teaching fifteen boys

early Engli corated styles of architecture.
CODFORD (ST. MARY), @ parish in the hundred
of Heyressury, county of Wirrs, 4 miles (E.8.E.)-
from Heytesbury, i 258 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the ard ; and diocese of
Salisbury, rated in the king's books at £18, and in the
patronage of the President and Fellows of St. John's
College, Oxford. :
CODFORD (ST. PETER), & parish in the hundred
of Hmnnubn, county of Wu.'n;; iliae miles (&s.—n;)r
from He , containing, wit . township o
Ashton-Gylﬂ’te:rd':rgw inhabitants. The living is a rec-
tory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Salisbury,
rated in the king's books at £17, 15., and in the pa-
g:fnage of the Master and Fellows of Pembroke College,
CODICOTE, a parish in the hundred of Casmio,
or li of Sr. ALsAns, th locally in the hun-
dred of Broadwater, county Herrrorn, 2 miles
'(Ih'!;'e lllli.-w.) from 'Welwyla,ﬁunntﬂninig &’;6 W
ving is a discharge : chdeaconry
of St Albia, i Olocose of Lietion, fafel in_the
king's books at £7. 5. 10,, and in the patronage of the




m anphn.mhlning 659 inhabitants.
is a perpetual the jurisdicti
'3‘? peeuliu- court :u m ?vlred wi::

£ m » e “?loi the e
1500 parlismentary grant, and in the patronage of
SirJ. Wi , Bart. The church is dedlcatudnat?St
Nicholas. Lu‘hool was founded in 1716, by Dorothy

with m endowment increased, by a subsequent
argaret Somerford, in 1730, to £3, 8, per

Mhln%ehﬂdren of this parish,
, a parish in the upper division of

ths hundud. of WenrLLOOG, county of Monmovrs,
44 miles (8.8.W,) from Newport, containing 128 inhabit-
ants, The living is a perpetual curacy, united to that
of St, Bride's Wentlloog, in the archdeaconry and dio-
cese of Llandaff, endowed with £800 royal bounty.
The church is dedicated to All Saints.
COFFINSWELL, a parish in the hundred of Hay-
o, county of Devox, 3 miles (8.E. by E.) from Newton-
containing 255 inhabitants,” The living is a
perpetual curacy, annexed to the vicarage of St. Mary
Church, in the peonliar jurisdiction and patronage of

m&msmgt Glnptu'ofEmer The church is dedi-

COGDEAN, a hl.mlet in the parish of STunmins-
ﬂa-ﬂmsm, ‘hundred of Connm:l,u Sh?stan (bi;'“t;
division of the county of Dorsr, 2 miles (5.W. by 8
ﬁm‘Wﬁnhme—NﬁnM_ The population is returned
0 gave name to the hundred,

and at Westfield, about three quarters of amﬂeﬂm
the town, was discoveged, by the plough, a large brazen
pot, a smaller one of earth, within which was
an urn wrapped in stuff like velvet, containing bones
and fragments of bones enveloped in silk. The present
town appears to have risen from the establishment of an
abbey, in 1242, by King Stephen andhisquenm
for monks of the Cistercian order, and dedicated to

Blessed Virgin, tothelhbﬂtmdmmhof!dﬂdlxhg
John granted several privileges, umongwhichpnw
mthepowaofﬁfeanddeath,hhfurmﬁ.ﬁom an-
cient name of one of the streets, which is still by some

called Gallows-street, Henry 1L gave them a g;nt of

zr:e warren, a market, and an annual fair
vs.
£208. 8. : the remains, which exhibit specimens of early -
English architecture, are now occupied as a farm-house;
the exterior has some lancet-shaped windows in
preservation, and in the interior are some

and vaulted roofs plainly groined. Near thu abbey is an
ancient bridge of three arches, built by
over a canal cut for conveying water ﬁ'am
the monastery, whiehhnhmumﬂynym '!!a‘

town is situated near the river Blackwater, and consists
puved, lighted by

e
subscription, an sup| water
mmw s boushoad, the princiel ol which 4§ A

was fonnnlymive. is |ﬁII continued on Mﬁ

The revenue of the abbey, at the dissolution, was

Mhm ‘

Themuf;mofhdnmd serge, which

[ B



was establi here m 1an uldhnnﬂ:ufwgh‘hin
1526, Thnemdx almshouses; and among

mwmmmw&m is one
ﬁﬂmwm?,#mdmﬁm%m

{Ll‘l'l'LE), a hamlet in the parish

of Gunmm “of WiTHaAM, county
. of Essex, ;mﬂa(&;ﬁmw all, con-
| tai nh was anciently a distinct

within the limits of which stood the abbey de-
ibed in the account of Great , together
vt&?achurchmctadbyﬁu abbot for himself and the
fmm‘ks,wltolpeadto'buﬂdtchapal also for their ser-
mﬁﬁdm
Al of the parish

COGSHALL annﬁinﬂutpart
of Gmr Bumrﬂt W is in the hundred of

of Cuesrenr, 8§ miles
N.
*M two farms. Tradition says

ty palatine

W) rmn thﬂeh, containing 110 inhabitants.
ihtmu@eepmdy eminence, called Butter hill, the
market people from the hundred of Wirrall deposited
their butter and other produce when the plague excluded

tlm“&vmm market-place at Chester.
(ms'r).: parish in the hundred of Houxps-
sewick, and Coken, county of SomMenrser,
- (8.85.W,) from Yeovil, with the
mﬂﬁm«, nwwm The, living
y of Wells, and diocese
king's books at
nfth Dean and Chap-
cuted to St. Michael,
tower rising from the
endowed with an

and in the pa shop i
church is dedicated to’ St. Gullll.- The
worship for Wesleyan Methodists, ’Hﬂrils

school. In this parish is a eohbﬂul m

Our Lady of Nantz' well 0iivs SRR

COLBOURNE, a township mmw d:_ e
parish of Carrenick whi;ih o:;h in the nm o
the wapentake of Hana, W
Yorxk, 24 miles (8. E. by E.) fmm ulltﬂi-
ing 133 inhabitants, % g

COLBY, a parish in the mﬂieu dlvhinn uﬁ
hundred of Errincuam, county of Nonvrork, a&mki-- ,
'(il‘: e Niz % uii:g t::? lnhlinmnry

eli a rectory,
and d:vmgm of Norwich, rated in the king's hooks at
£8. 15. 10., and inthepttronlgeuflmdw The
church is dadmmd to St.Giles.

COLBY, u township in the parish of s'r.flmmm
APPLEBY, Easr ward, county of WESTMORLAND, 4{
mile (W. by N.) from Appleby, containing 141 iuha
bitants. The village is situated on an mlnenee, -luha
base of which flows the river Eden.

COLCHESTER, abo- :
rough and market town
having separate jurisdic-
tion, locally in the Colches-
ter division of the hundred
of Lexden, county of Es-
sEX, 22 miles (N. E. by E\)
from Chelmsford, and 51 4,
(N.E. byB.) from Lomim,_- :

Greeustesd, Lexden, mdmh-nnd.mmvwﬁm
liberties, u,om The name of this
some anti ies is su to have
dunum of the Romans, i
on the river Colne, and

!'?




: md.pumngthemnlltotheswurd
‘re-peopled it with West Saxons : according to the Saxon
cles he repaired the walls in 922, at which time
tohave erected the castle, now falling to de-
but the remaing of that edifice are evidently of
an character, Colchester was a considerable town
it the time of the Norman survey, but suffered greatly
the wars of the succeeding reigns. During the tur-
- reign of John, Saher de Quiney, Earl of Win-
ester, having assembled an army of foreigners, laid
glegatqthe city in 1215, but, on the approach of the
‘barons, who were admclng from London to its relief,
off his forces and retired to Bury St. Edmund's ;
he afterwards ion of the town, and, having
ered it, left a garrison in the cestle, which, having
invested by the king, was cnmpelh:d to surrender :
it wiis subsequently besieged and taken by the troops of
Pﬂlme Louis,- whom the barons bad invited into En-
M to their assistance, and who, thinking the oppor-
ty&vmu'able-fur conquest, kept possession of it for
b:d hoisted the banner of France upon its
the barons having submitted to their new
m Henry L, retook the castle from the prince,
_ him from the kingdom. In the reign of

e
gﬁ

8‘-"‘5‘&2

E

' ., the town contributed five ships and one
w ‘and seventy mariners towards the naval arma-
ment for the blockade of Calais, The inhabitants, dur-
ing the to raise Lady Jane Grey to the throne,

Uik ;1

tuass there is,a mdmdmetb Hshy
and there are a private sub: onlﬂrwgr )
eﬂmetyofmmofm with a park ¢
artillery, were capable of accommodating ten __
butmeethccanclnmonofthew&m !
beent.aken down. The woollen manufacture ;
to have been carried on so early as the reign of Edw
II1, but the weaving of baizes was probably introduced
by the Flemings in the reign of Elizabeth, and at that
time employed a considerable number of the{nhalﬂt-
ants : the baize was subject to certain regulations pre-
scribed by the Baize-hall ; but the trade has been trans-
ferred to other towns, and is here succeeded by a large
sillk-manufactory. The oyster on the river Colne,
granted tothefmeburgeml by Richard I, confirmed
by subsequent charters, and for the p lﬁgnnf
which courts of admiralty were held on
borough walls, affords employment to a great num
of men, and some hundreds of are engaged |
conveying to London the oysters dredged from
river, for which there is a very great demand,
for those of Pyfleet, whlchmfomdmasm cng;
and are remarkable for their goodness and flavour :
river is navigable for vessels of two hundred tons' bur-
den to the Hythe, where there are a spacious quay and
a custom-house, The market days are Safurday and
Wednesday, the former being the principal, on which
corn and cattle are sold: a market for meat, fish,
and v les, is held daily on the north side of
the High-stréet, where a convenient and spacious mar-
ket-place has been constructed, The corn-exchange, a
handmbuﬂdmgmppurted on columns, was erected
a few y sinne.nfwhlchthelowplrthw
e corn market, and the part 0

- .!1.‘,;




‘moot-hall is an aocient edifice, originally erected extensively repaired and modernised in 1758, when the
by Eudo, dapifer, or steward, to Henry L., and contain- tower at the west end was erected, and was some time
ing the hall and the exchequer-chamber, in part of which  siuce greatly beautified at an expense of £3000;
the are deposited ; over these is the council- altar-piece is embellished with a fine painting by Halls,

- i i the subject of which is the raising of Jairus’ daughter,
The livi
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Lewes, in 1620 : two scho fmdedmthesame,
college by the Rev. Ambrose in 1642, revert to
ﬁlllchml mfn’lﬁreofspphmu of the surnames of

; ‘and four founded in Pembroke
Cambridge, by Mr. Ralph Scrivener, in 1601,
dbmﬁomthegmnmusehoolatlpsmch
Dt.Humt,Mhbhhoponurk.mmedthemd:
ments of his education in this institution. Two chari-
ty schools, for the education of fifty-five boys and thirty
girls, who are also clothed, were established in 1708
towards the
Rush, in 1711, gave £100, and £50 was given for the
mpmponbylrln widow. Mr. William Naggs, in
1747, gave o freehold messuage and twenty-five acres of
land, in the county of Essex, to certain trustees, for
the better maintenance of these schools, to which seven
othbr benefactions have been added: The National
school constitutes an extension of the plan of
ﬂle-cbnrltymhool the number of children educated is

nndanmvelibmryby
beenaddudllegwybythe

sons bcnnfthoood?t;
Mmdmmﬂ sober
in addition mdedwuhm of

u.-;m,:foimdaasmd endowed: almslsouses'for
. mwwhiuhﬂu ‘others have since been
( “the almsmen receives seven s

erccted and endowed alms-
mm:mwaw
_ ‘increased to

]pqr week, and a chaldrop of coal anuually.

M'HM!., a master and brethren, and d
dicuted to $t, Mary Magdalene, Mo,vhnmm
a principal officer of the household to- William the Con.

queror and his two m,ofwhieh,mt ﬂw,dim
tion, the revenue was £11, was
J:mwl.,fnrthmpewhatbmmd lm,«*]ﬂi!
always the of the Of the other ancient
establishments, the principal was St. John's abbey;
founded in the reign of Henry L by the same Eudo, for
monks of the Benedictine order, the revenue of which,
at the dissolution, was £523. 17.; d&:o‘gx
gateway is ahundlomam-ucm
nyhdwmmmmmm and, g, either
the foundation of tha:bbcy.w a subse-
quent tign to it. To the south of the town was a
monastery of Augustine canons, founded in the reign of
Henry L, and dedicated to St. Julian and St. oh,
by Ernuiphus, who afterwards became prior: at the dis-
solution its revenue was £113. 12. 8.: the only remains

The priory of Franciscan, or Grey,
in 1309, by Robert Fitz-Walter, the onty
mains of which are the church of All Sa.inﬁ.
Of the walls by which the city was surrounded, and in
consideration of repairing which, Richard I1. is record-

ed to have exempted the from mem-
bers to three of his parliaments, only some -
portions are remaining : they were ‘bas-

ehvmdlitewthem-unnhhemg mmu
and thewallaof the keep, twelve feet in

thabdldhgis"’wm |
hnppuﬂl‘o '
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. COLE- parish in the western division of
, the hundred of Goscore, county of Leicester, € miles
\ in,) ﬁ'?l‘ic A;:byd;ehZonch, niu:.t:ll;ning 883 inhabit-

ants.  1he s a rectory, e archdeaconry of

Leicester, and di ofﬁncoln,uwdinthew‘!
books at £10, 6. 04, and in the patronage of Sir G.

- Beaumont, Bart. The church, dedicated to St. Mary,
has a tower and :fpim, with some of its portions in the
decorated style of architecture. Extensive collieries
have been wrought here for a great length of time.
Thomas, Viscount Beaumont, in 1701, bequeathed a
rent-charge of £90 for the erection of a school-house,
and an hospital for six poor widows, who have each a
separate honse and garden.
~ COLERIDGE, a parish in the hundred of Nowrn
Tawron with Wixkrey, county of Devox, 5 miles
%‘Blz;eblt E.) ﬁi:un Chnlmleeigh, containing 632 inhabitants,

he living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry
of Bq‘!‘l::gphs and diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's
books at £7. 8. 9., and in the patronage of the Bishop
of Exeter, The church, dedicated to St. Mary, contains
an ancient wooden screen. A charity school is chiefly
supported by the Hon. Newton Fellowes,

.. COLERNE, a parish in the hundred of Cairrex-

_mam, county of Wivrs, 7 miles (W. by 8.) from Chip-
enham, containing 898 inhabitants. The living is a

. discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Wilts, and

diocese of Salisbury, rated in the king's books at £9. 16.:
there is also a sinecure rectory, rated at £16. 11. 104,

R

¢ Warden bei of the vicarage. e chure

: ﬂ*‘ﬁﬂi wtﬂﬁ ohn the Baptist, There is a meet-

_ing-house for I mgﬂm. Colerne, or, as it was
formerly called, worn, derives its name from its
ak situation upon the summit of one of the highest

5 | of Bath: the tower of the church

ents, and died in1687.
COLESHILL, a parish partly in the hundred of
Hicawonrts, Crickuape, and Srarie, county of
Winrs, but chiefly in the hundred of SmrrveNmAwm,
county of Berks, 3§ miles (W. 8, W.) from Great Far-
ringdon, containing, with the ing of Lynt, 324 in-
habitants. The living is a vicarage, in the archdeacor
of Berks, and diocese of Salisbury, rated in the king's
books at £17. 11. 8, and in the pa of the Earl
of Radnor, The church, dedicated to All Saints, has,
at the west end, an embattled tower with pinnacles, and
contains some handsome monuments; the mbgrmwh-
dow of the chancel exhibits some fine stained glass, re-
presenting the Nativity, presented by the Earl of Rad-
lfmr, in 1787. Lord Simon Digby, in 1694, g;_v:hlm
or teaching and apprenticing poor children of the pa-
rish, and for other charitable purposes: in the same
year, Offalia Rawlins made a donation of £100, with si-
milar directions for its use; and, in 1706, the Rev. John
Pinsent gate an estate, producing about £15 per annum,
for apprenticing the children of such of the inhabitants
of Coleshill and Great Coxwell as had never received
parochial relief, with £5 to each. This parish derives
its name from the elevated situation of the village above
the river Cole, which forms the western boundary, and
gives the title of baron to the Earl of Radnor. e
% COLESHILL, a market town and parish in th
Birmingham division of the hundred of HemuinGronn,

.:-l

3“3' of WArwICK, 18 miles (N. by W.) from Warwick,

1034 (N. w.) from London, containing 1760 inha-
bitants. This place derives its name from being situated
on the acclivity and summit of an eminence rising gradu-
ally from the south bank of the river Cole, over which

Monday, in for cattle and sheep,
Monday for horses, which is the pal fair, May 6th,
the first Monday in July, and

2, all for cattle. The county

Ll L
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; -parishioners, en
wdhndmdmhminthepa-
t& tilvutedhthiﬂllmtmneenof

5!.
*

70 per mnm;'both are nominated

metmlhen,md their appointment is confirmed by
o Digby. %?btymhndm endowed, in 1694,
¥

Iaol!d , with £500, which has been

vested in the purchase of a house and land, for clothing
X« lnlﬁheﬂng poor girls, and apprenticing poor chil-

1
5
.
Eg
B

' same trust is a small endow-
of hibles and prayer-books,
for widows ; afd a house,

which-h‘_u“m&y-.bemubnm,hddwed with land for

‘accommodation of poor travellers for one night,

with a small hospital attached to it for those that are
Abhout

n -tn._i_hunofthemwnisylumh

E

and in the patronage of nis _
The church is dedicated to 8t, Andrew, This \
merly part of the duchy of Lancaster, from which it

acquired the adjunct to its name; but Heonry VIIL
ahemmditwthexulofﬂﬁwd,mmhd
Somerset, and Protector of England, upon whose at-
tainder it reverted to the crown, and was granted by
Queen Elizabeth to Edward, Earl of Hertford, whose
descendants inherited all the former possessions of the
Duke of Somerset.

COLLINGBOURN-KINGSTONE, a parish in the
hundred of Kinwarpstong, county of Wints, 4 miles
(N.N.W.) from Ludgenha.ll, mtaining 817 inhabit-
ants, of which number,

Sounthon, 233 in Go].hngbourn—&ingatun, and 333 iu
Collingbourn-Vallance, The living is a vicarage, inthe
archdeaconry of Wilts, and diocese of Salisbury, rated

in the king's books at £15. 7. 34., and in the patronage
of the Dean and Chapter of Winchester. The church
is dedicated to St. Mary.  There is a place of worship
for Wesleyan Methodists. John Norris, eminent as a
divine and philosopher, mbnrntttheﬁwuge«-hnnu
in 1567,

COLLINGHAM, a parish in ﬂ:e lower division dI
the wapentake of Sxyrack, West riding of the county
of York, 2 miles (8. 8. W.) from Wetherby, contthkng
286 inhabitants.  The living is a
in the archdeaconry and diocese of York, rated in
king's books at £3. 11. 54., endowed with £400
vate benefaction, and £200 royal bounty, and in
patronage of Mrs. Wheeler.  The church is
to St. Oswald, Achnritysch:t;lﬁhmfm&d.hlﬁa
by Lady Elizabeth an endowment, pro-
ducing £24 per annum, tnehingtungchﬂdm:.
and providing them with books,

m""“‘mﬂ,m;? L
ern on num.w
memnt, Hnﬂu (ﬁ.x.a.)ﬁmﬁm -
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1 any Roman
“have been found. South of this, on the Fosse-

“on the Lincolnshire boundary, is the site of the
Crococolana of Antoninus, now oceupied by the village

of Brough, where coins, termed Brugh pennies, have
up, and ancient foundations often dis-

covered : human bones, with remains of coffins, have

COLLINGTON, a parish in the hundred of Brox-
Asn, county of Herxrorp, 4 miles (N.) from Brom-
yurd, containing 145 inhabitants, The living is a dis-

rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Hereford, rated in the king's books at £2. 18, 10., and
in the patronage of Mrs. Pytts, The church is dedi-
catetl to All Saints. Limestone is obtained here.

COLLINGTREE, a parish in the hundred of Wy-
MERSLEY, county of NorTuameron, 35 miles (8.) from
Northampton, 194 inhabitants. The living
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Northampton, and
diocese of Peterborough, rated in the king's hooks at
£16. 10. 5., and in the patronage of the Rev. Benjamin
Hill. The church is dedicated to St. Columbus. There
is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists,

* COLLITON-ROW, a tything in the parish of the
Howuy Trixrry, Doronester, hundred of Georae, Dor-
chester division of the county of Domser. The popu-
lation is returned with the parish. It forms a small
street on the south of Gildepath hill, and, though within

the walls of the town, is properly without the borough,

and lost its right of voting at elections for members of
' t in 1720, before which period it had con-
stantly exercised it. ]
COLLUMPTON, county of Devox,— See CUL-
LOMPTON. :
COLLY-WESTON, a parish in the hundred of
WiLtysrook, county of Nowrmamrron, 3§ miles
(8. W, 8.) from Stamford, containing 3563 inhabit-
ants. The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of
Northampton, and diocese of Peterborough, rated in
king's books at £12. 9. 7., and in the patronage
of the Grown. - The church is dedicated o St Andrew.
Extensive quarries of slate are wrought in the neigh-

- the hundred of Bar-

coL
iles (N.) from’ Fairford, /399 inhabitants.

and diocese of Gloucester, rated in the king’s books at
£8. 19, 4§, endowed with £200 private b :
and £200 royal bonnty, and in the pa

tronage of T. In-
, Esq. and another, The church is dedicated to St.
ohn the Baptist. ' ; '
COLN (ST. DENIS), a parish in the upper divi-
sion of the hundred of Deernurst, though locally
in the hundred of Bradley, county of ‘GrovcksTer,
3 miles (8. W. by 8.) from North Leach, containing 179
inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdea-
conry and diocese of Gloucester, rated in the king's
books at £9. 19. 44, and in the patronage of the Master
and Fellows of Pembroke College, Oxford. This parish
is bounded on the south-west by the river Coln, and on
the north-west by the old Roman Fosse-way.
COLN-ROGERS, a parish in the hundred of Brap-
Ley, county of GuovbesTen, 4 miles (8. W. by 8.) from
North Leach, containing 139 inhabitants. The living
is u rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Glou-
cester, rated in the king's books at £7. 0. 5.,'and in the
patronage of the Dean and Chapter of Gloucester. The
church is dedicated to St. Andrew. This parish is
bounded on the north by the river Coln, which is crossed
by Fosse-bridge, on the Roman way of the same name.
COLNBROOK, a chapelry (formerly a market
town) partly in the parish of Staxwern, hundred' of
SerrTrORNE, county of MipprLesex, but chiefly in the
parishes of Honron, Iver, and Lanereyv-MArsm, in
the hundred of Sroke, connty of Bvexincuam, 46
miles (8. E, by 8.) from Buckingham, and 17 (W. by 8.)
from London, on the road to Bath. The population is
returned with the several parishes. This place, which
is of great antiquity, is supposed to have been the sta-
tion Ad Pontes of Antoninus: it derives its name from
the river Colne, by which it is separated from Midéle-
sex, and is intersected by different branches of that viver,
over each of which is a small bridge. The town con-
sists principally of one long t; the houses are in
general mneatly built and of respectable appearance.
The trade principally arises from its situation as a great
thoroughfare, which has made it a considerable posting
town. The market has been long discontinued, and the
market-house and the chapel, which were inconveniently
situated in the narrower purt of the town, have been re-
moved by the commissioners of the turnpike roads, wha
have rebuilt the chapel, a neat modern edifice, dedicated
to St. Mary, on the opposite side of the road, in the pa
rish of Horton. Fairs are held on April 5th and May 3rd,
for cattle and horses. The government, by charter of
Henry VIIL, which was renewed in the reign
Charles L, is vested in a bailiff and
living is a perpetual curacy, in the
Buckingham, and diocese
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is in the early style dlnmmma on the last Wednesday in every month is a large cat-
western tower; it contains some remains of figures and tle market: the re on mﬂ. May 13th
wmmmdmmﬁm for cattle, and 15th for pedlary, October 11th, and
wanuurfmmmvm-ge December 21st. The town is within the jurisd
~ COLNE, a market town and in that of the county ¢ a constable is
of the parish of WrarLey which is in the higher chosen by such of the inhabitants as are assessed to

sion of the hundred of BLAackBuRN, county pﬂﬁnof
L.wcur_u. 35 miles (B.B) imm !immm,uﬂ 217

This .plleelaluppoeed bythegwgnphu
to have been a Roman station, the site of which is by

Whitaker, the historian of Manchester, referred to Cas-
tor CLiff, eminence about & mile south of the
town, e still the vestiges of a quadrilateral camp,

one hundred and twenty yards in length, and one hun-
dred and ten in breadth, surrounded by a double vallum
and fosse. This camp is by Whitaker, the historian of

the “Ancient parish of Whalley,” considered only as
the castra astiva of the sfation, which, perhaps
mbewmhorhy hepluuinthelmrgmnnds eath

the town, and near the bank of the Colne water, but of
which every vestige has been obliterated by cultivation,
W‘ﬂm coins have been found at various
times, and among them several of Gordianus and other
emperors, enclosed in a large silver cup tarned up by
the plough in 1696. The town, which is of great an-
tiquity, appah'l to have arisen with Lancaster, Man-
chester, and other towns in the county, soon after its
conquest by Agricola, in the year seventy-nine, and de-
rives its name either from Colunio, the supposed name of
the Roman station, or from the Saxon Culme, coal, with
which the neighbourhood abounds : it is situated on an
elevated point of land between the river Calder and the
Leeds and Liverpool canal ; the strects are paved, and
the inhabitants are amply supplied with water conveyed
by pipes from Flass spring, about two miles distant,
- under the t of a company formed for that
: mn. ‘A subscription library has been established
is well conducted. The

ugulahu::’nd
~ woollen manufacture carried on here previously to |

the arrival of the Flemings in England in the time of
Edward IIL, as from the rent-roll of the last
Henry de Lacy, lord ofihebmt:mur,nﬁlsu in which a
ﬂnllﬁ\gmﬂlh!umdu valued at 6s. 8d, per un-
thnmmﬁmd'nhlgnoam ulimuncog:r
-M& ‘was also extensively carried on, for the sale of
hm;mm-wumm 1775, by a company

‘prwlli,m a plot of ground on the south side
of the town, presented Bmeon, E:q., of

Wﬁlﬂ;# ktn&ﬂ“ gpeos., con-

gxmt,mdinthnpﬂmgndth%dm
The chapel, dedicated to (St, Bartholomew, is a
ancient structure, erected probably ma&uﬂn Con-
quest: in the reign of Henry I, it mglmﬁo;ﬁn
priory of Pontefract by Hugh de Val ; it was
tially repaired, or partly rebuilt, in the reign of
VIIL., when the only remains preserved of the ori
building were the finely carved screen at the entran
and on the sides of the choir, and three massive circular
mlmnnsintheuoﬂhallle,m of which, being under-
mined by some recent interments, suddenly gave way in
1415, and endangered the whole building, which has
since been rendered firm and secure. There are places
of worship for Baptists, Independents, Wesleyan Metho-
dists, and Methodists of the New Connexion. The gram-
mar school is of very uncertain foundation : it is en-
dowed with about £15 per annum, for which six boys
are taught free, four of them by means of a bequest of
£40 from Thomas Blakey, Esq., in 1687. The old
school-room was taken down, and on its site a new one
erected by subscription, in 1812. Dr. Tillotson, Arch-
bishop of Canterbury, received the rudiments of his
education at this school. A school was founded in
1746, at Laneshaw Bridge, by John Emmot, Esq., in
which twenty children of the tenants on the Emmot
estate are gratuitously instructed.  There are also
Sunday schools for one thousand four hundred and
fifty children, in connexion with the established church
and the several dissenting ions,

COLNE (EARL'S), a in the Witham _divi-
sion of the hundred of Lexven, county of Essex, 84
miles (E. 8. E.) from Halstead, containing lsﬂsinhlbn-
ants, The livingis a vicarage, in the
Colchester, and diocese of London, uﬂdmﬂukhgn
books at £8. 10, 10., and in the patronage of W. Reeve,
and Arthur Clarence, Esqrs. The church, dedicated to
St. Andrew, contains several monuments of the de Veres,
Earls of Oxfomd, whwh were removed &nmthe

5
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ter, and diocese of London, rated in the king's books
£13.17. 6., and in the patronage of the Governors
Andrew. This parish is bounded on the south by
Colchester, There is a small endowment for the in-
struction of children.

COLNE (WAKES), a parish in the Witham divi-
sion of the hundred of Lexpew, county of Essex, 54
miles (E. by 8.) from Halstead, containing 417 inhabit-
ants.  The living is a rectory, in the archd of
‘Eolchester, and diocese of London, rated in the king's
books at £12. 0, 5., and in the patronage of the Earl
of Verulam. The church is dedicated to All Saints. The
Roman rond from Colchester passes through this
m’h, to the southward of which flows the river

e,

COLNE (WHITE), a parish in the Witham divi-
sion of the hundred of Lexpxn, county of Essex, 4}
miles (B.) from Halstead, containing 208 inhabitants.
The living is a , in the archdeaconry of
Colchester, diocese of London, endowed with £200
royal bounty, and in the patronage of W, E. Hume,
Esq. This parish has the river Colne on the south,
where also passes the Roman road from Colchester,

COLNEY, a parish in the hundred of Humnre-
yanp, county of Nomrvork, 2} miles (W, by 8.) from
Norwich, containing 78 inhabitants. The living is a
discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk,
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£6. 19, 4., and in the patronage of J. Postle, Esq. The
church, dedicated to St. Andrew, has a round tower.

COLSTERWORTH, a parish partly in the wapen-
take of Brrrisior, comprising the township of Twy-
ford, but chiefly in the soke of Grantram, parts of
Kesreven, county of Lincorx, 324 miles (8. by w.)
from Lincoln, containing 776 inhabitants, The living
is a rectory, in the mhtfeaeonry and diocese of Lincoln,
rated in the king's books at £14, 10, and in the pa-
tronage of the Prebendary of South Grantham in the
Cathedral Chireh of Lincoln, The church, dedicated
to 8t. John the , i5 a small structure of early
] architecture, with a good tower in the later
w&m is a place of worship for Wesleyan Me-
thodists, The village is situated in a beautiful valley,
through which winds the river Witham. Sir Isaac
Newton was born here, on Christmas-day, 1642, ubout
Ithrée mionths after the death of his father, who was
lord

g??gs

of the manor; he received the rudiments of his
education at the free school at Grantham,
and was admitted at Trinity College, Cambridge, in

5 GOL ammﬂMimWﬁhﬂummﬁ%?L
‘sion of the wapentake of Bineuam, county oT-
¥iouin, 10 miles (8. by E)

- "-‘ “ )
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Fellows of 8 College, Cambridge.

amounting to €14, is paid for teaching English to
bays, the sons of poor parishioners :
since been built by subscription. A fair
held on Whit-Monday.

COLTON, a parish in the hundred of;FOIIIOI,
county of Norvovrk, 53 miles (M.) from W
containing 267 inhabitants. The living if
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of
Norwich, rated in the king's books at £6. 9. 94., en-
dowed with £200 private benefaction, and £200 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of the Crown. The
church is dedicated 'to St. Andrew, The Rev. Henry
Rix, in 1726, bequeathed certain land in trust for the
endowment of a school and other charitable s
the annual income of which, with a subsequent gift
by an unknown benefactor for teaching six children,
amounts to £ 12, 7. !

COLTON, a parish in the soythern division of the
hundred of Pinemivt, county of Starronp, 2 miles
(N. by E.) fromi Rugeley, containing 5690 inhabitants,
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Stafford,
and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, rated in the
king's books at £5, and in the pa of the Rev.
C. S. Landor. The church, dedicated to St. Mary, is
very ancient, and has a square tower. Here is a school,
with a house for the master, founded by contribution
in 1763, for teaching twenty. children, and since en-
dowed with £500 by the late John Spencer, Esq.: there
is also a school for younger children, endowed by the
late Mr. Webb with land and a house called the Bell
Inn, producing £5 per annum. The Grand Trunk
canal passes through the south-west part of this

ish.

COLTON, a township in the parish of Bovron-
Pency, in the ainsty of the city, and East riding of
the county, of Yonx, 6§ miles (S.W.) from York, con-
taining 148 inhabitants, A school is endowed with an
annuity of £6. .

COLUMB (ST,) MAJOR, a market town and parish
in the hundred of Pyper, county of Connwarn, 32
miles (8. W. by W.) from Launceston, and 245 (W. by 8.)
from London, containing 2493 inhabitants. This p
takes its name from an ancient church ervected by the
founder of Bodmin priory, and dedicated to St. Columba,
and its adjunct, to distinguish it from a smaller town of
that name in the same hundred. The town is situated on
the summit of an eminence which is to have
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: ion to a canal from Mawgan Porth
Wm of which is estimated at £7000.
The county magistrates hold a petty session for the hun-
dred once a mouth. The living is a rectory, in the

of Cornwall, and diocese of Exeter, rated

in the king's books at £53. 6. 8., and in the p
of —— Walker, Esq. The church, dedicated to St
Columba, is an ancient and venerable structure, with a
lofty square embattled towe:cmwuedwithw;
within are several in monuments, _
places of worship for Independents and Wesleyan Me-
thodists,  In 1628, James Jenkins, Esq. gave by will
£200, wMuhhushecnmvmtedinthz of land,
;nvducingﬂal B permnum,fwdmtﬂbudmmnngthc
poor. About two miles to the south-cast of the town isa
large elliptical encampment, called Castle an Dinas, de-
fended by a double vallum, and having only one entrance ;
the longer diameter of the inner avea is one thousand
seven hundred feet, and the shorftr one thousand five
hundred ; within it are two tumuli, one of which is

by a small ditch: it is supposed to have
been erected by the Danes, and to have been the residence
of one of their chiefs.

COLUMB (ST.) MINOR, =& parish in the hundred
of Pyper, connty of CorNwaLL, 54 miles (W.by8.)
m St. Columb Major, containing 1207 mlm;b:tant.s.\f

li is @ perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry o

Eﬂnﬂ diocese of Exeter, endowed with £200
pwivm benefaction, £600 royal bounty, and £1000

m&nnt,mdmﬁm patronage of James

Blllhl' Esq. others, The church is dedicated to St.
| Columb. John Francis Buller gave £5 per annum for
four children of this parish and two of Crantock ;
mdinlmJohnMntyngavniﬁperannum for
‘the like purpose. This parish is bounded on the west by
‘Towan and Watergate bays and the small harbour of
Porth on the Bristol channel, A fair is held annually
on the 9th of June: there are considerable remains of
house, formerly a cell to the priory of

2 §

COLUMB-DAVID, a tything in the parish and
wdnd of Hemvyock, county of Devon, 43 miles
Ww.) from Wellington. The population is returned
with the

in the hundred of Grims-
HOE, eounﬁy of ﬁ'oum.x, 64 miles (N.byE.,) from
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supposed to have been formed by the
e
was a
ignorant of its value, sold it for £31,
wards fetched £ 1500, Hmisuiuam
founded in 1612, by Humphrey Walwine
uader the patronage of the Grocers' Compan
are two schoolrooms, T(;.:Bfﬂl' th:f free bny:,
for private pupils. water of ‘Colwall is equal in
fyntothe most celebrated of the Malvern springs.

COLWELL, a joint township with Swinburn, in ﬁu
parish of CroLLERTON, north-castern division of Trx-
paLe ward, county of NorTHUMBERLAND, 6% miles
(N. by E.) from Hexham, containing, with Swinburn, 408
inhabitants, Colwell is situated at the intersection
of Watling-street and the Cambo road, and is the pro-
perty of Ralph Riddell, Esq., who has erected a school-
room and a house for the master, who teaches eighteen
free children.

COLWICH, a parish in the southern division of
the hundred of Pimeniny, county of Srarrorp, com-
prising the chapelry of Fradswell, and the township of
Colwich, and containing 1865 inhabitants, of which
number, 1646 are in the township of Colwich, 3 miles
(N. W, by N.) from Rugeley. The livi unduehnged
vigarage, in the jurisdiction o“;'gthe Prebendary
of Colwich and Bishop's Itchington in the Cathedral
Church of Lichfield, and in the patronage of the
of Lichfield and Coventry, rated in the king's books at
£6.0. 5., endowed with £235 private benefaction, and
£200 royal bounty. The church, dedicated to St.
Michael, is of some antiguity, and contains a monument
to the memory of the celebrated navigator, George,
Lord Aunsgon, who was interred in the family cemetery
at this place, June 14th, 1762. The Staffordshire and
Worcestershire canal forms a junction with the Grand
Trunk canal near Great Heywood, in this parish,
A fair for cattle, called Wolseley ing, is held at
g%l;:ley annually on the Wednesday before Mid-Lent

undamy

COLWICK, a parish in the southern division of the.
wapentake of TuurGarToNn, county of NorriNeuam,

24 miles (k.) from Nottingham, containing 120 inhabit-
ants, The living is a rectory, in the of
N ham, - diocese of York, rated in the king's

books at £6. 1. 04,, and in the of J. Musters,
Esq.  The church is dedicated to St. Jobn the Baptist.
A school was founded by the Rev. William
mm,;xth an endowment of&i&“permm'
na nm'lmmﬂuwgh |
COLYFORD, a hamlet in the parish m
of Cm.tmn,oauntyof Devon, 1 mile (8.8, E.) fwﬂ
Colywn,wit.h which the population is returned. ;




general irregularly built of flint,
with thatched roofs ; the inhabitants are supplied with

from two conduits connected with springs a little
the town. The principal branch of manufac-
is that of blue, brown, and common white paper ;
1 two tanneries. The market days are
Thursday, and Saturday, which last is the
al market : the fairs are on May 1st and Novem-
; for cattle. The petty sessions for the division
d here; and two constables and a tythi
y appointed at the court leet of the lord of
. The living is a vicarage, with which the
perpetual curacies of Monkton and Shute are annexed,
in the king's books at £40, 10. 10, and in the
ar jurisdiction and patronage of the Dean and
of Exeter. The church, dedicated to St.An-
a spacious and handsome cruciform structure,
later style of English architecture! with a low
embattled tower rising from the centre, and sur-
d by a bhandsome octagonal lantern turret with
parapets : the south transept is separated from
nave by an elaborately carved stone screen ; and in
chancel is ® beautiful altar-tomb, with the efligy of
daughter of one of the Courtenays, earls of Devon-
shire, richly enshrined in tabernacle work. There are
places of worship for Independents and Unitarians, A
school, in which twenty boys are taught reading, writing,
and arithmetic, is supported by part of a fund given to
the parish by Henry VIIL for divers charitable pur-
poses, to about £220 per annum, out of
which the schoolmaster is paid a salary of £30 ; and a
Sunday school for one hundred and forty children is
supported partly by an endowment of £200 in the five
per cents,’ given in 1816, by its founder, the Rev,
James How, and partly by subscription,
COLYTON-RAWLEIGH, a parish in the eastern
division of the hundred of BubLEicu, county of Devox,
3% miles (W.) from Sidmouth, containing 770 inhabit-
" ants. The living is a vicarage, in the and
diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £16. 4. 94.,
and in the of the Dean of Exeter. The church
is dedicated to St. the Baptist : mear it are the re-
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mains of an ancient vicarage-house, which had a chapel
attached to it: there was also a chapel in the parish,
' tything in_the parish

of Worrow under

Ve e

COM
archdeaconry and ‘diocese of p,
king's books at £6. 13. 4., endowed ﬁ

.," 1 .
benefaction, and £200 royal bounty, and in the patron-
age of the Dean and OmomufWiaq._m-. 'ﬂunhqﬂ
is dedicated to St. Swithin,

COMBE, a tything in the parish of Exprono, bun-
dred of Evrstun and Evervey, county of Wivrs, 8
miles (W.) from Ludgershall. The population is re-
turned with the parish. .

COMBE (ABBAS), county of Somgrser. — See
ABBAS-COMBE. >

COMBE (ENGLISH), a parish in the hundred of
WeLLow, county of Somerser, 24 miles (S.W.) from
Bath, containing 311 inhabitants. The living is a dis-
charged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Bath, and dio-
cese of Bath and Wells, rated in tne king's books at
£9. 3. 114., endowed with £400 private benefaction,
and £400 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the
Rev. D. Hughes. The church is a very handsome strue-
ture. Here was formerly a castle belonging to the
family of Gurnay, but little more than the fosse which
encompassed it is distinguishable. The ancient road
Wansdyke crosses this parish, passing by an eminence
called Roundbarrow, or Barrow Hill, which has been
erroneously considered of artificial construction ; at its
base a coin of Antoninus Pius was found in 1786.

COMBE (LONG), a parish in the hundred of Woor-
ToN, county of Oxrorp, 5 miles (W, by 8.) from Wood-
stock, containing 564 inhabitants, The living is a per-
petual curacy, in the peculiar jurisdiction and patronage
of the Rector and Fellows of Lincoln College, Oxford.
The church is dedicated to St. Lawrence,

COMBE (MONCTON), a parish in the hundred of
Baru-Forusm, county of Somerser, 34 miles (S.E. by 8.)
from Bath, containing 855 inhabitants. The living is a
perpetual curacy, annexed to the vi of South Stoke,
in the archdeaconry of Wells, and diocese of Bath aad
Wells. The church is dedicated to St. Michael. Here
is a large paper-manufactory. On Combe down are ex-
tensive quarries, at which stone was obtained for erect-
ing many of the best houses in Bath ; in the eavities of

it clusters of hexagonal brown chrystals are found, and

in the fissures of the rocks are some fine and curiously
COMBE (ST. NICHOLAS), a parish in the castern
division of the hundred of Kingssunry, county of So-
MERSEW, 24 miles (N. W.) from Chard, containing 1046
inhabitants, The living is a vicarage, in the peculiar
Jjurisdiction of the Dean and Chapter of Wells, rated in
the king's books at £15. 4. 4}., and in the  of
the Dean of Wells. Fairs are held on the 18th of June,
and on the Wednesday before December 11th.
COMBE-FIELDS, or COMBE-ABBEY, an extra-
ial liberty, in the Kirby division of the hundred
of KxieurLow, county of Warwick, 5% miles (E.) from
Coventry, containing 173 inhabitants, Richard de Cam-
villa, in 1150, founded here a Cistercian abbey, which
was dedicated to St, Mary, and richly endowed : at the
dissolugion it contained about fourteen monks,
valued ar £343. 0, 5. per
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mﬁu(ﬂnwn. from Wiveliscombe, containing 306 mww&mmﬁ
inhabitants, The is rectoryhﬂhe" EROOT metie, was endowed, in 1733, #lﬂl
oanth,anddiocm ofsath and Wells, rated in the ahmmdhndpmduuh‘;‘;spﬁmlz

Hngs at £11. 13, 9., and in the  of the
Crown. The church is dedicatedtoﬁt.m
OOHBE HAY, a parish in the hundred of WerLvow,
of Somenser, 34 miles (8. by W.) from m
con 237 inhabitants. The living isa , in
the archdeaconry of Wells, and diocese of Bath and
Wells, rated in the king's books at £9, 12. 8}., Ind in
the patronage of H. Hanbury Tracey, E:zh
Fosse-way passes near this place : the onench side,
;:idch giva:;lnmineto!t is hefevea'{hperfact The Rad-
canal has its course through the parish, and joins
them and Avon canal. :
E-HILL, a joint township with H in the
parish of Nﬂin.mmrt western dlvisionﬂlzf Mor-
reTH ward, county of Nounqunmm:, 64 miles
E;‘tbyﬁl:a)lm Rothbury. The population is returned
OOE%E-MARTIN a market town and parish in
the hundred of BraunTox, county of Devox, 44 miles
(E.) from Tlfracombe, and 176 (W. by 8.) from London,
con 1032 inhabitants. This place derives its
name from its situation in a deep valley, and its adjunct
from its rietor at the time of the Conguest. In the
reign of Edward I. some mines of lead, containing a
considerable ugonion of silver, were discovered, which
| in the Edward 111, produced such a quantity of
 that as to nssist him materially in defraying the
le!penu of carrying on the war with France. These
mines, after remaining in & neglected state for many
| years, were in the reign of Elizabeth, and
‘worked with considerable advantage under the direction
(of Sir Beavis Bulmer; a cup made of silver found here
‘m premd ‘to William Bourchier, Earl of Bath, and
‘another, one hundred and thirty-seven ounces,
to Sir Richard , Lord Mayor of London. They
were nnsumenhlly erp'lored in 1790 : in 1813 a more
profitable attempt was made; but after four years,
during which time two hundred and eighty tons of silver
“were extracted, the ‘works were discontinued. The
thﬁltdinlde?mmﬁc glen, extending in a
opening into a small cove on
, which formed a convenient

ﬁunwtichtheyuaivemmandbukin
rttm'n. mhma.‘nuyofwhiehmMannd
"llﬂh , extend for nearly a mile in an
m tbé%ufﬁtvakthmﬂng
ificent, and in many points of

mises have been lately rebuilt. Thomas Harding,
learned Roman Catholic divine and wm.w
born here, in 15192,

COMBERBACH, a township in thltplrt\dhe
parish of Grear Buoworrs which is in the hundred of
Buckvow, county palatine of Cnrsten, 3 miles (N. by
W) from Northwich, 226 inhabitants, There

lace of worship for Wesleyan Methodists,

MBERTON, a in the hundred of We-
THERLEY, county of AMBRIDGE, 53 miles (W.8, w.)
from Cambridge, containing 383 inhabitants. The living
is a disc vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Ely, rated in the 's books at £6. 18. 114., and in
the patronage of the Master and Fellows of Jesus'
College, Cambridge. The church is dedicated to St.

Mary.
nréOMBER’lON (GREAT), a parish in the upper divi-
sion of the hundred of Persnore, county of Wonoes-
TER, 24 miles (8. by E.) from Pershore, containing 206
inhabitants, The living is a discharged rectory, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Worcester, rated in the
king's books at £ 10, endowed with £400 private bene-
faction, and £400 bounty, and in the pa of
Mise Myddleton. The church is dedicated to St.Mi-
chael, The river Avon flows through this parish.
COMBERTON (LITTLE), a parish in the upper
division of the hundred of Persnore, county of Wor-
cesTeR, 24 miles (8.E. by 8.) from Pershore, containing
172 inhabitants. The living isa rectory, in
the archdea and diocese of Worcester, rated in the
king's books at £9. 0. 24., and in the patronage of Col.
Davies. The church is dedicated to St, Peter.
COMBINTINHEAD, a parish forming, with Stoke-
intinhead, Shaldon Green, and Haccombe, a detached
portion of the hundred of Woxroro, locally in that of
Haytor, county of Devox, 8 miles (E.) from Newton-
Bushell, containing 403 inhabitants. The living is a
,in the archd and diocese of Exeter, rated
in the king's books at £3%. 2. 8}., and in the patronage
of Sir B, Wrey, Bart. The church contains an ancient
wooden screen, The church-house, now oceupied by
the poor, it of ancient foundation. Here is a school,
founded by Burgoyne, in 1783, with an endow-
ment of £100 stock, for ten children. The
navigable river ‘bounds this parish on the north.
MB-PYNE, a in the hundred of Axains-
TER, county of Dnow,s’:mihl(na.!.)m Colyton,
132 inhabitants, The living is a discharged
the archdeaconry and diocese of Exeter,
booklﬂia u.»s.,mdinﬂapn-
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ﬂw  of Kinarox,

mm oﬁﬂn GTON, county of
Warwick, 2§ miles (W, by N.) fmm Kington, containing
2680 inhabitants. The chapel is dedicated to St. Mu-gu'et.
There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.
In 1641, Sir Grevill Verney gave an annuity of £8 to-
wards the free school founded by his mother,
with an endowment of £25 per annum for instructing
all the poor children of Combrook and Compton-Verney ;
and in 1763, Lady Tryphena Verney, agreeably to a
bequest of £300 by her husband, George Verney, Esq.,
vonyeyed to trustees an estate at South Littleton, in the
county of Worcester, for the maintenance of two
scholurs at Trinity Gollage, Cambridge, to be chosen
from' this. school, or, in default, out of the grammar
school at Warwick,

COMBS, a parish in the hundred of Srow, county of
Surrork, 2 miles (8, by B.) from Stow-Market, con-
taining 786 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the
archdeaconry of Sudbury, and diocese of Norwich, rated
in the king's books at £25.17. 84., and in the patron-
age of the Earl of Ashburnham. The church, dedicated
to St, Mary, is in the early style of English architecture.
The river Orwell flows along the north-castery boundary
of the parish, and is navigable from Ipswich to Stow-
Market. Here isa considerable tannery.

COMMON-DALE, a township in the parish of
GuiLsBrROUGH, eastern division of the liberty of Lane-

. naunen, North riding of the county of Yorx, 6§ miles

(8,%.) from Guilsbrough, containing 86 inhabitants,
Common-dale is corrupted from Colman-dale, so called
from Colman, Bishop of Lindisfarne, who had a hermit-
age here.

COMP (GREAT), a hamlet in the parish and hun-
dred of Wrorsam, lathe of Avresromrn, county of
Kexr, 84 miles (8. E.) from Wrotham, with which the
population is returned. Here was formerly a chapel,

now demolished. ’

 COMPSTALL, a village in the parish of Srockrorr,
hundred of MaccLEsFIELD, county palatine of CaxsTER,
5 miles from Stockport, containing about 1600 inhabit-
ants, of which. 1200 are u::gloyed in ’pl?imtﬁes' power-
loom-wen bleaching, an remain-
der at, m“;gt;mive conl-works in the neighbourhood.

. 'There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.

'Ihmty«ﬁva ears ago, Compstall consisted of only a
’m&.hﬂ,mmmmmqf
ﬂwmmmﬁmnhubmmdmﬂyrmngw
its present thriving condition.

GOMPTON, & parish in the hundred of Comeron,
v of m%mﬂu (n.s.n.) frmn East Ilsley,
g Mmm

rount

who, by deed in 1501, endowed them with £ 4500 three

puremt.redmadmni ties, yielding now a dividend o

about £ 130 per anoum, of which sam, £68 is paid to

xhoepmﬂmf&w.m wﬁ?&hﬁm o
who, together are |

pointed by the trustees: the premises were

repaired in 1524,

COMPTON, a tything in the parish of wam
hundred of Borrog, county of GLovcesTER,
403 inhabitants, _ -

COMPTON, a tything in that part of the of
Hexnury which is in the upper division of the
of Hennury, county of GLoucesTen, containing 151
inhabitants,

COMPTON, a parish in the hundred of BunbprLes-
GATE, Fawley division of the county of SournameroN,
2% miles (8. 8. W,) from Winchester, containing 267
inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the peculiar -
Jjurisdiction of the incumbent, rated in the king's books
at £ 23. 6. 8., and in the [ﬁat.ronuge of the Bishop of Win-
chester. The church, dedicated to All Saints, is small, and
has portions in various styles of architecture, the Nor-
man predominating. Compton is within the jurisdiction
of the Cheyney Court held at Winchester every Thursday,
for the recovery of debts to any amount. The Itchen line
of navigation passes through this parish.

COMPTON, a parish in the first division of the hun-
dred of GopALMING, county of Surngy, 3% miles (8. W.
by W.) from Guildford, containing 428 inhabitants,
The living is a rectory, in the archdcacanry of Surrey,
and diocese of Winchester, rated in the king's books at
£15.4.904., and in the patronage of J. M. Molyneux, Esq.
The church, dedicated to St. Nicholas, has a low tower
and spire, and a curious chancel with a groined roof
and a chapel over it; these portions are in the early
style of English architecture, but there are others of de-
corated character.

COMPTON, a parish in the hundred of Wesr-
DOURN and SINGLETON, Tape of CHICHESTER, county of
Sussex, 9 miles (8. W. by W.) from Midhurst, con
233 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, with the
petual curacy of Up-Marden annexed, in the ar -
conry and diocese of Chichester, rated in the king's

.books at £ 13. 6. 8., and in the patronage of the Bishop

of Chichester, The church, dedicated to St. Mary, has
a mixture of the early Englinhand decorated
of architecture, Edward Flower, in 1521, founded
a free _school, with an endowment of £100,
to be out in land. Thomas Pelham gave £80,
with a rent-charge of £R20, and, in 1528, William
Spicer conveyed oﬂmlundsmihrﬂ:mmol'm
charity, the total income of which, amounting to £28
et e i L
to whom no application ever
teach children gratuitously. The Rey. Dr. Coﬂ?;:f;&l
.b:ﬁnulbed £100 for teaching poor children of
Up-Marden. A.domtiouafﬂaa by the Rev, R

‘beri Middleton, and one of.esoby'nmﬁ ‘Burrell,
Esq., in 1716, for the education of poor ¢l
been, with a further sum of £100 given by
;ppmimamkhm in which a

N (EASD), o wins in t




 king's books at £12. 15. 74.,

COM
. mihasa.w.fnm The
sET, 24 ( )Mswn-nu,

COHP'IDN (FENNY), a in the Burton-

%nsett div:}ioudof the :un : ﬁ;xmm, county of
ARWICK, 5% miles (E.by N. Kington, containing

572 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the arch-
deaconry of Coventry, and diocese of Lichfield and
Comu-y, rated in the king's books at £15. 8, 4 and
in the patronage of the Pmmdent and Fellm
Christi College, Oxford. church is dedimte?u
St. Peter. Sir Henry Bate Dndley, a comic writer of
some note, was born here, in 1745 ; be died in 1824,

COMP’I‘ON (LITI'I.E),apanshmtheupperdivinion
of the hundred of Drernurst, county of Guovcks-
TER, though locally in the hundred of Chadlington,
county of Oxford, 4% miles (N. W. by W.) from
Chipping-Norton, containing 314 inhabitants. The
living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Gloucester, endowed with £400 private be-
nefaction, and £400 royal bounty, and in the patronage
of the Dean and Canons of Christ Church, Oxford. The
church is dedicated to St, Denis, Here is an old
mansion, formerly the residence of Bishop Juxon, chap-
lain to Charles 1.

COMPTON (LONG), a parish in the Brails division
of the hundred of Kincron, comnty of Warwick, 4%
miles (N. N. W.) from Chipping-Norton, containing 860
inhabitants, The living is a discharged vicarage, in the
archdeaconry and dim of Worcester, rated in the
endowed with £200 pri-
vate benefaction, and £200 royal bounty, and in the pa-

h@:ga of the Provost and Fellows of Eton College.
f urch

is dedicated to St. Peter and St. Paul. There

' iga place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists, A weekly
, market and an annual fair, now disused, were granted

in the 15th of Henry III.  About a mile southwud and

- near the Oxfordshire boundary, is that remarkable

monument of antiquity, called Rolle-rich, or Rowlright,

stones, of which there is an absurd vulgar tradition thut

- they were once men, and that the highest of them would

hsve been of England, if he could have seen this
before they were turned into stone,

MPTON (NETHER), a parish in the hundred of
SIIIIO Sherborne division of the county of
Donn.ﬂ} miles (W. N. W.) from Sherborne, con

8 inhabitants. The living is a discharged rectory,
muad o that of Over ! in the peculiar juris-
diction of the Dean of , rated in the king's
books at £7. '18. The church is dedicated to St. Nicholes.

m (OVER), a parish in the hundred of
ne division of the county of Dor-
(w. by N.) from Sherborne, coni 149
The 'Ne-

h;reclm-y with tha
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(?OMPI‘ON-ABB&S a parish in that part of ﬂu!

hundred of Sixpexny-Hanxprey which is in the
Shaston (West) division of the county of Dorser, 84
miles (8. by E.) from Shaftesbury, containing 368 inhn-
bitants, The living is a rectory, in the

Dorset, and diocese of Bristbl, rated in the king's boeh
at £9. 10. 24., and in the of D. R. ell,
Egq. The church, dedicated to St. Mary, is a small

ancient edifice. The village is situated in a combe, or
vale, whence its name; it derives its adjunct from
having formed part of the endowment of Shaston abbey.
COMPTON-ABDALE, & parish in the hundred of
BraoLey, county of GLovorsTer, 44 miles (W. N. W.)
from North Leach, containing 184 inhabitants.’ The
living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Gloucester, endowed with £200 private bene-
faction, and 600 royal bounty, and in the
of the Dean and Chapter of Bristol. The church, de-
dicated to St, Oswald, is a smull ancient building. Here
is a school, with a t-riﬂmg endowment. The river Coln
runs through this parish, which is well wooded.
COMPTON-BASSETT, a parish in the hundred of
Cavrxe, county of Winrs, 24 miles (E. N. E.) from Calne,
containing 480 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in
the peculinr jurisdiction of the Prebendary of Combe .
and Hnmham in the Cathedral Church of Salisbury,
rated in the king's books at £13. 6. 104., endowed with
£600 royal bounty, and in the patro; of the Bishop
of Salisbury. The church is dedicated to St. Swithin.
Robert Rawlings, in 1786, bequeathed land producing
£11 per annum, for teaching ten children, prior to
which, in 1706, Elizabeth Giddes gave £8 for educating
one

COMPTON-BEAUCHAMP;.a parish in the hundred
of SuriveNmam, county of Berks, 64 miles (8. by W.)
from Great Farringdon, containing 103 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Berks,
and diocese of Salisbury, rated in the king's books at
£0.18, 9., and in the of J. A. Wright, Esq.
The church is dedicated to St, Swithin, Here is an exten- *
sive double-trenched encampment, thought to be Romuau, -
from the coing discovered upon the spot, near which,
mdmthesouthofthechueh.wuﬁew




iced or removed by visitors. William Cray, in
1728, bequeathed land, now producing £17 per annum,
for teachin &mehﬂdm in two schoolrooms. At
the village , in this parish, are some good post-
ing-houses: and by & recent regulation it has been
made the station of a general post-office, whence bags of
letters are sent to the neighbouring parishes.

COMPTON-CHAMBERLAIN, & parish forming a
detached portion of the southern division of the hun-
dred of Dameruam, locally in the hundred of Cawden
and Cadworth, county of Wivrs, 44 miles (W. by s.)
from Wilton, containing 267 inhabitants. The living is
a discharged vi in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Salisbury, rated in the king's books at £13, endowed
with £200 private benefaction, and £400 royal bounty,
and in the patronage of J. H. Penraddock, Esq. The
church is dedicated to St.Michael. There is a charity
school.  Col. Penruddock, who was executed at Exeter,
in 1665, for an attempt to restore Charles II. to the
throne, resided in this parish.

COMPTON-DANDO, a parish in the hundred of
Keynsnam, county of Somerser, @ miles (E. by N.)
from Pensford, containing 344 inhabitants. The living
is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Bath,
and diocese of Bath and Wells, rated in the king's
books at £5.10.5., and in the patro of the Bishop
of Bath and Wells. The church is icated to St.
Mary. There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Me-
thodists. The river Chew runs through this parish,
which is also crossed by the ancient Belgic boundary
line, called Wansdyke,

COMPTON-DUNDON, a parish in the hundred of
WarrLey, county of Somerser, 2} miles (N.) from
Somerton, containing, with the hamlet of Littleton, 544
inhabitants, 'l‘hnolaving is a discharged vicarage, in
the peculinr jurisdicfion and patronage of the Prebend-
ary of Compton-Dundon in the Cathedral Church of
Wells, rated in the king's books at £9. 6. 10., endowed
with £200 private benefaction, and £200 royal bounty.
The church is dedicated to, St. Andrew. The ruins of

e Sl £
- Beau the ¢ ! jacent ]
called Dundon Beacon, from a beacon having anciently
been erected on it ’

~ COMPTON-DURVILLE, a tything in the parish of

Crewron, county of Somenser, 8 miles (N.) from
Wells, c&uuin!ughe 534 inhnbim:;‘ NThe m
tory, with the perpetual curacy nett-Thrubwe
annexed, in the archdeacs ofB:trI?and diocese of
Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books at £10. 6. 8.,
and in the of the Duke of Buckingham.
church, dedicated to St. Michael, is a fine specimen of
the Norman style of architecture, and the interior is
particularly neat. John King, in 1773, ) an
annuity of £1 for a charity school, which was esta-
blished in 1776, and is endowed with about €13 per
annum, The vi lies at the e of an extensive
valley under the north ridge of Mendip, and derives its
adjunct from its ancignt proprietors.

COMPTON-PAUNCEFOOT, a parish in the hun-
dred of CaTsasm, county of SomerseT, 5 miles (W.8.W.)
from Wincanton, containing 228 inhabitants, The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Welis, and
diocese of Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books
at £8. 10, 10, and in the patro of John H. Hunt,
Egq. The church is dedicated to St. Mary.

COMPTON-VALLENCE, a parish in the liberty of
Frampron, Bridport division of the county of Don-
£ET, 74 miles (W.N.W.) from Dorchester, containing 86
inhabitants, The living is a rectory, in the archdea-
conry of Dorset, and diocese of Bristol, rated in the
king's books at £12. 5. 2}, and in the patronage of
R. Willianms, Esq. The church, dedicated to St.Tho-
mas A Becket, is a small building with a plain tower.
The village, which is situated on the banks of a small
stream, was formerly more considerable than it is at
present,

COMPTON-VERNEY, an extra- hial liberty,
in the Kington division of the hundred of Kineron,
county of Wanwick, 2 miles (N.W.) from Kington,
containing 37 inhabitants. Here is a free school, which
is entitled to two exhibitions in Trinity College, Cam-
bridge, jointly with that at Combrook. _

MPTON-WYNIATES, a parish in the Brails
division of the hundred of KingToN, county of Wan-
wick, 5% miles (E. by N.) from Shipston upon Stour,
con 28 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, with
the vicarage of Tysoe united, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Worcester, 3“%.";,“" ki o’faanoks at £10,
and in the patrons t arquis of | mhn?:m. impton
The mamr-phamn?gected in the reign of Henry VIIL,
was garrisoned by some troops belonging to the parlia-
ment, in 1646,

CONDERTON, a hamlet in the parish of Over-
nury, middle division of the hundred of OswavpsrLow,
CONDICOTE, a parish partly in the upper division

505 CON
a perpendicular shaft : proceeding by @ difficult wind- in the king's books at £7, and in the patronage of
ing passage, a still more extensive wmw ofthe Ward, Eaq, The Bavigable river Severn  on
ht : from the roof, which expands into a kind of Wwestern side of this parish. b e
irch, hio some beautiful specimens of sta- COMPTON-MARTIN, @ parish in the hundred of
Fosiaged
defaced
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! a parish in the hmdnd of Coxpo- = CONGLETON, an in-
vEn, county of Saror, 4§ miles (8.) from Shrewsbury, wmmwm < AEE

cunhiniug 1378 inhabitants, The li is ldhclilllgul '
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Slg;f and ¢
Lichfield and Coventry, rated in khg:n
£4. 14., and in the pa of E.W.S. Owen, Esq.
The chuch is dedjutad Andrew, is
upponudbydwmdomtiom mnﬂngh'ﬂmwhohto
£95 per annum,  Here is a small lake, termed
in and near which have been found several rare
cal plants. There is a mine of coal Inﬂ:eplrhh.
CONEYSTHORPE, a township in that part of
parish of BarTox in the StreeT which is in the
pentake of BurLmewr, North of the
York, 5 miles (W.) from New Malton, containing 160
inhabitants.
CONEYTHORPE, a township in the parish of
GornpssorouGH, upper division.of the
Craro, West riding

WNGERS'IDN a parish in the hundred of Spar-
KENHOE, county of Leicester, 3% miles (N. W, byw.)
from Market-Bosworth, containing 149 inhabitants.
“The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Leicester,
and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at
£5. 8. 64, and in the patronage of Earl Howe. The
church is dedicated to St. Mary. Charles Jennins, in

| 1778, left £333, 6. 8. in trust for teac poor children
of the theannmlpmd'ucaofwhlchisﬁlﬁ 13,

; There is also a school on the National gystem, sup-

Etrl and Countess Howe, in which one
children are clothed and educated.

Zouch canal passes through this

plrllh. ‘Congerston is in the honour of Tutbury, duchy

' of Lancaster, and within the jurisdiction of a court of

p'lmlhf;lat T\lllmryevurythnd Tuesday, for the re-

GUNGHALL, or CGUGHALL a township in that
pntofthnpulshof Backrorp which is in the lower
division of the hundred of Broxrox, county palatine

mamu,;-pﬁ-hhmnmdimuuhe
of Frepnringe, county of NomrroLk, 3}

qﬂu (E. byﬁ.) from Castle- containing 279 in-
habitants. The living is a rectory, with which that of
\_ St. Mary was consolidated in 1684, in the

in the parish of Gl
wm having separate
ction, lnul}y in the G/ g
undred Northwich, & RS
eomypdmaoﬂ}nnmn. v
31 miles (E. bys.) from @)L}
Chester, and 161 (N. W, by .
w.) from London, contsin-
ing 6405 inhabitants, Some
writers have considered this
the site of Condate, an abo-
riginal settlement of the Cornavii ; but Whitaker, in his
history of Manchester, has convincingly . refuted this
opinion, mdﬁxedthatmumatilndm In
Domesday-book it is called Cogletone, but its origin has
not been satisfactorily ascertained: it is not distin-
guished by any events of historical importance. In the
beginning of the fourteenth century a free charter was
granted to it by Henry de Lacey, Earl of Lincoln, who,
in 1282, obtained for it the grant of a weekly market.
In the reign of Henry V1., an inundation having done
considerable damage to the town, the inhabitauts ob-
tained to divert the course of the river, and
subsequently a grant of the 's mills, which stood on
its banks, The town is situated in a valley embosomed
in richly wooded hills, mthcsnuthhnnkoftheriver

streets : the houses in the eastern part
chiefly of timber and brickwork ; those in the western
part are in general modern and of handsome appear-
ance : the inhabitants are supplied with water from

springs, and from the rivulet Howtey, which intersects
the town. The environs abound with scenery beauti-
fully diversified by the windings of the river, on the
banks of which are numerous stately mansions and

The manufacture of gloves, an
Congleton paints, for which the town was celebrated, has

71' AR ,"-!

i A LA



EEEE%EEE

g
2

&
H
[

and courts of record for the recovery of debts to any
amount, tnwhhh,thoughthey do not exercise it, they
have the pmeeedingmardlngtothemtuta
of Acton- , otherwise the law of statute-merchant :
a court leet is also held in A at which the high
steward, or his deputy, presides. The guildhall is a
neat brick building, with a piazza in front, supported
on four pillars of stone ; it was rebuilt in 1805, and,
in addition_to the court-rooms and apartments for
transacting the public business of the corporation, com
priges a room for debtors, and cells for the conﬂnement
of criminals,

The living i# a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Chester, endowed with £200 private be-
nefaction, £200 royal bounty, and £400 parliamentary

grant, and in the patronage of the Mayor and Corpo-
ration. The chapel, dedicated to St. Peter, was rebuilt

prospect.

pel ut the end of the bridge
side of the river Dane, which, having long since become
desecrated, was appropriated to the reception of the
poor ; it was pulled down in 1810, when a spacious one
was erected at Coughton-moss, There are places of
worship for Independents, Primitive and Wesleyan Me-
thodists, Unitarians, and Roman Catholics, The gram-

mar school, free for the sons of burgesses exclusively,
andundﬂ' the t of the corporation, who ap-
point the master, is of uncertain foundation, but existed
priur to 1590, and was endowed with & house and gar-

b u‘ - ity r - T <
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'CONGRESBURY, a parish (formerly a market
m) in, the hundred of WinTERsTOKE, county of
ﬁhﬁ‘mﬂu(ﬂ by W.) from Axbridge, contain-
ingmm tunts. The living is a vicarage, with the
perpetual curacy of Wick St. Lamumnued_, in the'
of Wells, mddmmuafnnhdenﬂi
king's books at £42. 1.8., and in the
‘hmageoftheﬂayorndcorpornﬁnndm -
ohmh,demmdh&hdrewuahmdmmm
with a tower and lofty spire. This is a very lm '

bounded on the west by extensive marshes to
the Bristol channel : the account of it states
that the name is derived St. Congar, son of ah

eastern monarch, who in 711 fled from his father's court,
to avoid a marriage tb which he was disinclined, and
ultimately settled here, where he built an oratory, re-
ceived a grant of land from Ina, King of the West
Saxons, and founded an utabllshment for twelve canons;
he then proceeded on a p to Jerusalem, where
he died, and was bmght ther for interment. J’ocdyn
Bishop of Bath, obtained from Henry Il a t of
n weekly market and an annual fair ; the market is
disused, but the fair is held on the 14th of September :
a large and lofty cross stands in the centre of the

vi .

CONHOPE, a township in that part of the parish
of AymesTrey which is in the hundred of SrrETrPORD,
county of Herevonrp, 44 miles (N.byE.) from Pem-
bridge, containing 96 inhabitants,

ONINGSBY a parish in the soke of Houc.\mn,
parts of men, county of LincoLw, 1 mile (E.N. E.)
from Tattershall, containing 1651 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £39. 10. 24., and
in the patronage of Sir Gilbert Heatheote, Bart, The
church is dedicated to St. Michael. There are places of
worship for General Baptists and Primitive and Wesleyan
Methodists. The rivers Bane and Witham, and the
Horneastle canal, through this pariah the
Wlﬂlmilnaﬂgablefmmhnmlnwnuﬂnn An annual
feast is held on the Sunday nearest St. Michael's day.

CONINGTON, l.pl.ﬂshinthe hundred of PArwonrrs,
county of Campriner, 33 miles (8. by E.) from St. Fves,

202 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in
the archd nnddiameofmy,ntedmtheking'l
books at £9. 15, 10,, and in th
of Ely. The chirch i de(h ‘to St. Mary

. is an endowed school. Tmnofﬂummnmdtng
'M:Mofmmdmtw,whdhmm,
be discerned.
Glm.wmty vﬂrmanou,
Stilton

mmmofm:

4 miles. (B,l.nz:.}
dﬂeonq Ennﬂngﬂbn
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living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of York, rated in the king's books at £8. 12. 84.,
and in the of the Archbishop of York., The
church, dedicated to St. Peter, is of Norman character,
combined with the early, the decorated, and later style,
architecture : it had a chantry, founded in
- thalitbnf Edward IL : there are several monuments,
i vhhammmadomdwithmmy
' glyphics. There is a place of worship for Wes-
leyan Methodi_lu. A schoolroom was erected upon
waste land by subscription in 1812; the income,
mﬂmé?’ 10. per annum, arises from the rent

of the old school premises, and au endowment of £2 a
This is Il. ‘place of high autiguity, having been

mhﬂhungovmed. The Britons ealled it Caer
; the , or Conan Burgh, both

ES

fg
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CONISCLIFFE, a parish in the south.

dm of Dmsx ~ward, county pe -~ palatine of I
HAM, comprising townships. E@w
Low Coniscliffe, and containing 391 hhablhnu,
which number, 245 are in themhipdﬂ.%‘m
cliffe, 4 miles (W. b'yN) fmle.l::?tm.

is a vicarage, in the dioeese af Dur-
ham, rated in the 's bwklltif.ls.li.,mdiu
the patronage of the Bishop of Durham. The
dedicated to St. Edwin, has a tower and spire, qulhi,n
the early and later styles of English architecture; it
stands at the village of High Coniscliffe, on the north
bank of the Tees, occupying an eminence nearly sur-
rounded by quarries of limestone, deeply wrought but
now disused, though a quantity is still obtained
and burat in other parts of the parish. The village of
Low Coniscliffe is situated about a mile cast from the
chutch, and on the same gide of the river. Coniscliffe
was a considerable Roman station, the outworks of
whicli, with the foundations of an aqueduct, and the
military road called Broadway, from Binchester to the
remains of an ancient stone bridge a little helow the
present one, are still discernible. Horsley places the
Muga of the Notitia here, the station being occupied
by a field called the Tofts, Numerous Roman coins
have been found ; and there are two tumuli in the neigh-
bourhood.

CONISCLIFFE (LOW), a township in the parish
of ConiscrLiFre, south-eastern division of DarLiNGgTON
ward, county palatine of Durmam, 3 miles (W.) from
Darlington, containing 146 inhabitants.

CONISHOLM, a parish in the Marsh division of the
hundred of Lourn-Eske, of Linpsgy, county of
LincoLx, 8% miles (N. E. by E.) from Louth, containing
127 inhabitants. The living is a di rectory, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the
king's hooks at £9. 13. 6§., and in the patronage of
Viscount and Viscountess Goderich. The church is
dedicated to St. Peter. There is a place of wouhxpfor
Wesleyan Methodists.

CONISTON, at.omhj.p in that part of the parish
of Swine which is in the middle division of the wapen-
take of Houorrwess, East riding of the county of
Yorxk, 5} miles (N. B, byN.) from Kingston upon Hull,
containing 137 inhabitants,

CONISTON, a chapelry in the parish of BurnsaLr,
eastern division of the of StaiNcrLi¥re and
Ewcross, West ri the county of Yok, 113
miles (E.N.E.) from containing, with the ham-
. goﬁmmyhla&%mmm in the p-rnh

( ), a ﬂf
Ganrerav mmm )
CLIFFE weross, West riding of the cq
B‘milu (N-w.hy-w. ml' ! !
mhabitants. On a ' ] !

i

aE




-

h%.}

CONISTONE (CHURCH), a chapelry in th h
of Urversroxe, hundred of Lomnp:l.lz, northe gfult;e
sands, county palatine of LaxcasTer, 4 miles (W.) from
Hawkeshead, containing 566 inhabitants. The living

is a curacy, in the archdeaconry of Rich-
mond, and diocese of Chester, endowed with £200

private benefaction, -£400 royal bounty, and £800

Wry grant, and in the patronage of W,
11, Esq.

- CONOCK, a tything in the parish of Crurron, hun-
dred of Swansoroven, county of Wrvrs, 44 miles
1{;2‘1:. by E.) from East Lavington, containing 144 inha-
nt'o . y f
CONONLEY, a joint township with Farnhill, in the
parish of Kiuowick, eastern division of the wapentake
of Starvcrivee and Ewcnoss, West riding of the county
of Yorx, 3 miles (8.) from Skipton. The population is
returned with Farnhill
- CONSIDE, a joint township with Knitsley, in that
part of the parish of Lancuesrer which is in the
western division of Carster ward, county palatine of
Durnam, 144 miles (N.w. by W.) from Durham, con-
taining 141 inhabitants,
~ CONSTANTINE, a parish in the hundred of Ker-
rien, comnty of Connwary, 6 miles (8. W, by w.)
from Falmouth, contaifling 1671 inhabitants. The living
isa di vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Corn-
wall, and diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's books at
£10. 8. 104., and in the patronage of the Dean and Chap-
ter of Exeter, The church is dedicated to 8t. Constuntine.
There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists,
The navigable river Hel runs on the southern side of
this parish, and the village is situated upon an eminence
nearly surrounded by tin works. The sessions
for the division are held here. Onthe right of the road
from Penryn to Helston is a vast rock of granite, com-
puted to weigh seven hundred and fifty tons, called the
Tolmen, from the Cornish words, Toll, a hole, and Maen,
a stone : it is in the shape of an egg, with several exca-
vations on the top, and is curiously poised on two

\others: at a short distance there is another mass of a

direnlar form, resembling a cap. At Boscawen, in this
is a subterraneous paseage, termed Piskey Hall
still

thirty feet long, five feet wide, and six feet hi h,fomed’ i
aride: b __ ::ﬁ. tival

stones. The sites of decayed
.- : ' Near the

e formerly stood a cross; a bag full of silver

\gs Arthur and Canute was discovered about
R ,h.m"hudr{;.d;f'nuct
of Drvon, 4§ miles

qu

OKHAM, a parish (formerly a market town) in
g SO
e P et "

g

houses, the inmates of which receive some trifling gra-
tuities, and a small endowed school. Several descen-
dants of Gen, Washington, and Mr. Hooke, the historian
of the Roman er , are interred in the church. 1

COOKLEY, a parish in the hundred of Bryrmine,
county of SuvrrorLk, 24 miles (W, 8. W.) from Hales-
worth, containing 274 inhabitants. The living is a dis-
charged rectory, united to that of Huntingfield, in the
archdeaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich,
rated in the king's books at £6. 13. 4. The church
is dedicated to St. Michael. There is a small endowed
school.

COOLING, a parish in the hundred of SmavweLL,
lathe of Avresronrp, county of KenT, 2 miles (N. by E.)
from Rochester, containing 124 inhabitants. The living
is @ rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Roches-
ter, rated in the king's books at £14, and in the patron-
age of T. Best, Esq. and H. Fox. The church is dedi-
cated to §t. James. This parish, originally called Colniges,
or Colneges, from its bleak situation, comprehends the
two villages of Cooling-street and Church-Cooling, and
confains the remains of a castle formerly of great
strength, but long since dismantled.

COOL-PILATE, a township in the parish of Acrox,
hundred of Nanrwicsm, county palatine of Cers-
TER, 4 miles (8.) from ﬁmtwich, containing 48 inaa-
bitants,

COOMBE, a township in that part of the parish of
an;fug which isii:ﬁ]tbe' hundred ﬁ-:; 1GMORE,
county REFORD, 2 es (E. 8. E, Presteigne,
containing 67 inhabitants. 2

COOMBE-BISSETT, a parish in the hundred of
Cawpen and Capworrs, county of Wivrs, 84 miles
(8. w.) from Salisbury, containing 831 inhabitants,
The nvn:f is u discharged vicarage, with the perpetual
curacy of West Harnham ann in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Salisbury, rated in the king's books
at £7, endowed with £600 bounty, and in




of Bln:nn, county of Sumx, 9 mﬂu (S.E. by
“r from Steyning, containing 70 inhabitants. The living th;
is & rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Chiches-
ter, rated in the king's books at £10. 0. 24., and in the
patronage of the Earl of Egremont. The church is in
the carly style of English architecture, The navigable
river Adur runs on the eastern side of this parish.
COOMBS-EDGE, a to in the parish of Caa-
PEL en le Frirs, lnmdred of Hice PeAxk, county of
Dxrsy, 2§ miles (N. W. by W.) from Buxton, containing
438 inhabitants.
COPDOCK, a parish in the hundred of Samvonp,
county of Svrronk, 33 miles (W) 8. W.) from Ipswich,
containing 278 inhabitants. The living is a discharged

rectory, with the vic of Washbrook annexed, in
the of and diocese of Norwich,
rated in the 's books at £9. 12. 8}., and in the pa-

of Lord Walsingham. The church is dedicated
to St. Peter. Clopdock hall was once the residence of
Lord Chief Justice de Grey, and of Dr. Foster, a zealot
of the church of Rome.
COPFORD, & parish in the Witham division of the
h!mdredoflalxm county of Esskx, 4 miles (W.8.W.)
' from Colchester, 592 inhabitants, The living
\is a rectory, intheuch of Colchester, and dio-
fme of London, rated in the king's books at £15. 8. 4.,
‘and in the of the Crown. The church is prin-
|dpllly of Norman architecture.
COPGROVE, a parish in the lower division of the
of Craro, West riding of the county of
Yourxk, 4 miles (8. W. by W.) from Boroughbridge, con-
87 inhabitants. The living is a di rec-
of Richmond, and diocese of
. 's books MEG.O. 7., and in the
of T, , Esq. The church is dedi-
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miles’ (8. W. by 8.)
itants. ‘There is o
leyan Methodists, also a
struction of children.

COPP, nchapdry!nﬂm ‘d!ﬂ'l'.lhm
Wyre, hundred of Am

latlne of Lancasten, The pupthtlun is returned 'ﬁ

5OI’PENHALL apaﬂshinthe‘hud:dofﬂmw
wicH, county palatine of Crrster, 1z the
townships of Church- hallaml M
hall, and 512

e O worebty for Weat

mm ﬁﬂa-

Yorx,

ship of M The is a , in
theparchdnaconrymh.‘mmm of g;h‘emr, ﬂted"ﬁz’
king's books at £6. 10., and in the patronage of
Bishop of Lichfield and Coventry. The church, dedi-
cated to St. Michael, is built of wood an tlphhfu-'in
the style which prevailed in the reign of Queen Kl
zabeth '

COPPENHALL, a chapelry in that part of the
parish of Pexeripee which is in the eastern division of
the hundred of cm'li'::u'd county of Starronn, 4
miles (N, N, W.) from kridge, lOBinha-
hitante, The living is a perpetual mlnlnf'
diction of the court of the royal peculitrof Penh-idge,
endowed with £800 royal bounty, and in the
of E. J. Littleton, Esq. The chapel, ‘dedicated to
Lawrence; is built of timber and brick-work, apparently
of the reign of Elizabeth.

COPPINGFORD, :pa.rlsh inthe hundred of Letca-
ToxsToNE, county of Hunrine fon, 64 miles (8.) from
Stilton, containing 70 inhabitants. The living is a rec-
tory, consolidated with that of Upton, in the archdea-
conry of Huntingdon, and diocese of Lineoln, rated in

Lkﬂl:gsboohnt £18. 18. 14., and in the

Montague, The c.h\m:h which was dedicated
to All Saints, is in ruins,

COPPIN-SIKE, an extra- liberty with
Ferry-Corner, in the of Kirron, parts of
Hovrraxp, county of LincoL, containing 17 inhabit-

.Im.

COPPULL, a chapelry in the parish of Stanpism,
hundred of Levranp, county palatine of Lancasrer,
4 miles (8.8.W.) from Chorley, « 1017 inha.
bitants. The isa curacy, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Chester, endowed with £400

benefaction, £400 royal bounty, and £400 par-
grant, and in the patronage of the Rector of
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miles (E,) Ho:fhatp. The living is amﬁ

in the king's books at £11. 11. 8., uft{
in the of the Dean and Chapter of Carlisle,
The church, cated to St. Andrew, is supposed to
have been built out of the ruins of a neighbouring Ro-

& neat edifice, having undergone
are places of worship for Inde-
mdm. Wesleyan Methodists, and Roman Catholics,
: m. formerly a borough and market town of

A stands north of the river Tyne,
over which there is a bridge of seven arches; but,
though well built, and in repute for its healthy situa-
tion, it has lost its former importance ; the privilege of
returning members having been found too expensive,
and the market falling into disuse, Near the centre of
tbemumm i8 & cross, erected in 1814, by the Duke
of New , who, in 1815, constructed a fountain near
it, which, together with another fountain erected by the
inhabitants, is supplied with water from a reservoir in
the vicinity, A fair, held on the eve, day, and morrow
of St. John the Baptist, has fallen into disuse; but
fairs are held at Stagshaw Bank, in this parish, for the
of live stock, annually on Whitsun-eve and July
4th, and a tryst fair on the 24th of November, the last
established in 1820 : at the fair in July a great quantity
of linen and woollen cloth, brought from Scotland, is
exposed for sale, At this place David, King of Scots,
ped.in 1138. Corbridge was burnt by the Scots
in 1296 and 1311. Two battles are said to have been

;

0 of Ptolémy, and by Horsley the Corstopi-
tum of Auntoninus, now called Corchester, where coins
and other antiguities have been found ; and,

in 1735, a large piece of Roman plate, twenty inches
long and fifteen broad, and weighing one hundred and
i ounces, iscovered in an enclosure

was
~hear
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Whit. pits,
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t of brick, were discovered in
neighbourhood, in 1760. A court leet m
baron is held on Easter-Tuesday, und
rity of the Duke of Northumberland,

 CORBY, a market town and parish in the wapen-
take of Brrrisrom, parts of Kustevew, ty of
Linconw, $3 miles (8, by E.) from Lin nd 103
(N. by W.) from London, containing 581 bitants.

This place, though situated on a Roman road leading
&Mmﬂer,hmafwhichazg;tglmﬂl s
istinguished by any event _ MEBW- .
nor ?.?f:lny features of architectural interest. mar-
ket, which has nearly fallen into disuse, is on Wednes-
day : the fairs are on the 6th of August and the Mon-
;iay before October 10th, for cattle and ﬁeurm Tho:’
iving is a discharged wicarage, united to the rectory
Irnham, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln,
rated in the king's books at £5, 12, 14, The church
is dedicated to St. John the Evangelist. The grammar
school was founded, in 1669, by Charles Reed, Esq.,
who endowed it with a rent-charge of £48, 15., for an
unlimited number of boys of this parish. -
CORBY, a parish in the hundred of Corny, county
of Nowraasmrron, 24 miles (8.E,) from Rockingham,
containing 707 inhabitants, The living is a , in
the archdeaconry of Northampton, and diocese of Pe-
terborough, rated in the king's books at £13. 16. 3.,
and in the patro of the Earl of Cardigan. The
church is dedicated to St. Jobhn the Baptist. ;
CORBY (GREAT), a township in that part of the
parish of WeraneraL which is in EsgkparLe ward, coun-
ty of CumperLAND, 6 miles (E. 8.E.) from Carlisle,
containing 303 inhabitants, The village is pleasantly
situated on the east bank of the Eden ; and contigu-
ous to it, on the summit of a precipitous cliff, stands
Corby castle, anciently the seat of the Salkelds, who
}muhen'ted it from Hubert ddeb Vm mitsd Gils-
d, from whom it passed by to resent
possessors, the Howards, a branch of the Nm-
mily. The mansion was much modernised and im-
proved in 1813, and the scenes and walks s lix
it abound in natural besuties. A court leet, a court
baron, and a customary court, are held. A school, with
S e
with twenty-five acres , yielding about £30 per
annum ; the master receives a small quarterage from
CORBY (LITTLE), a township in that part of

parish of Warwick which is in EskpaLe ward, county



COR

is a perpetual curacy, in the nehdueoarynfmm
and diocese of Bath and Wells, and in the patronage of

F. G. Cooper, Esq. and Mrs. Cooper.

&

CORFE-CASTLE, a bo-

nndpcrhh!hrmerly
o

‘ -I in thehundradof:'}ow’

tle, Blandford (South) thv:
sion of the of Dor-
sET, 28 miles (E.8.E.) from
Dorchester, and 120 (8.W.)
from London, containing,
with the of North
division and th divi-
‘gion, 1465 inbabitante. This

place, which in the Saxon Chronicle is termed Corve
and Corves-geate, appears to have derived its import-
ance from a formidable castle’ erected by Edgar,
pﬂorwth;ymow uthegmofwhiehEdwnrd the

Martyr, when ealling to vigit hie step-mother Elfrida,

‘was, by her order, treacherously murdered. In the reign
of 1 the castle was taken by Baldwin e Rivers,

Earl of Devonshire, who held it against the king: it

was tly the residence of King John, who kept

the regalia at it, and by whose orders twenty-two prison-
ers, some of whom were among the principal nobility

of Poicticrs, were starved to death in its dungeons.

- Richard IL,, after his deposition in 1327, was removed

. from Kenilworth to this fortress, where he was detained

' for u short time prior to his tragical death at Berke-
-oastle. the entary war, Lord Chief

parliam
Justice Bankes, who then resided in the eastle, being
{with the king at York, Sir Walter Earl and Sir
‘Thomas Trenchard assanlted the place, thinking to

it was

easy possession of it for the parliament, but
-hudmlly ‘defended by Lady Bankes and her
asgistance only of their domes-
approach of the king to Bland-
sent to her assistance,

b1e

COR
ivy, and forms @ picturesque feature in these extensive
r?ir:'u,whieh mhwmmmm

ougly grand and majestic. )
Thetownildmmdonanmﬂneau, &e

centre of the Isle of Purbeck, mdouudahpm

Wostmudhuglngfmm mlrkat-ephm,hiﬁa

ventre of which i b::il mofnncmt mwmmmtdﬁm
are in general built of stone o the
quarries, and approached by a flight of
the inhabitants are well supplied with water
bridge connecting the castle with the town ilenlkd-'
Edward's bridge, and is said to be the spot
Edward, fainting from the loss of blood, fell from
horse and expired. At the entrance from the
road is an ancient stone bridge over the small river
Corfe, by which the town is bounded on the east. The
inhabitants are principally employed in the guarries
and clay-pits, for which the isle is celebrated: from
the principal of these, called Norden, about a mile from
the town, o railway has been constructed, to facilitate
the communication with Poole harbour, where the clay
is shipped for the Staffordshire and other ;
few of the female inhabitants are employed in the knit-
ing of stockings. The market, which was held on Thurs-
day, has been for some time discontinued: the fairs are
on May 12th and October 29th. The lord of the manor of
Corfe was anciently hereditary lord-lieutenant of the lsle

3??5
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deputy ; he was also admiral of the isle, and exercised the
authority of Lord High Admiral, in which capacity he was
entitled to all wrecks, except in cases where there was a
special grant to the contrary, and had power to array the
militia: these privileges ceased on the of the
militia act, in 1757, Mr. Bankes, then lord of the manor,
having omitted to enforce his claims. Though nbmuﬂ
by prescription, the town was not in till

18th of Queen Elizabeth, who invested it with the same
priv. as were enjoyed by the cinque-ports. Under
the charter of Charles II. the corporation con-
mm'lmnyor,whnu annually elected at the court




Wight.

CORFE nm.um nehapelrymtheparuh of Stur-
MINSTER- hundmd of Coapean, Shaston
(East) division ofthe county of Donrser, 8 miles (8, W.by
W.) from Wimborne-Minster, containing 544 inhabitants,
‘chapel is dedicated to St. Nicholas. The navigable
river Stour runs on the north of this chapelry, There
is an annuity of £27 for the support of a parish school,
toﬂlidt Richt&laookyer in 1706, beqnuthed £17 for

E‘

COF --a

Mdpndivi:imofthe county of Sours-
mn,imﬂu(ﬂ E. by E.) from Bishop's Waltham,
containing 168 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual
.inih.lmhdncunrymd diocese of Winches-
ter, endowed with £400 private benefaction, and £400
m;'md in the patronage of H. P. Wynd-
church is a curious edifice, appa-
rently of qﬂy Norman construction. In 1669, Wil-
liam Collins gave a school-house and £450, producing
u_hmofiﬁ,iwwﬁnhabmtd;htpoorbay- are

(CORLEY, & parish in he Atherstone division of the
hundred of Hemrinororn, county of Warwick, 4 ham.
miles (N. N.W.) from Coventry, containing 316 inhabit-
ants, The living is a , in the archdeaconry of
Gnvmrynd:‘i;md e ‘and Coventry, and in

3

\ (GREAT), a in the hundred of
con wm"m‘ The living v dis

a parish in the hundred of Mrox-

bnolu at £9. 17. Ly eudowad with ﬂco rayal bounty,
and in the of the Earl of Lonsdale. The
church is dedicated to St, John the m k
northward from the | P

at Greenwich, was born here. Amrmkm'
athﬁddlem-l’lwe,amallhmletinthil
CORNFORTH, nuwnahlpint.hepcmlmi
MipprEnaM, north-eastern division of B‘mmw. ;
county palatine of Durnam, 6§ miles (8.&1'3
Durham containing 330 inhabitants, The hill at the
bottomnfwhichthevuhgeﬂuconwmum
of limestone; and the houses are disposed in th
of a square, wrthagmofmomlaminﬂm%-
Dr. Hutchinson, a learned writer, was born here.
CORNHILL, a chapelry in the pu.mhufﬂom
otherwise Norhnmahire county palatine of Dursam,
14 mile (E. b%h s.)uvﬁi:?hmld:m m
inhabitants, ¢ lperputullw ,
archdeaconry of Northumberland, and diocese of Dur-
ham, endowed with £400 private Wﬂ
myﬂbonnty,lndinthupmuga '
dedicated to St. H
bniltinl?bl,whmastoneco{in
of a human skeleton, and two urns of coarse
ware, were found : in an adjoining wood is a
St. Helen's Well, the water of which is
scorbutic and gravel complaints, but is n
& neat cold bath has been erected near it. .
annually on the 6th of December. The c
monnhedbytheseuumlass.mdlphin
a consideralile booty fell into their pa




